
1 of 3 
 

NOTICE OF REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND 
COUNTY, TEXAS, WILL MEET IN REGULAR SESSION OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS FOLLOWS: 

 
DATE:   Tuesday, May 20, 2014 

 
TIME:   7:00 p.m. 

 
PLACE:  Rosenberg City Hall 

City Hall Council Chamber 
2110 4th Street 
Rosenberg, Texas  77471 

  
PURPOSE:  Regular City Council Meeting, agenda as follows: 
  
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of this meeting to 
discuss any of the matters listed below, as authorized by Title 5, Chapter 551, of the Texas Government Code. 
 

Call to order:  City Hall Council Chamber 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. (Reverend Dave Hodges, Grace Community Bible Church, Rosenberg) 
 
Presentation of Proclamation Proclaiming May 21, 2014, as Special Olympics Day in the City of Rosenberg. (Vincent M. 
Morales, Jr., Mayor) 
 
Presentation of Proclamation Proclaiming the Month of May 2014 as Older Americans Month in the City of Rosenberg. 
(Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor) 
 
GENERAL COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with comments of a general nature will be received at this time.  Each 
speaker is limited to three (3) minutes.  In accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, the City Council is restricted 
from discussing or taking action on items not listed on the agenda.  It is our policy to have all speakers identify 
themselves by providing their name and residential address when making comments. 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE FOR CONSENT AND REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with regard to matters on the Consent Agenda or Regular Agenda will 
be received at the time the item is considered.  Each speaker is limited to three (3) minutes.  Comments or discussion by 
the City Council Members will only be made at the time the agenda item is scheduled for consideration.  It is our policy 
to have all speakers identify themselves by providing their name and residential address when making comments. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. Review of Consent Agenda. 
All Consent Agenda items listed are considered to be routine by the City Council and may be enacted by one 
(1) motion.  There will be no separate discussion of Consent Agenda items unless a City Council Member has 
requested that the item be discussed, in which case the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and 
considered in its normal sequence on the Regular Agenda. 
 

 A. Consideration of and action on Special Meeting Minutes for April 22, 2014, and Workshop Meeting 
Minutes for April 22, 2014. (Cernosek) 
 

 B. Consideration of and action on a Final Plat of Walsh Road Industrial Park, a subdivision of 24.259 acres 
of land overall being a partial replat of Reserve “C” (call 14.2272 acres – Tract I; Fort Bend County 
Clerk’s File No. 2013125509) and a partial replat of Reserve “D” (call 7.9822 acres – Tract II & call 2.0025 
acres – Tract III; Fort Bend County Clerk’s File No. 2013125509) of Fifty-Nine South Industrial Park 
Subdivision (Volume 27, Page 11; Plat Records of Fort Bend County, Texas) being in the Henry Scott 
Survey, Abstract No. 83, City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas; 0 lots, 20 reserves, 3 blocks. 
(Tanner) 
 

 C. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1784, a Resolution approving the Fort Bend County 
Emergency Management Plan and authorizing the City's participation in the Plan. (Warren) 
 

 
  



2 of 3 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 
 

[EXECUTION PAGE TO FOLLOW]  

2. Hear and discuss a presentation regarding a proposed Eagle Scout Project to build a bat habitat for 
Seabourne Creek Regional Sports Complex, and take action as necessary. (McCarthy)  
 

3. Hear and discuss a presentation regarding a proposed Eagle Scout Project to restore bleachers for Sunset Park, 
and take action as necessary. (McCarthy)  
 

4. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1795, a Resolution authorizing the termination of the General 
Services Contract for Grounds Maintenance Services by and between the City and Original DKC Enterprises, 
LLC; and, authorizing the City Manager to execute, for and on behalf of the City, any and/or all necessary 
documentation regarding same. (McCarthy)  
 

5. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1790, a Resolution awarding Bid No. 2014-02 for Grounds 
Maintenance Services; and, authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute, for and on behalf of the 
City, a General Services Contract related thereto and all necessary documentation regarding same. 
(McCarthy) 
 

6. Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2014-22, an Ordinance authorizing and ordering the issuance 
of the City of Rosenberg Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2014; awarding the 
sale thereof; and containing matters incident thereto. (Vasut)  
 

7. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1789, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute, 
for and on behalf of the City, an Amendment to Interlocal Cooperation Agreement for the collection of taxes, 
by and between the City and Fort Bend County, Texas, for a period ending on June 30, 2015. (Vasut)  
 

8. Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2014-23, an Ordinance canvassing the returns and declaring 
the results of the Special Municipal Election held on May 10, 2014, within the City for the purpose of voting on 
an initiated Ordinance and Resolution; and containing other provisions relating to the subject.  (Cernosek)  
 

9. Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2014-24, an Ordinance to adopt and pass an initiative 
Ordinance submitted to the qualified voters on the May 10, 2014 Special Election which prohibits the City from 
donating specified real property for the “One-Way Pairs” Project. (Cernosek) 
 

10. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1792, a Resolution to adopt and pass an initiative Resolution 
submitted to the qualified voters on the May 10, 2014 Special Election which prohibits the City from donating 
specified real property for the “One-Way Pairs” Project. (Cernosek) 
 

11. 
 

Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2014-25, an Ordinance amending the Code of Ordinances by 
adding a new Article III to Chapter 15 thereof, defining certain terms; making it unlawful for certain registered 
sex offenders to reside within 2,500 feet of premises where children gather; prohibiting property owners from 
renting real property to certain registered sex offenders; providing exceptions to the ordinance; providing for 
posting of signs; providing penalties for violations of the ordinance;  repealing all ordinances or parts of 
ordinances inconsistent or in conflict herewith; providing a severability clause; and providing an effective date.  
(Lenzsch/Warren) 
 

12. Announcements. 

13. Adjournment. 
 



3 of 3 
 

 
 

DATED AND POSTED this the ___________ day of ____________________ 2014, at _______________m.,  
 
 
by ____________________________________. 

 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Attest:       

     Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary  
 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Approved for Posting:   
Robert Gracia, City Manager 

 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Approved:   
Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 

 
Reasonable accommodation for the disabled attending this meeting will be available; persons with disabilities in need 
of special assistance at the meeting should contact the City Secretary at (832) 595-3340.   
 



 
 
 
 
 

Presentation of Proclamation Proclaiming 
May 21, 2014, as Special Olympics Day in the 

City of Rosenberg.  





 
 
 
 
 

Presentation of Proclamation Proclaiming 
the Month of May 2014 as Older Americans 

Month in the City of Rosenberg.  





General Comments from the Audience: 
 

Citizens who desire to address the City Council with comments 
of a general nature will be received at this time.  Each speaker 
is limited to three (3) minutes.  In accordance with the Texas 
Open Meetings Act, the City Council is restricted from 
discussing or taking action on items not listed on the agenda.  
It is our policy to have all speakers identify themselves by 
providing their name and residential address when making 
comments. 



Comments from the Audience for 
Consent and Regular Agenda Items: 

 
 

Citizens who desire to address the City Council with regard to 
matters on the Consent Agenda or Regular Agenda will be 
received at the time the item is considered.  Each speaker is 
limited to three (3) minutes.  Comments or discussion by the 
City Council Members will only be made at the time the agenda 
item is scheduled for consideration.  It is our policy to have all 
speakers identify themselves by providing their name and 
residential address when making comments. 



ITEM 1 
 

Review of Consent Agenda. 
 

All Consent Agenda items listed are considered to be routine by the 
City Council and may be enacted by one (1) motion.  There will be no 
separate discussion of Consent Agenda items unless a City Council 
Member has requested that the item be discussed, in which case the 
item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in its 
normal sequence on the Regular Agenda. 



ITEM A 
 

Minutes: 
 

1. Special City Council Meeting Minutes – April 22, 2014 
2. City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes – April 22, 2014 
 
 



 
PAGE 1 of 2 * SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * APRIL 22, 2014 

***DRAFT*** 
 

CITY OF ROSENBERG 
COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

***DRAFT*** 
 

On this the 22nd day of April, 2014, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas, 
met in a Special Session, in the Rosenberg City Hall Council Chamber, located at 2110 4th Street, 
Rosenberg, Texas. 
 
PRESENT 
Vincent M. Morales, Jr.  Mayor 
William Benton   Councilor at Large, Position 1 
Cynthia McConathy  Councilor at Large, Position 2 
Jimmie J. Pena  Councilor, District 1 
Susan Euton   Councilor, District 2 
Dwayne Grigar   Councilor, District 3 
Amanda Bolf   Councilor, District 4 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
Robert Gracia   City Manager 
Lora Lenzsch   City Attorney 
Linda Cernosek  City Secretary 
John Maresh    Assistant City Manager for Public Services 
Jeff Trinker   Executive Director of Support Services 
Charles Kalkomey  City Engineer 
Travis Tanner   Executive Director of Community Development 
Angela Fritz   Communications Director 
Wade Goates   Fire Chief 
Kaye Supak   Executive Assistant  
Tommy Havelka  Police Department 
 
CALL TO ORDER. 
Mayor Morales called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of 
this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed below, as authorized by Title 5, Chapter 551, of the 
Texas Government Code. 
 

AGENDA 
 

1.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A FINAL PLAT OF BONBROOK PLANTATION SOUTH 
SECTION FIVE, A SUBDIVISION OF 49.784 ACRES OF LAND SITUATED IN THE WILEY 
MARTIN LEAGUE, ABSTRACT 56, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS; 115 LOTS, 7 RESERVES 
(18.984 ACRES), 2 BLOCKS.  
Executive Summary: The Final Plat of Bonbrook Plantation South Section Five is a proposed subdivision 
located off of Reading Road in the southeast part of Bonbrook Plantation.  It is in the Extraterritorial 
Jurisdiction (ETJ) and in Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 155 (MUD No. 155).  The Plat 
contains the portion of Reading Road that connects Bonbrook Plantation to Bridlewood Estates.  The latter 
is in accordance with the approved Land Plan for Bonbrook Plantation. 
 
The Plat consists of 115 lots and seven (7) reserves including a detention reserve (“A”) containing over 
fourteen (14) acres.  The Plat consists of the following lots sizes: 

• 18 x 50’ lots 
• 62 x 55’ lots 
• 35 x 65’+ lots 

 
The proposed Plat and lot layout reflect the approved Land Plan.  This is the final subdivision in Bonbrook 
Plantation South and one of the final subdivisions in Bonbrook Plantation overall. 
 



 
PAGE 2 of 2 * SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * APRIL 22, 2014 

***DRAFT*** 
 

The Preliminary Plat of this subdivision was approved by the Planning Commission on January 22, 
2014.  The Final Plat is consistent with the approved Preliminary Plat and not in conflict with any 
applicable regulations.  The Planning Commission recommended approval of the Final Plat to City 
Council on March 26, 2014.  Staff recommends approval of the Final Plat of Bonbrook Plantation 
South Section Five. 
 
Key discussion points: 

• Travis Tanner, Executive Director of Community Development gave an overview of the item. 
 
Questions/Comments: 

• Councilor Grigar asked if the connection to Reading opens up the street. 
• Travis Tanner stated yes and the street will taper down from a major thoroughfare into a 

smaller street as it connects to that subdivision. 
 
Action:  Councilor McConathy made a motion, seconded by Councilor Euton to approve a Final Plat 
of Bonbrook Plantation South Section Five, a subdivision of 49.784 acres of land situated in the Wiley 
Martin League, Abstract 56, Fort Bend County, Texas; 115 lots, 7 reserves (18.984 acres), 2 blocks. 
The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

2.  CONSIDER MOTION TO ADJOURN FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION. 
Action:  Councilor McConathy made a motion, seconded by Councilor Euton to adjourn for 
Executive Session. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

3.  HOLD EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DELIBERATE POTENTIAL PURCHASE, EXCHANGE, LEASE, 
OR VALUE OF REAL PROPERTY PURSUANT TO SECTION 551.072 OF THE TEXAS 
GOVERNMENT CODE; AND, TO DELIBERATE THE EMPLOYMENT, EVALUATION, AND 
DUTIES OF THE CITY ATTORNEY PURSUANT TO SECTION 551.074 OF THE TEXAS 
GOVERNMENT CODE. 
An Executive Session was held to deliberate potential purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real 
property pursuant to Section 551.072 of the Texas Government Code; and, to deliberate the 
employment, evaluation, and duties of the City Attorney pursuant to Section 551.074 of the Texas 
Government Code. 
 

4.  ADJOURN EXECUTIVE SESSION, RECONVENE INTO SPECIAL SESSION, AND TAKE ACTION 
AS NECESSARY AS A RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION. 
Mayor Morales adjourned the Executive Session and reconvened into Regular Session at 6:58 p.m. 
No action was taken as a result of Executive Session. 
 

5.  ADJOURNMENT. 
There being no further business Mayor Morales adjourned the meeting at 6:58 p.m. 

 
 
____________________________________________ 
Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary  
  
 



PAGE 1 of 10 * SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * APRIL 22, 2014 
***DRAFT*** 

 
 

 

CITY OF ROSENBERG 
COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES 

***DRAFT*** 
 

On this the 22nd day of April, 2014, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, 
Texas, met in a Special Workshop Session, in the Rosenberg City Hall Council Chamber, located at 
2110 4th Street, Rosenberg, Texas. 

 
PRESENT 
Vincent M. Morales, Jr. Mayor 
William Benton  Councilor at Large, Position 1 
Cynthia McConathy  Councilor at Large, Position 2 
Jimmie J. Pena  Councilor, District 1 
Susan Euton   Councilor, District 2 
Dwayne Grigar  Councilor, District 3 
Amanda Bolf   Councilor, District 4 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
Robert Gracia   City Manager 
Lora Lenzsch   City Attorney 
Linda Cernosek  City Secretary 
John Maresh    Assistant City Manager for Public Services 
Jeff Trinker   Executive Director of Support Services 
Joyce Vasut   Executive Director of Administrative Services 
Travis Tanner   Executive Director of Community Development 
Angela Fritz   Communications Director 
Wade Goates   Fire Chief 
Rachelle Kanak  Assistant Economic Development Director  
Lisa Olmeda   Human Resources Director 
Darren McCarthy  Parks and Recreation Director 
Lydia Acosta   Recreation Programs Coordinator 
Kaye Supak   Executive Assistant 
Tommy Havelka  Police Officer 
 
During a City Council Workshop, the City Council does not take final action on the agenda items and 
any consideration of final action will be scheduled at a Regular or Special City Council Meeting. 
Public comments are welcomed at Regular or Special City Council Meetings. No public comments will 
be received at a Workshop Meeting. 
 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of 
this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed below, as authorized by Title 5, Chapter 551, of the 
Texas Government Code. 

 
CALL TO ORDER. 
Mayor Morales called the meeting to order at 6:58 p.m. 
 

AGENDA 
 

1.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO. 2014-08, AN ORDINANCE AMENDING 
THE CODE OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING SUBSECTIONS (A)(4) AND (A)(7) AND BY 
ADDING NEW SUBSECTIONS (A)(8), (A)(9) AND (A)(10) TO SECTION 6-362.2 OF ARTICLE XIII 
OF CHAPTER 6 THEREOF, PROVIDING FOR EXPANDED BOUNDARIES OF SIGN DISTRICT 
“B”; BY ADDING A NEW SECTION 6-362.3 OF ARTICLE XIII OF CHAPTER 6 THEREOF, 
ESTABLISHING SIGN DISTRICT “C” AND REGULATIONS FOR SIGN DISTRICT “C”; BY 



PAGE 2 of 10 * SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * APRIL 22, 2014 
***DRAFT*** 

 
 

 

ADDING A NEW SECTION 6-362.4 OF ARTICLE XIII OF CHAPTER 6 THEREOF, 
ESTABLISHING A SIGN DISTRICT MAP; PROVIDING A PENALTY IN AN AMOUNT AS 
PROVIDED IN SECTION 1-13 OF THIS CODE FOR VIOLATION OF ANY PROVISION HEREOF; 
REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES INCONSISTENT OR IN 
CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY. 
Executive Summary: This Ordinance was brought to City Council on February 18, 2014.  City 
Council directed staff to put the Ordinance on a future Workshop Agenda for further discussion.  The 
CCC executive summary report that was provided to City Council on February 18th is included in its 
entirety as follows: 
 
Freestanding sign regulations for height and area for Avenues H and I and State  
Highway 36 (between I-69/U.S. 59 and Avenue H) have been discussed in two (2) previous City 
Council Workshop meetings:  once on September 24, 2013, and again on November 26, 2013.  In 
the most recent discussion on November 26, 2013, staff presented options for sign regulations for 
these corridors to City Council.  The most agreed-upon option involved designating the eastern parts 
of Avenues H and I as being included in previously-approved Sign District “B.”  These parts of the 
corridors have larger properties that could accommodate the larger signage allowed in District “B” 
(maximum of 16-foot/120 square foot single-tenant signs and 24-foot/320 square foot multi-tenant 
signs).  Staff recommended that should City Council choose this option, the dividing lines for larger 
signage would be Miles and Mahlmann Streets.  This was due to the larger properties and shopping 
centers mostly being located to the east of these streets.  There was subsequent discussion and 
potential agreement on the dividing line being moved to the west to 8th  Street with the exception 
properties located on the south side of Avenue I, which should have smaller signage due to more 
residences being located in the area. 
 
Staff has prepared an Ordinance amendment that we believe most reflects the discussion and 
consensus of City Council on November 26, 2013.  It can be summarized as follows: 
 
State Highway 36 between I-69/U.S. 59 and Avenue H (not including Downtown); Avenue H 
between Spur 529 and 8th Street (not including Downtown); Avenue I between Spur 529 and 8th 
Street (not including Downtown); and the south side of Avenue I between 8th and Mahlmann: 
 

• Single-tenant: 
o Maximum height: twelve (12) feet  
o Maximum size:   sixty (60) square feet 

• Multi-tenant: 
o Maximum height:   twelve (12) feet 
o Maximum size:   ninety-six (96) square feet 
o Maximum of sixty (60) square feet per tenant 

 
Avenue H east of 8th Street; Avenue I east of Mahlmann; and the north side of Avenue I between 8th 
and Mahlmann: 
 

• Single-tenant: 
o Maximum height: sixteen (16) feet  
o Maximum size:   one-hundred twenty (120) square feet 

• Multi-tenant: 
o Maximum height:   twenty-four (24) feet 
o Maximum size:   three-hundred twenty (320) square feet 
o Maximum of one-hundred twenty (120) square feet per tenant 

 
You will notice that the Downtown Area is not included in these recommendations.  This is because 
Downtown already has its own standards that do not allow freestanding signs.  This is due to the 
buildings mostly adjoining the right-of-way; thus the sites do not have yards for freestanding signs to 
be located in.  No changes are recommended to the Downtown Area’s existing sign regulations.  In 
fact, Downtown has been discussed in previous meetings as potentially being Sign District “C” and 



PAGE 3 of 10 * SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * APRIL 22, 2014 
***DRAFT*** 

 
 

 

Avenues H, I, and State Highway 36 as District “D”; however, because no changes are 
recommended to Downtown, staff does not see the need to create another sign district for it and 
therefore Avenues H, I & 36 are being designated as District “C.” 
 
Finally, due to the complexity of the Ordinance, staff has created a Sign District Map to make the 
Ordinance more user-friendly for staff and sign permit applicants.  The map is attached as Exhibit 
“A” to the Ordinance.  Staff recommends approval of Ordinance No. 2014-08 in order to move 
forward with establishing permanent freestanding sign regulations for the corridors, as opposed to 
the current maximum height of nine (9) feet and maximum area of 36 square feet. 
 
At this time, staff is requesting direction from Council on any changes to the Ordinance before it is 
adopted. 
 
Key discussion points: 

• Travis Tanner reviewed the item as outlined in the Executive Summary. 
• Staff’s recommendation to move forward with the Ordinance as is. 
• Staff met with Mr. Mellon who owns several properties on Avenue H and addressed his 

concerns. 
 
Questions/Comments: 

• Councilor McConathy referenced Sign District C – all of Highway 36 in District C – 
recommendation made for Highway 36 from City Hall Drive up to US 90A be District C and 
from City Hall Drive back to US 59 be District B. 

• US 90A on the east where railroad trellis is – property at Lane Drive that spans a portion of 
US 90A and other portion becomes a residential street. Keep entire property with District B 
standard and clarify in Ordinance. 

• Mayor Morales asked for clarification for the recommendation. 
• Councilor McConathy clarified speed limit changes and a 12’ maximum height from City Hall 

Drive to US 90A would be appropriate. As speed increases toward the far end there are 
larger properties that could benefit from the District B maximum height. 

• This does not affect existing non-conforming signs. 
• Councilor Pena suggested putting all of Highway 36 into District B since it is a major 

thoroughfare. 
• Councilor Euton agreed that Highway 36 should be 16’ for all businesses and in District B. 
• Task Force recommendation on Highway 36 was the same as on US 59. 
• Concern with push back from residents in areas where signs are too tall and visible in the 

neighborhoods. 
• Philosophy of Ordinance being presented is that signage is smaller in areas that have 

smaller pieces of property and adjacent to residences. 
• Councilor Benton and Bolf were fine with the 36 split. 
• Mayor Morales agreed with the heights suggested in the ordinance but agreed with the split 

from City Hall to US 59.  
• Businesses are waiting for this to pass to do something with their signs. 
• Direction was given to Travis Tanner to change the map and clarify in the ordinance the split 

in the property as discussed. 
• No action was taken on the item. 

 
2.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS THE FY2014 STREET OVERLAY AND RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT 

LIST, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF.  
Executive Summary: In past years, the Public Works Department has submitted the list of streets 
to be overlaid and rebuilt to City Council for approval.  The list of streets for this fiscal year was 
included in the agenda packet for your review.  The Public Works Department has compiled a list of 
twenty-one (21) street sections.  The list includes two (2) streets to be rebuilt and nineteen (19) to 
be patched, leveled up and overlaid with hot-mix pavement.  The cost estimate for the 
recommended streets included on the Project List is $863,923.11. The FY2014 Budget includes 



PAGE 4 of 10 * SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * APRIL 22, 2014 
***DRAFT*** 

 
 

 

$300,000.00, plus an additional $79,410.00 remains from the FY2011 Street Paving Program which 
was previously approved for Homestead Road in the Suburban Estates Subdivision. The streets 
located in the Suburban Estates Subdivision were deferred until such time the FM 2218 construction 
project was completed and a final determination was made regarding the traffic control measures 
that would be implemented. 
 
Staff presented a request to the Rosenberg Economic Development Corporation (RDC) to provide 
funding in the estimated amount of $133,865.00 (the cost estimate has since been revised to 
$140,673.61) for the reconstruction of Koeblen Road, which was annexed in 2013. More recently, a 
dirt mining operation was developed on property that is only accessible from Koeblen Road and the 
heavy truck traffic has caused considerable damage to the road. The RDC did take action to fund 
approximately one-third of the initial cost estimate ($44,621.00), leaving a balance of $96,052.61. 
RDC staff has also attempted to contact the operator of the dirt pit to discuss the opportunity for the 
business to partner with the City and RDC by providing a financial contribution toward the road 
reconstruction cost. As of the date of this report, staff has not had the opportunity to have this 
discussion.  
 
Due to the large amount of street repair and repaving work the City will have to address in future 
years. Staff recommends additional funding in the amount of $439,892.11 which will provide a total 
of $863,923.11. If City Council concurs, a budget adjustment will be presented at the May 06, 2014 
meeting for approval. 
  
Staff recommends approval of the FY2014 Street Overlay and Reconstruction Project List as 
presented. 
 
Key discussion points: 

• John Maresh, Assistant City Manager for Public Services read the Executive Summary 
regarding the FY2014 Street Overlay and Reconstruction Project List. 
 

Questions/Comments: 
• Councilor Euton asked where the additional $439,000 will come from. 
• Joyce Vasut, Executive Director of Administrative Services explained staff is looking at 

taking it from sales tax. 
• Koeblen Road will be asphalt and will have to be completely reconstructed. 
• Street has been posted for “No Thru Trucks” and as long as the posting stays in place and 

trucks stay off the road it should last a significant time.  
• Gravel trucks were going to FM 2218 for a short cut. Now when they enter and exit they 

have to go directly to FM 2977. 
• Councilor Euton asked if the signage on Cottonwood Road helped. 
• That has to be directed to the Police Department. 
• Councilor Pena asked if Koeblen was annexed and what other properties. Will the County 

do the work on these? 
• Yes, that was annexed. Cottonwood Road has been in the City for awhile. Blackwood, J. 

Meyer and Koeblen Roads were in the recent annexations. Work will be done by the County 
based on the concept of the City providing the material and use the interlocal agreement to 
get the assistance from the County for labor and equipment. 

• Councilor Grigar asked if any roads are scheduled to be widened. 
• These will stay as they currently exist. 
• Cottonwood and Koeblen Roads will be rebuilt the others are 2” overlays. 
• Councilor Bolf asked if all of J. Meyer Road in the City limits. 
• Yes. There is a separate proposal before Council regarding the MUD located next to the 

school and part of that agreement requires that development to do some of those road 
improvements. That is why it was left off this time. If it does not happen then that section 
would need to be looked at for the list next year. 

• Councilor Bolf asked about the four streets in Bridlewood Subdivision and are in the City 



PAGE 5 of 10 * SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * APRIL 22, 2014 
***DRAFT*** 

 
 

 

limits. 
• Yes, Cartwright, Heritage Haven, Little Haven and Grand Gables Streets are in Bridlewood 

Subdivision. Some cracks and patching has been done since they were annexed. Grand 
Gables has been in the City for a while. 

• Councilor Benton stated recurring complaints regarding Cottonwood School Road and 
Mulcahy Street. Will you partner with the sand pit on Koeblen Road? 

• Randall Malik, Economic Development Director contacted them and will setup a meeting 
with them to start discussions. 

• For access to the sand pit on FM 2218 they have to go on a section. The sand pit is on FM 
2977 behind Sunrise Meadows and they cannot come up Koeblen Road to FM 2218.  

• Councilor Benton asked about Old Richmond Road. 
• That was on the list with the County and will be done this summer for reconstruction. 
• Councilor McConathy asked about Koeblen and Cottonwood School Roads regarding the 

addition of the signage that was added for the trucks. Was the truck company on Koeblen 
Road notified that we now have signs restricting their access to Koeblen Road? How are we 
enforcing the new signage for those streets? 

• Yes the Police Department contacted them. 
• Dallis Warren, Police Chief explained that our traffic officers are there periodically and we 

follow up on any complaints regarding the truck traffic on those roads. 
• Mayor Morales stated that since the signs have gone up on Bryan Road there are not as 

many gravel trucks.  
• The general consensus was to move forward with the list as presented. 
• No action was taken on the item. 

 
3.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS PROPOSED “SEX OFFENDER” ORDINANCE, AND TAKE ACTION AS 

NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF.  
Executive Summary: City staff has seen an increase in the number of sex offenders currently 
registered in the City of Rosenberg. Currently there are minimal regulations pertaining to the 
residency of registered sex offenders.  
 
Staff is recommending the City consider an Ordinance that provides for greater oversight of 
registered sex offenders and restriction on residence locations for these offenders.   Should City 
Council direct staff to move forward, an Ordinance will be presented at a future City Council meeting 
for consideration and adoption. 
 
Key discussion points: 

• Dallis Warren, Police Chief read the Executive Summary regarding the item. 
• Tracie Dunn, Assistant Police Chief presented a PowerPoint outlining the item regarding the 

proposed “Sex Offender” Ordinance and provided the options available. 
• A current map was shown pointing out the drug free zone which is 1,000 feet from schools. 

The dark green on the map is 2,000 feet from the school and shown as the “child safety 
zone” on the map. The parks and any child activity or recreation area were included in the 
map. 

• A map was shown pinpointing where the sex offenders are living within the City, and as 
outlined in the Ordinance. 

• A regional map was provided showing other cities in the area by population. Rosenberg has 
a large number of this population relative to size. The numbers are rarely below 60. 
Presently there are 59 and the lowest seen is 56. 

• The ordinance is talking to only the child sex offenders and habitual offenders. Out of the 
total of 59 – 40 are child sex offenders and 10 habitual offenders. That is the majority of the 
sex offender population living in Rosenberg and would be affected by this ordinance. 

• Chapter 62 of the Criminal Code of Procedure is what we have now. Chapter 62 has no 
residency location restrictions. 

• The State form number CR35 is the form they fill out when they move to Rosenberg. Page 2 
lists all the conditions they must comply to. There is no residency distance in the conditions. 



PAGE 6 of 10 * SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * APRIL 22, 2014 
***DRAFT*** 

 
 

 

This ordinance is important and is the only recourse we have. 
• State definitions of offenders were outlined. 
• Most surrounding cities have ordinances restricting residency and Rosenberg does not, so 

that restricts probation areas to place them. Some are natives and move back. Chapter 62 
does not restrict any residency and it is left to us to bridge that gap. 

• Other agencies are doing yard signs and some are doing bumper stickers. Almost all have 
the location restriction from 1,000 to 2,000 feet. Currently, probation is the only one for us 
that makes the condition 1,000 feet and that is only while on probation. 

• No agencies in Fort Bend County use signage. Bay City is the only one using signage 
requirement and our language is based on theirs. 

• The offender has seven days once they move here to notify us. After the seventh day we 
have basis for compliance.  

• Homeless offenders are supposed to call us each day (24 hours) to notify us and they have 
to give a geographical location of where they are at. 

• The ordinance pertains to habitual offenders and child sex offenders only. These individuals 
will not be grandfathered in. It would apply to anyone new moving to Rosenberg or are 
currently living and then moved.  

• Rules and verbiage regulating the signage was provided. The City will provide the required 
sign to the child sex offender or habitual sex offender. Cost of the sign is $11.00. 

 
Questions/Comments: 

• Councilor McConathy stated since the Police Department will provide the signs a monetary 
amount will need to be established in the budget to support that. Which option do you favor? 

• Dallis Warren, Police Chief stated yes if adopted by Council. Several options have been 
provided tonight and based on the discussion the Ordinance will be adjusted and brought 
back to Council with the budgetary impact. His preference would be the 2,000 feet that 
provides the greatest protection. Signage is not very common but is seen in some 
jurisdictions. He does not have a preference. It is also highly restrictive to what type of 
offender would receive that sign and does not apply to all offenders. 

• Councilor Benton asked what brought this about. Have there been complaints? 
• Dallis Warren referenced the chart with the numbers. Rosenberg numbers are so much 

higher that surrounding cities and we are the only city that does not have the restrictions 
that led us in that direction and made it obvious we need to do something. 

• Councilor Benton expressed concern with the constitutionality when someone is required to 
put a sign in front of their home. He has concerns with the sign aspect of the Ordinance. 

• Lora Lenzsch, City Attorney explained many of these ordinances throughout the United 
States are very similar and they have been brought into the courts and the courts have ruled 
that sex offenders are not a protected class of individuals under the fair housing acts or 
under any of the constitutional standards. The ordinances are based not on punishment but 
on the ability to protect the public and minors residing in the community. As to date she 
does not know of any signage ordinances that have been contested. 

• Councilor Bolf agreed with the Ordinance. They do not deserve any courtesy and they could 
sleep in a tent. Does the state notify you when they come here or do you wait for them to 
come to you to register? She agrees with the signage. If the family takes them in they need 
to deal with it. She would like the 2,500 feet to apply in the Ordinance.  

• Tracie Dunn explained if they are coming out of a commitment the papers are faxed to us. If 
they are moving from another jurisdiction they are bound by the seven day rule and we have 
to rely on them to show up. Most of the time agencies will call us and let us know. Our City 
restricts them from living in apartments. We try to do a minimum of three compliance checks 
per year and those are random.  

• Councilor Grigar echoed what Councilor Bolf said. He expressed some concern with the 
map including daycares. How do we keep track of when daycares come and go and does 
the map change? Are HOA recreational centers considered to be private? 

• Tracie Dunn stated maps are checked annually and updated. HOAs are considered private. 
• Lora Lenzsch explained the Ordinance is meant to regulate areas that are open to the 



PAGE 7 of 10 * SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * APRIL 22, 2014 
***DRAFT*** 

 
 

 

public not private. The City does not regulate on HOA properties. From the map it covers 
the City. It wasn’t until recently that Sugar Land went out to 2,500 feet so maybe we could 
consider that. 

• Councilor Grigar stated he would like to see 2,500 feet. There is a small portion that is not in 
the map so they can live in our subdivision as well as other areas where there are HOAs. 
He has concern leaving the recreation center outs. He would like to see a large sign but 
does not agree with the bumper sticker. 

• Councilor Pena agreed with Councilors Bolf and Grigar. He does not think this type of crime 
can ever be paid back through an institution. Knowledge of where these people are at is one 
thing and earmarking them. These people will not be able to find housing and they will have 
to live with relatives and he does not think good tax paying people should have to be 
punished for this. Knowing where they are located is good. Due diligence was done with this 
Ordinance and he agrees with it and supports it. 

• Councilor Euton asked if this will put an extra burden on the Police Department or will it help 
to aid them. 

• Tracie Dunn stated it will be helpful because it will not pertain to only probation areas. 
• Dallis Warren stated this is a long term affect and over a period of time with the mobility of 

population eventually when they move the Ordinance becomes effective.  
• Councilor Euton stated the ones living here are grandfathered, but there is an exception that 

says they have complied with all the sex offender registration laws. They don’t always 
comply and they could get kicked out of that exception when they don’t comply. The sign is 
a little over the top. She agrees with identifying where they are and keeping them away from 
children. She always hopes there is rehabilitation for these people. She likes the idea of 
protecting the landlord. How is the landlord expected to handle it? 

• Tracie Dunn explained that once we give the landlord notice we give them a reasonable 
amount of time to effectively get them out. We average 8 to 10 that are out of compliance on 
our checks out of the sixty we have.  

• Dallis Warren stated the District Attorney’s Office is very aggressive on the prosecution of 
violators.  

• Mayor Morales stated the general consensus of Council is to have the maximum area that 
can be covered with the most restrictive to that defender. Signage is mixed, but in his 
opinion if that would lower those numbers he agrees with it.  

• Dallis Warren stated the Ordinance will be brought back to the May 20th Council Meeting. 
The distance will be increased to 2,500 feet and the signage will be brought back at that 
time. 

• Lora Lenzsch stated two versions can be brought back. One that includes the sign and one 
that doesn’t. Council can decide at that time. 

• No action was taken on the item. 
 

4.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS PROPOSED REVISIONS TO THE CHRISTMAS IN ROSENBERG 
EVENT, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF.  
Executive Summary: Staff has placed this item on the Agenda to review and discuss, with City 
Council, proposed changes to the Christmas in Rosenberg event. 
 
Key discussion points: 

• Robert Gracia clarified to Council that the information being given is preliminary. We are in 
the planning stage and before staff moves forward we wanted to have a consensus from 
Council whether to proceed with the changes staff is recommending. 

• Darren McCarthy stated staff is looking to doing something different with Christmas in 
Rosenberg and showcasing and highlighting our downtown area. 

• We would like to bring a lot of lights to downtown. Examples of lighting were provided with 
the ideas of spreading out the event to three nights: 

• A Sip and Stroll through the downtown shops; 
• A Tree Lighting Ceremony and showing a family friendly holiday movie; and/or 
• Santa and Mrs. Claus and a holiday theater performance. 



PAGE 8 of 10 * SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * APRIL 22, 2014 
***DRAFT*** 

 
 

 

• A copy of an invitation to a reception we will be doing with the businesses May 1st was 
provided to Council. This will allow staff to solicit their feedback on a three day event 
downtown. 
 

Questions/Comments: 
• Councilor McConathy stated it sounds good and if Council approves this we would have to 

budget for it. It’s a great idea and she would support it. 
• Councilor Benton likes the idea but we need to see what the cost would be. Is the three day 

event on one weekend? He would support it. 
• Darren McCarthy stated the event would be held on Thursday, Friday and Saturday. 
• Councilor Bolf stated she likes the idea. Would it replace the gazebo tree lighting? 
• Darren McCarthy stated yes. 
• Councilor Grigar agreed with it and he likes the Thursday, Friday and Saturday. 
• Councilor Pena likes the idea and replacing the one day event would be a good thing. 
• Councilor Euton agreed and if the downtown merchants agree with it then it would be great. 
• Mayor Morales stated he is in favor of Thursday, Friday and Saturday. We need the 

feedback from the downtown merchants. He likes the idea of bringing it together to attract 
people to Rosenberg. We need to get the cost and look at doing sponsorships as well. 

• No action was taken on the item. 
 
RECESS SESSION, RECONVENE SESSION. 
Mayor Morales recessed the Session at 8:18 p.m. and reconvened the Session at 8:28 p.m. 

 
5.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS MERCHANDISE PROMINENTLY DISPLAYED AT THE SITE OF SALE, 

AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF.  
Executive Summary: This item has been added to the Agenda to offer City Council the opportunity 
to discuss regulations that might govern merchandise prominently displayed at the site of sale on a 
regular or long term basis.  
 
A copy of the current Code regarding garage sales was included in the agenda packet. 
 
Additionally, it was requested that City staff research the City of Sugar Land’s ordinance related to 
this issue.  Sugar Land’s Zoning Ordinance provides for merchandise to be temporarily displayed or 
stored outside the Building on the same premises if the merchandise:  

• Is not located on public property or within a required Parking Space or Yard; 
• Is not displayed or stored outside for more than 30 consecutive days or for more than 90 

days within one calendar year;  
• Is owned by the owner or lessee of the building; and 
• Does not occupy a contiguous area in of excess of 10% of the ground Floor Area of the 

Building or tenant space of the business displaying or storing the merchandise. The 10% 
restriction does not apply to landscaping materials for retail nurseries or lawn and garden 
supply stores, if displayed within a fenced area. 

 
Key discussion points: 

• Councilor Benton stated he requested this item be placed on the agenda for discussion and 
input from Council. There are concerns with people selling merchandise at the road and 
suggested requiring a setback or buffer.  
 

Questions/Comments: 
• Councilor Euton cautioned on how Council would want to handle this. There are a lot of 

vendors that have outdoor merchandise displays. She knows what this is geared towards 
and she would like to see it addressed through an existing code. She does not want to limit 
people from displaying wares outside. 

• Councilor Pena asked if this is referring to panhandling. What is the ordinance regarding 
trash cans? He agrees this needs to be looked at and the trash can standards might be a 



PAGE 9 of 10 * SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * APRIL 22, 2014 
***DRAFT*** 

 
 

 

good one to go with. 
• Councilor Grigar stated he has some of the same concerns Councilor Euton has. What 

about car lots, farmers markets, etc? He thinks this needs to be looked at and there needs 
to be a setback. He has a concern regarding the type of merchandise. 

• Councilor Bolf agreed with Councilor Grigar. The Avenue H area looks like a full time 
rummage sale. She would like staff to see what can be done to get it cleaned up. 

• Councilor McConathy stated the Avenue H area is what we are talking about and the resale 
businesses. She suggested looking for a solution within those boundaries. We are not 
saying we don’t want resale shops. We are saying we don’t want items from inside now on 
the front lawn and looking cluttered and not representing Rosenberg businesses. We may 
need to look at setbacks. It is more of a safety issue than not liking this particular business. 

• Travis Tanner stated there are some restrictions we could add such as setback, amount of 
outside storage and require screening that would discourage that type of thing. We need 
clarification on if we can actually do it based on the type of item such as a resale item. We 
would have to investigate that before staff could bring it back to Council. 

• Councilor Euton asked if we could restrict them on parking with the existing ordinances.  
• Travis Tanner stated we already do that and you are not allowed to take up any required 

parking for the business. There are situations where we have enforced that and we try to 
monitor it.  We don’t allow items in the right-of-way and are covered in our current 
Ordinance.  

• Councilor Euton stated she would like to see a strengthening and Code Enforcement 
making a priority to show they are in violation and letting the owners know they are not in 
compliance with parking and easements to see if that helps before we do more ordinances. 

• Councilor Grigar suggested that it be limited to only a certain percentage of the wares 
outside the business to display. He has a concern with utilizing parking spaces for 
merchandise.  

• Mayor Morales stated the consensus from Council is to tighten up the highlighted items as 
stated in the Executive Summary without adding an ordinance. 

• No action was taken on the item. 
 

6.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS A COMPREHENSIVE STOP SIGN PLAN FOR THE CITY, AND TAKE 
ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF.  
Executive Summary: This item has been added to the Agenda to offer City Council the opportunity 
to discuss the potential of establishing a comprehensive stop sign plan. A copy of the applicable 
Code Section and examples of policies from several other cities was included in the agenda packet. 
 
Key discussion points: 

• Councilor Benton had the item placed on the agenda for discussion and input 
• A brief discussion was held regarding the existing guidelines that are in place. The use of 

traffic calming devices in areas of the City could be beneficial.  
• Staff will provide a list of types and pricing of traffic calming devices to be considered during 

the budget process. 
• No action was taken on the item. 

 
7.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS “LONG-TERM” PARKING OF VEHICLES IN FRONT YARDS OF AREA 

RESIDENCES, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF.  
Executive Summary: This item has been added to the Agenda to offer City Council the opportunity 
to discuss “long-term” parking of vehicles in front yards of area residences, and the potential addition 
of guidelines regarding same. 
 
It was requested that City staff research the City of Sugar Land’s ordinance related to this issue.  
Sugar Land prohibits the parking of vehicles on unimproved surfaces in front and side yards in 
residential zoning districts.  There is an exception to the ordinance for cases where the vehicle has 
been parked on an unimproved surface prior to the effective date of the ordinance.   
 



PAGE 10 of 10 * SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * APRIL 22, 2014 
***DRAFT*** 

 
 

 

 
 
Key discussion points: 

• Councilor Benton had the item placed on the agenda for consideration and discussion. 
• A brief discussion was held on the item. 
• Councilor Grigar stated the item needs to be taken to the Planning Commission for 

discussion. 
• Mayor Morales stated there is a concern with this but not to the degree of over restricting 

the neighborhood. He agrees the item needs to be taken to the Planning Commission. 
• The general consensus of Council was to have the Planning Commission review. 
• No action was taken on the item. 

 
8.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO SECTION 6-367 OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES PROVIDING RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING THE PAINTING OF 
STREET NUMBERS ON CURBS, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF.  
Executive Summary: On April 01, 2014, City Council held discussions regarding the potential of 
amending the City’s curb-painting regulations to include the Texas flag. 
 
This item has been added to the agenda to offer City Council the opportunity to discuss the potential 
amendment of the rules and regulations governing the painting of street numbers on curbs. A copy 
of the current Code Section 6-367 was attached in the agenda packet. 
 
Key discussion points: 

• Councilor Benton placed the item on the agenda for consideration and discussion. 
• Discussion was held and concerns expressed regarding the size of lettering and restriction 

to only the Texas flag. 
• Lora Lenzsch reiterated the fact that it is unconstitutional to restrict it to the Texas flag. You 

cannot hold people criminally liable for painting other flags. The County Attorney would have 
to seek an Attorney General opinion on this. 

• Councilor Grigar stated his intention was for staff to research it to see what kind of situation 
we are looking at. He expressed concern that the item was brought back by a Council 
Member and no backup provided. He would like to leave the ordinance the way it is 
currently. 

• Mayor Morales stated the general consensus of Council is for staff to bring the item back 
with the Austin ordinance criteria. We can review this potential ordinance again after the 
budget process.  

• No action was taken on the item. 
 

9.  ADJOURNMENT. 
There being no further business Mayor Morales adjourned the meeting at 9:40 p.m. 
 

 
 

____________________________________________ 
     Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary  
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
May 20, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

B Final Plat of Walsh Road Industrial Park 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on a Final Plat of Walsh Road Industrial Park, a subdivision of 24.259 acres of 
land overall being a partial replat of Reserve “C” (call 14.2272 acres – Tract I; Fort Bend County Clerk’s 
File No. 2013125509) and a partial replat of Reserve “D” (call 7.9822 acres – Tract II & call 2.0025 acres – 
Tract III; Fort Bend County Clerk’s File No. 2013125509) of Fifty-Nine South Industrial Park Subdivision 
(Volume 27, Page 11; Plat Records of Fort Bend County, Texas) being in the Henry Scott Survey, Abstract 
No. 83, City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas; 0 lots, 20 reserves, 3 blocks. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[X] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4  
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 MUD #:  158 (River Run at the 

Brazos) 
1. Final Plat of Walsh Road Industrial Park 
2. Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt – 12-18-13 
3. Planning Commission Draft Meeting Minute Excerpt – 04-23-14 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 
Travis Tanner, AICP 
Executive Director 
Community Development

Reviewed by:  
  
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Final Plat of Walsh Road Industrial Park is a proposed subdivision consisting of approximately 24.26 acres 
and twenty (20) reserves.  It is located immediately north of the intersection of Walsh and Klauke Roads.  The 
proposed reserves are an average of one (1) acre in size.  Also included are proposed Reserves “A” and “M” 
restricted to drainage use for detention purposes. 

From a development standpoint, the proposed deed restrictions for the subdivision generally limit the property to 
office, warehouse, distribution and light manufacturing use.  The restrictions also provide for the association to 
maintain common areas such as the detention pond.  The restrictions shall be recorded prior to filing of the Plat 
and Note No. 21 on the Plat will be completed.  It is also important to note that the West Fort Bend Management 
District (WFBMD) bisects the property being replatted and encompasses six (6) of the proposed reserves or 
building sites, and a portion of two (2) others.  The WFBMD’s standards will play a role in the future development 
of those sites. 

The proposed Plat also constitutes a partial replat of Fifty-Nine South Industrial Park, originally platted in 1981.  
That being said, a public hearing was held when the Preliminary Plat came before the Planning Commission on 
December 18, 2013.  The Preliminary Plat was approved by the Planning Commission.  City staff has reviewed 
the proposed Final Plat and has found it not to be in conflict with any regulations.  The Planning Commission 
recommended approval of the Final Plat on April 23, 2014, and staff recommends approval of the Final Plat of 
Walsh Road Industrial Park. 
 



“
”



CITY OF ROSENBERG
CITY LIMITS

(ORDINANCE No. 2011-29;
F.B.C.C.F. No. 2011118874)

CITY OF ROSENBERG
CITY LIMITS

(ORDINANCE No. 2011-30;
F.B.C.C.F. No. 2011118875)

FEM
A

 ZO
N

E X  SH
A

D
ED

FEM
A

 ZO
N

E X

FEM
A

 ZO
N

E A
E

FEMA ZONE AE

FEMA FLOODWAY AREAS

IN  ZONE AE



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



�

�
Page 3 of 10 * DRAFT PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES * APRIL 23, 2014�

�

approval to City Council of the Final Plat of Business Park Drive and Innovation Court Street Dedication, a 
subdivision of 6.727 acres containing 3,462 l.f. of R.O.W. out of the S.B. Pentecost Survey, A-378, Fort Bend 
County, Texas.  The motion carried unanimously by those present. 

3. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A FINAL PLAT OF WALSH ROAD INDUSTRIAL PARK, A SUBDIVISION OF 
24.259 ACRES OF LAND OVERALL BEING A PARTIAL REPLAT OF RESERVE “C” (CALL 14.2272 ACRES – TRACT I; 
FORT BEND COUNTY CLERK’S FILE NO. 2013125509) AND A PARTIAL REPLAT OF RESERVE “D” (CALL 7.9822 
ACRES – TRACT II & CALL 2.0025 ACRES – TRACT III; FORT BEND COUNTY CLERK’S FILE NO. 2013125509) OF 
FIFTY-NINE SOUTH INDUSTRIAL PARK SUBDIVISION (VOLUME 27, PAGE 11; PLAT RECORDS OF FORT BEND 
COUNTY, TEXAS) BEING IN THE HENRY SCOTT SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 83, CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND 
COUNTY, TEXAS; 0 LOTS, 20 RESERVES, 3 BLOCKS. 

Executive Summary:  The Preliminary Plat of Walsh Road Industrial Park is a proposed subdivision consisting of 
approximately 24.26 acres and 20 reserves.  It is located immediately north of the intersection of Walsh and 
Klauke Roads.  The proposed reserves are an average of one (1) acre in size.  Also included are proposed 
Reserves “A” and “M” restricted to drainage use for detention purposes. 

From a development standpoint, the proposed deed restrictions for the subdivision generally limit the property 
to office, warehouse, distribution and light manufacturing use.  The restrictions also provide for the association 
to maintain common areas such as the detention pond.  The restrictions shall be recorded prior to filing of the 
Plat and Note No. 21 on the Plat will be completed.  It is also important to note that the West Fort Bend 
Management District (WFBMD) bisects the property being replatted and encompasses six (6) of the proposed 
reserves or building sites, and a portion of two (2) others.  The WFBMD’s standards will play a role in the future 
development of those sites. 

The proposed Plat also constitutes a partial replat of Fifty-Nine South Industrial Park, originally platted in 
1981.  That being said, a public hearing was held when the Preliminary Plat came before the Planning 
Commission on December 18, 2013.  The Preliminary Plat was approved by the Commission.  City staff has 
reviewed the proposed Final Plat and has found it not to be in conflict with any regulations.  Staff 
recommends that the Planning Commission recommend approval to City Council of the Final Plat of 
Walsh Road Industrial Park.

Key Discussion: 
� Mr. Tanner presented the item and reviewed the Executive Summary. 
� Commissioner Parsons inquired if there were any changes from the Preliminary Plat. 
� Mr. Tanner replied that there were changes but nothing to affect compliance with the regulations. 

Action Taken:  Commissioner Parsons moved, seconded by Commissioner Poldrack, to recommend 
approval to City Council of the Final Plat of Walsh Road Industrial Park, a subdivision of 24.259 acres of 
land overall being a partial replat of Reserve “C” (call 14.2272 acres – Tract I; Fort Bend County Clerk’s File 
No. 2013125509) and a partial replat of Reserve “D” (call 7.9822 acres – Tract II & call 2.0025 acres – Tract 
III; Fort Bend County Clerk’s File No. 2013125509) of Fifty-Nine South Industrial Park Subdivision (Volume 27, 
Page 11; Plat Records of Fort Bend County, Texas) being in the Henry Scott Survey, Abstract No. 83, City 
Of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas; 0 lots, 20 reserves, 3 blocks. 

Additional Discussion: 
� Chairperson Pavlovsky inquired if any consideration had been given to the turn on Klauke Road. 
� Mr. Tanner replied that is a unique intersection.  We did not look at it with this development as they 

are just north of that intersection and they do not own any of that ROW.  It is not anything we 
have specifically looked at. 

� Chairperson Pavlovsky stated that it may be a good idea to look at that before changing 
addresses to avoid confusion. 

Action Taken:  Upon voting, the motion carried unanimously by those present.  

reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
May 20, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

C Resolution No. R-1784 – Fort Bend County Emergency Management Plan 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1784, a Resolution approving the Fort Bend County 
Emergency Management Plan and authorizing the City's participation in the Plan.  

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
 

1. Resolution No. R-1784 
2. Approval and Implementation Page 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 
Dallis Warren 
Police Chief 
 

Reviewed by:  
  
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Fort Bend County Office of Emergency Management updated the Emergency Management Basic Plan 
(Plan).   The City of Rosenberg is an inter-jurisdictional City by participating in and adopting the Plan.  This Plan 
was last updated and approved in 2010.  Changes to the Plan are summarized below: 

• Added some acronyms and definitions in the Explanation of Terms 
• Updated the Hazard Summary table  
• Updated the Volunteer & Other Services portion of Assignment of Responsibilities to reflect the 

local non-profits. 
• Included the County Alt EOC under Emergency Facilities 
• Updated some of the hazard definitions in Readiness Levels section 
• Added in a paragraph on retention of emergency operations records – post incident     
• Consolidated the EOP distribution list 
• Updated Attachment 6: Summary of Agreements to include additional MOUs and added in 

expiration dates 
• Updated Attachment 7: NIMS Summary 

  
The Texas Division of Emergency Management requires that they receive the updated Basic Plan and all 
Annexes at least every five (5) years.  
 
Staff recommends the approval of Resolution No. R-1784 approving and implementing the Plan. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1784 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, APPROVING THE FORT BEND 
COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PLAN AND 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY’S PARTICIPATION IN THE PLAN.  
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, 
TEXAS: 
 

Section 1. The City Council hereby approves the Fort Bend County 
Emergency Management Plan (Plan). 
 

Section 2. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute all 
documentation regarding same. 

 
Section 3. A copy of such Plan is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and 

made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2014. 
 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED: 
 
 
 
__________________________   __________________________ 
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 



EMERGENCY 
MANAGEMENT 

BASIC PLAN 

Fort Bend County 

I NTERJ U RISDICTIONAL 
EMERGENCY 

MANAGEMENT 

reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1784



APPROVAL & IMPLEMENTATION 

FORT BEND COUNTY 

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PLAN 

This Emergency Management Plan is hereby approved. This plan 1s effective 
immediately and supercedes all previous editions. 

Fort Bend County 

Date Signed 

4(t"{t4 
Date Signed 









































































































APPROVAL & IMPLEMENTATION 
 
 

FORT BEND COUNTY 
 

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 
 
 

This Emergency Management Plan is hereby approved.  This plan is effective 
immediately and supercedes all previous editions. 
 
 
 
 
City of Rosenberg 
 
 
 
_________________________    ____________________ 
Mayor        Date Signed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attest 
 
 
 
_________________________    ____________________ 
Name        Date Signed 
 
_________________________             
Title 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 

May 20, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

2 Presentation Regarding a Proposed Eagle Scout Project for Seabourne 
Creek Regional Sports Complex – Bat Habitat Project 

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Hear and discuss a presentation regarding a proposed Eagle Scout Project to build a bat habitat for 
Seabourne Creek Regional Sports Complex, and take action as necessary. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds: N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[X] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
 

1. Presentation – Seabourne Creek Park Bat Roosting Box Conservation Project Proposal 
2. Parks and Recreation Board Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt – 04-24-14 

 
APPROVALS 
Submitted by:   

Darren McCarthy  
Parks and Recreation 
Director 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services 
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services   
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[X] Exec. Dir. of Support Services  

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council:   
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On April 24, 2014, David Langford of Troop 1000 presented a proposed Eagle Scout Project (Project) to 
build and install bat habitat boxes to be placed in Seabourne Creek Regional Sports Complex (SCRSC) to 
the Parks and Recreation Board (Board).  After reviewing his presentation regarding bat habitat boxes in 
SCRSC, the Board unanimously recommended the Project plan for approval as presented. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the proposed Eagle Scout Project at Seabourne Creek Nature Park based 
upon David Langford’s presentation and the recommendation of the Parks and Recreation Board. 
 
 



Seabourne Creek Park Bat Roosting 
Box Conservation Project Proposal 

David Langford 
Eagle Project 

Troop 1000 



   Project Plan  
• I propose building (2) Three Chamber Nursery Bat 

Houses designed to hold up to 300 bats per box. 
Each house will be mounted on a pole. They will be 
placed southeast of the tree line nearest the sports 
stadium. 

• Due to the complexities of constructing bat houses 
suitable for colonization, I will purchase them 
approved and certified by Bat Conservation 
International (BCI). Each bat house will be mounted 
on a 4”x6” pressure treated pole approximately 15’ 
to 20’ feet in height. The base of the poles will be set 
in concrete. 

 
 



Project Purpose 
• The Bat Houses will provide habitat to support a population 

of up to 600 bats. The primary benefits of attracting bats to 
this area are: 

1. Bats are voracious insect eaters.  It is estimated that each 
bat will consume the equivalent of it’s own body weight in 
mosquitos each night.  

2. 600 bats eating mosquitos each night will positively impact 
the sports complex usability.  

3. Bats are pollinators which benefit everyone through 
pollination of crops and native wild plants. 

 
 



Baseball fields 

Parking lot 

Purposed area of box 
locations  

Aerial 



Estimated cost of project 
• (2) Three Chamber Nursery Bat House  
     300 bat capacity             $263.99 each 
• Bolts, nuts and washers (galvanized):  $ 20.00  
• Cement:                                               $ 45.00   
• Two 4”x6”x 16’ pressure treated beam: $ 39.95 each 
• Two 4”x6”x 8’ pressure treated beam:   $ 18.95 each 
___________________________________________________ 
  Total:    $710.78 
 
*Funds will be raised by Eagle Scout candidate David 
Langford. 



DRAFT 

PAGE 1 of 1  PARKS & RECREATION BOARD DRAFT MEETING MINUTES  APRIL 24, 2014. 
 

 CITY OF ROSENBERG 
PARKS AND RECREATION BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

*** DRAFT *** 
 
On this the 24th day of April 2014, the Parks and Recreation Board of the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, 
Texas, met in a Regular Session at Rosenberg Civic Center located at 3825 Hwy. 36 South, Rosenberg, Texas. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT  
Teresa Bailey 
Stanley Kucherka 
Bertha Nell Kelm 
Melissa Dixon 
Laurie Cook 
Rudy Guerrero 
Ray Kueck 
Eric Ramirez 
George Zepeda 
Amanda Bolf 
 

Parks and Recreation Board Chairman  
Parks and Recreation Board Vice Chairman  
Parks and Recreation Board Secretary  
Parks and Recreation Board Member 
Parks and Recreation Board Member 
Parks and Recreation Board Member 
Parks and Recreation Board Member 
Parks and Recreation Board Member 
Parks and Recreation Board Member  
Council Liaison 
 

MEMBERS ABSENT  
Laurie Cook 
Rufus Guebara 
 

Parks and Recreation Board Member 
Parks and Recreation Board Member  
 

STAFF PRESENT  
Jeff Trinker 
Darren McCarthy 
Lydia Acosta 
 

Executive Director of Support Services 
Parks and Recreation Director  
Recreation Programs Coordinator 

GUESTS PRESENT  
JoAnna Wilkes 
Josh Cullen 
Rick Adams 
Muid Ali 
David Langford 

Thrive Church 
Thrive Church 
Texas Master Naturalists 
Eagle Scout Candidate, Troop 797 
Eagle Scout Candidate, Troop 1000 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
 
CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON PROPOSED EAGLE SCOUT PROJECT BY DAVID LANGFORD OF 
TROOP 1000 IN SEABOURNE CREEK REGIONAL SPORTS COMPLEX.   
 
Key Discussion:  Darren McCarthy, Parks and Recreation Director, introduced Eagle Scout candidate David 
Langford of Troop 1000. David asked the Board for permission to build two (2) multi-chamber, bat houses, 
capable of holding up to six hundred (600) bats and shared a presentation which outlined the purpose of the 
project, the materials to be used and the cost of the project. The bat houses would be mounted on sixteen (16) 
foot poles and placed in the field near the parking lot of the sports complex. David added that by creating a 
home for the bats, it would help control the mosquito population at the Sports Complex, thereby benefitting all 
who use the facility. Darren added that visitors to the Sports Complex would likely never see the bats, as they 
are nocturnal and very wary of people, noise and activity.  
 
ACTION:  Ray Kueck made a motion, seconded by Bertha Nell Kelm, to approve the proposed Eagle Scout 
project in Seabourne Creek Regional Sports Complex. The motion passed by a unanimous vote of those 
present.   
 
 

reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 

May 20, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

3 Presentation Regarding a Proposed Eagle Scout Project for Sunset Park 
– Bleacher Restoration 

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Hear and discuss a presentation regarding a proposed Eagle Scout Project to restore bleachers for Sunset 
Park, and take action as necessary. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds: N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[X] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
 

1. Presentation – Eagle Scout Project – Muid Ali, Troop 797 
2. Parks and Recreation Board Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt – 04-24-14 

 
APPROVALS 
Submitted by:   

 
 
Darren McCarthy  
Parks and Recreation Director 

Reviewed by: 
   
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services     
[   ] City Attorney 
[   ] City Engineer 
[X] Exec. Dir. of Support Services  

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council:   
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On April 24, 2014, Muid Ali of Troop 797 presented a proposed Eagle Scout Project (Project) to be placed 
in Sunset Park to the Parks and Recreation Board (Board).  After reviewing his presentation regarding the 
proposal to restore bleachers, the Board unanimously recommended the Project plan for approval as 
presented. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the proposed Eagle Scout Project at Brazos Park based upon Muid Ali’s 
presentation and the recommendation of the Parks and Recreation Board. 
 
 



















DRAFT 

PAGE 1 of 1  PARKS & RECREATION BOARD MEETING DRAFT MINUTES  APRIL 24, 2014. 
 

 CITY OF ROSENBERG 
PARKS AND RECREATION BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

*** DRAFT *** 
 
On this the 24th day of April 2014, the Parks and Recreation Board of the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, 
Texas, met in a Regular Session at Rosenberg Civic Center located at 3825 Hwy. 36 South, Rosenberg, Texas. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT  
Teresa Bailey 
Stanley Kucherka 
Bertha Nell Kelm 
Melissa Dixon 
Laurie Cook 
Rudy Guerrero 
Ray Kueck 
Eric Ramirez 
George Zepeda 
Amanda Bolf 
 

Parks and Recreation Board Chairman  
Parks and Recreation Board Vice Chairman  
Parks and Recreation Board Secretary  
Parks and Recreation Board Member 
Parks and Recreation Board Member 
Parks and Recreation Board Member 
Parks and Recreation Board Member 
Parks and Recreation Board Member 
Parks and Recreation Board Member  
Council Liaison 
 

MEMBERS ABSENT  
Laurie Cook 
Rufus Guebara 
 

Parks and Recreation Board Member 
Parks and Recreation Board Member  
 

STAFF PRESENT  
Jeff Trinker 
Darren McCarthy 
Lydia Acosta 
 

Executive Director of Support Services 
Parks and Recreation Director  
Recreation Programs Coordinator 

GUESTS PRESENT  
JoAnna Wilkes 
Josh Cullen 
Rick Adams 
Muid Ali 
David Langford 

Thrive Church 
Thrive Church 
Texas Master Naturalists 
Eagle Scout Candidate, Troop 797 
Eagle Scout Candidate, Troop 1000 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON PROPOSED EAGLE SCOUT PROJECT BY MUID ALI OF TROOP 
797 IN SUNSET PARK.   
 
Key Discussion:  Darren McCarthy, Parks and Recreation Director, introduced Eagle Scout candidate Muid Ali 
of Troop 797 to the Board. Muid showed the Members a visual presentation on his request to refurbish a set of 
bleachers that was removed from Sunset Park because of its dangerous condition. Muid outlined the materials 
that would be used, the cost of the project and the timeframe. He further noted that the original frame of the 
bleachers would be salvaged and repaired for reuse. Once completed the bleacher would be moved back into 
Sunset Park to be used by Rosenberg National Little League and the public. Darren told the Board that Muid 
would be working under the supervision of Rick Adams and the Texas Master Naturalists and if approved, the 
item would be going before Council on May 20th. Teresa Bailey expressed her excitement over the project. Ray 
Kueck asked if there was any liability to the Board for approving the project; Darren explained that Parks Board 
is an advisory Board and per Ordinance bears no liability for their recommendations to Council.  George Zepeda 
asked if the frame of the bleacher had been had been inspected for its integrity and Darren confirmed that it had 
and was found to be in good shape.  
 
ACTION:  George Zepeda made a motion, seconded by Eric Ramirez, to approve the proposed Eagle Scout 
project in Sunset Park. The motion passed by a unanimous vote of those present.   
 

reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
May 20, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

4 Resolution No. R-1795 – Termination of General Services Contract for 
Grounds Maintenance Services 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1795, a Resolution authorizing the termination of the 
General Services Contract for Grounds Maintenance Services by and between the City and Original DKC 
Enterprises, LLC; and, authorizing the City Manager to execute, for and on behalf of the City, any and/or 
all necessary documentation regarding same. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[X] Recurring 
[   ] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[X] Yes  [   ] No  [   ] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
1. Resolution No. R-1795 
2. Resolution No. R-1746 - 04-01-14 
3. Caldwell Termination Email Correspondence – 05-10-14 
4. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 04-01-14 

 

APPROVALS 
Submitted by:   

 
 
Darren McCarthy 
Parks and Recreation 
Director 
 

Reviewed by:  
  
[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[X] Asst. City Manager of Public Services 
[X] Executive Director of Support Services  
[X] City Attorney LJL/rl 
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other)

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On Tuesday, April 01, 2014, City Council approved Resolution No. R-1746 awarding Bid Number 2014-02 for 
Grounds Maintenance Services to Original DKC Enterprises, LLC (DKC), for a one (1) year term effective April 
09, 2014, though April 10, 2015. The services included mowing at the following City locations: Rosenberg City 
Hall, Rosenberg Police Department, Rosenberg Civic Center, Rosenberg Fire Department Administration 
Building, Rosenberg Fire Departments No. 1, No. 2 and No. 3, the Rosenberg Cemetery, Water Plants, and Lift 
Stations.  
 
On May 10, 2014, staff received email correspondence from Donna Caldwell of DKC notifying the City that the 
company was choosing to terminate the existing Contract due to their inability to meet the City’s performance 
standards. The General Services Contract (Contract) includes a provision located in Section II. Standard 
Contractual Provisions, C. Termination Provisions (2) that states, “Either Party to this Contract may terminate 
this Contract as provided in this paragraph if the other part fails to comply with its term.” In order to proceed with 
the selection of an alternate bidder, staff recommends the termination of the existing Contract. In a subsequent 
Agenda item, staff will be seeking City Council’s direction on the selection of another vendor to provide these 
services. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1795, a Resolution authorizing the termination of the General 
Services Contract for Grounds Maintenance Services, by and between the City and Original DKC Enterprises, 
LLC; and, authorizing the City Manager to execute, for and on behalf of the City, any and/or all required 
documentation regarding same. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1795 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE TERMINATION OF A 
GENERAL SERVICES CONTRACT FOR GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 
SERVICES BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, 
AND ORIGINAL DKC ENTERPRISES, LLC; AND, AUTHORIZING THE 
CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY 
OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, ANY AND/OR ALL NECESSARY 
DOCUMENTATION REGARDING SAME. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The City Council of the City of Rosenberg hereby terminates the 

General Services Contract for Grounds Maintenance Services, by and between the City 

of Rosenberg, Texas, and Original DKC Enterprises, LLC, and authorizes the City 

Manager to execute any and/or all necessary documentation regarding same. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2014. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, CITY SECRETARY   Vincent M. Morales, Jr., MAYOR 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R -1746

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AWARDING BID NO. 2014 -02 FOR GROUNDS
MAINTENANCE SERVICES; AND, AUTHORIZING THE CITY

MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF
OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, APPROPRIATE

DOCUMENTS AND /OR AGREEMENTS REGARDING SAME. 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

Section 1. The approval and award of Bid No. 2014 -02 to

Original DKC Enterprises, lLCin the amount of $ 40, 606. 50 for Grounds

Maintenance Services. 

Section 2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to negotiate and execute

any documentation necessary to facilitate said project. 

Section 3. A copy of the Proposal is attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and made

a part hereof for all purposes. 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this I day of 2014. 

ATTEST: 

indi Cernosek, City Secretary

Ujc
F  

1

APPROVED: 



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R -1746

OK ' ser "
AGlahafSaunarr r»l̂ces CPm_""rrv" 

March 18, 2014

Darren McCarthy, Parks
and Recreation Director

P. O. Box 32

2110 4th Street

Rosenberg, TX 77471 -0032

Bid #: 2014 -02

Original DKC Enterprises, LLC is a State of Texas certified vendor Service Disabled Veteran Owned Business
located at 5330 Griggs Rd., Ste A 114, Box 57, Houston, TX 77021. We have been in business for over eighteen ( 18) 
years providing Facilities Support Services to organizations such as: Federal Aviation Administration ( FAA) at
Hobby Airport Houston TX, Department of Veterans Affairs National Cemetery Administration, Soldiers Lot
Cemetery, Baxter Springs, KS, Houston Independent School ( HISD) and more. 

We are capable ofproviding grounds maintenance services as outlined in published Technical Specifications at
frequency listed at amount stated for one ( I) base year and one ( 1) additional year for price given. 

Upon award we will reach out to City of Rosenberg's POC and schedule a meeting to discuss contract requirements
and service frequency. DKC will draft a service scheduled for approval by City of Rosenberg POC and discuss
clients immediate concerns. We will let the City POC review our equipment and at this time present them with
Material Safety Data Sheets for chemicals and supplies we plan on using. 

A work Order will be created and every time we provided a service to one of the agreed upon locations we will have
this work order sent to City of Rosenberg POC. Once services have been completed we will ask City ofRosenberg
POC to inspect the site. if work meets with POC's approval we will ask him to sign off on the work as " Accepted ". 

Once work is accepted we will then submit a invoice for payment itemizing the work completed on the project. At a
minimum the invoice will reflect: PO #, City of Rosenberg POC, location of work, arrival time of services, Amount of
services. 

Insur0nce

Original DKC Enterprises, LLC is insured and carry's Commercial General Liability, Commercial Workers
Compensation, and Commercial Automobile. Once awarded project we will have our agent add the City of
Rosenberg on our policies as an additional insurer. 

Involcine

Once work has been signed off as accepted as we mentioned prior we will create a invoice with services itemized to
lient a 1% discount off agreed upon price if our invoices are honored within
agreed upon at contract award. 

ponded to your request for proposal. 

5330 Griggs RA, Me A714, Box s7
Nousran, TX 77021

713) 52.3. 1202 ( OJjee); ( 713) 523 -1312 ( Far) 
rk •2004us0whaamm

w dkcenr Prises! wm



Original DKC Enterprises LLC

Reference List

Minor MaintenanceProjects Less than 25K

Name of Contracting Activity or HISD Houston Independent School District 4400 West 18" 

Customer. Street Houston TX 77092

Contract/Purchase Order Number: Firm Fixed Priced & Indefinite Delivery Indefinite Quantity

Contract Value: 

IDI

Contract Period of Performance: January 2010
Contract Value:- 750,000. 00 To date - 

Detailed Description of Services Minor Maintenance Projects less than 25K services to include: 

Performed: constructions trades ( i. e. carpenters, plumbers, electricians, 

general labors, dry wall hangers, framers), landscape /grounds
maintenance, new installation and restoration services, sidewalk

additions, repairs, new installation, hard surface restriping
services to include: parking lots, play grounds and warehouse
floors, painting, dry erase boards installation and restoration; 
building of storage sheds to include electrical outlets and lights
and approved ADA ramps, modular building demolishing, 
recycling, general labor, site cleaning and restoration services, 
installation of fencing to include OSHA approved construction
fencing, silt fencing, wood fencing and more. Pull City Permits
for as required and disposal of all debris in accordance with
COH Policies. Door hardware installation, repair and removal to

include emergency doors. Remodeling of restrooms and shower
areas in boys and girls locker rooms and gyms across the district

to include the resurfacing and replacement of shower and tubs. 

Coontracting Officer or COTR Point of Mr. Darrell Turner 713 -556 -9303 dturne2Qhoustonisd.org
Contact: Phone and E -Mail: Mr. Willie Burrow hs 713 -556 -9309 w urrou houstoni or

Mr. Damien SterlingProject Manager: 

Oneratians and Maintenance

Name of Contracting Activity or
Customer: 

Department ofInterior, U.S. Geological Survey Data Center, 
47914 252nd St. , Sioux Falls, SD 57198

Contract/Parebase Order Number: G1OPC00079 /G11PDO0461 R 3, Firm Fixed Price/ Indefinite

Delivery Indefinite Quantity IDl
Contract Period of Performance: Aril 1 2012 thru Present ( Option Year 2

Contract Value: 9, 796,400.00

5330 Griggs Rd, Sr. A114, Box 57

Houston, TX 77021

713) 523 .1202(0Q7tt);( 713) S23. 1312( F44
dke200 WM whoo.cnm

www.AkremrrorisesLcom



Performed: 

Provides the Operations and Maintenance Services at the Earth
Resources Observation Systems ( EROS) Data Center, Sioux
Falls, South Dakota. EROS maintains the world' s largest
remote sensing archive. DKC provides all management, labor, 
supervision, administration, and technical support to plan, 
schedule, coordinate and perform facilities maintenance for the
EROS Data Center, The EROS Data Center is the largest owned
facility in the U.S. Geological Survey. The Center is the world' s
most extensive repository of remotely sensed data on the Earth' s
land surface. The Center is situated in rural South Dakota on
318 acres, with approximately 300,000 square feet of space, 
housing 30,000 square feet of computer space, 42, 000 square
feet of film archive and tape library, and is composed of a Main
Building, Maintenance Garage, Facility Support Building and
Heavy Equipment Building. 

DKC provides management duties to include planning, drafting
services ( CADD), scheduling, cost accounting, implementation
of TMA automated work control system, report preparation, 

design all interior communications systems to include fiber optic
cabling and high speed telemetry cabling, implement and
maintain a quality control program. We perform operations and
preventative maintenance of all heating and cooling systems, 
computer room package units, chillers, electric heat and pre- 

heating units, thermostats, mixing boxes, VAV systems, and
specialty heating and cooling systems in the photographic
laboratory. We operate and maintain all water supply and waste
water systems to include waste water treatment utilizing 4
aeration ponds and a fifth evaporation pond, maintain all

plumbing, piping, and potable water systems above and below
ground to include one 160, 000 gallon water tower. DKC also
operates, maintains, repairs all government owned lawn and
grounds maintenance equipment, trucks, tractors, grader, front - 
end loader, vans and cars. We install and maintain all interior
communications cabling and systems to support satellite systems
operations at the EROS center. DKC installs and maintains all

interior and outside cabling for the communication and network
cabling at the center, all video- conferencing, radio, and paging
equipment. We also install and maintain cabling for high -speed

communications interfaces, including multiple OC -3 circuits, 
and disperse, monitor and maintain computerized fuel farm of
diesel and gasoline to include 4 underground fuel tanks with
over 14, 000 gallons of fuel. DKC performs grounds

maintenance and snow removal for improved and unimproved

grounds for 318 acres utilizing mowers, brush hogs, front -end
loader, grader and snow blowers to clear snow from roads

330 Griggs Rd., St. AI70, Box 57
Homion, 7X77011

713) 313 .1101(Ofj7m):( 713)313. 1311(FaV
dke70Mla a Ijao ro+n

www " tWmrlsaLl



Professional Window Washlne

Name of Contracting Activity or

sidewalks, docks and maintain grounds. 

Contracting Officer or COTR Point of
Contact Phone and E -Mail: 

Mr. Dan Wray, (605) 594 -6541, wrav(a usas.eov

Project Manager: Mr. Rod Beck

Professional Window Washlne

Name of Contracting Activity or Department of Veterans Affairs, Michael E. De Bakey Medical
Customer: Center, 2002 Holcombe Blvd. Houston TX 77030

Contract/Purchase Order Number: VA256 -P -0991

Contract Period of Performance: October 1, 2012 thru September 30, 2013 Option Year1

Contract Value 236,532. 00 Firm Fixed Priced

Detailed Description of Services

October I, 2011 thru September 30, 2012 Option Year 2

Performed: 
Furnish all personnel, supervision, and other services necessary
to clean all windows inside in and out Main Hospital which

consist of six ( 6) floors a 1 million square foot medical facility, 
all Bus Shelters located on VA Campus, several additional

Performed: 

office facilities to include research labs, kennels, gym areas, 

secured areas and lodging facilities. 

Contracting Officer or COTR Point of Wanda Thomas, Contracting Officer, wanda.thomas2 va. eov; 
Contact Phone, and E -Mail: 713) 794- 7405

Project Manager: I Mr. Demetrio Luna

Custodial Services Houston National Cemetery

Name of Contracting Activity or DEPARTMENT OF VETERANSAFFAIRS

Customer: National- Cemetery Administration
155 Van Gordon Street Suite 510 Lakewood CO 80228

Contract/Purchase Order Number; VA85IJ25012 - Custodial Services for the Houston National
Cemeter — Firm Fixed Priced

Contract Period of Performance: October I, 2011 thru September 30, 2012 Option Year 2

Contract Value: 250, 181. 01

Detailed Description of Services Provide janitorial services to Administrative Office, Chapel, 

Performed: Hemicycle Restrooms, Maintenance Lunch Room, Maintenance

Change Room, Foreman' s Office and Maintenance Computer

Room, Empty trash cans and replace liners as needed. All
floors, including the offices, to be sweep and mopped each visit. 
Spot clean walls and all vertical surfaces. Glass entrance doors

to be cleaned and shined daily. All restrooms and change rooms
cleaned daily. 

Contracting Officer or COTR Point of Garry L. Harris, MBA; Contracting Officer, 
Contact, Phone, and E -Mail: Garry.Harris3@va.gov

Phone: 303 914 5710; Fax: 303 914 5715

Project Manager. Keith Caldwell

5330 Griggs Rd., SY. A110, Box S7
Hourmn, TX 77021

713) 523- 1202(afn);(713) S23- 1312(Fax) 
dkc70004srrhoa.m

www.dkmnf wWses1. com



C •stodta! Services Brazorig Comity Facil &M
Brazoria County Purchasing Department, 111 E. Locust Street, Name of Contracting Activity or

Customer: Bldg. A -29, Suite 100, Angleton, TX 77515
Order Number: PON1200651

Contract/Purchase Contract Period of October 1, 2011 thru September 30, 2012 Option Year 3
Performance: 

Detailed Description of Services

Contract Value: 2, 727,000. 00. 

Regional Airport areas included area: Airways Facilities and Air

Janitorial Services for over Forty Five (45) facilities total over
Detailed Description of Services 450, 245 square feet of office space, public health clinics, tax
Performed: offices, court houses, jury rooms, warghouse space, maintenance

offices, museum, libraries adult and juvenile probation offices

A i rm ° and detention centers. DKC provides all supplies to include
r r r toilet paper, hard soap, hard roll hand towels, trash liners and

chemicals to clean. 

Contracting Officer or COTR Point of Dennis Cleveland, Superintendent of Facilities

Contact, Phone, and E -Mail: denniscfalbrazoria -coun . com; Phone Number: ( 979) 864- 

1567

Project Manager: Keith Caldwell

t i aAn t0 C

Name of Contracting Activity or Federal Aviation Administration(FAA), Waco Regional

Customer: Airport, RR 10 Box 176, Waco, TX 76708

Contract/Purchase Order Number: DTFACN -12 -C -00053

Contract Period ofPerformance: October 1 thru September 30, 2013 Option Year 2

Contract Value 55, 000.00 Firm Fixed Priced

Detailed Description of Services Provide professional janitorial services to FAA at Waco, TX

Performed: Regional Airport areas included area: Airways Facilities and Air
Traffic Offices, Equipment Rooms, TROCON Room, Air
Traffic Control Tower Cab, Halls, stairways, and landings, 
Employee, break rooms, locker rooms and restrooms. Services

include: annual stripping & waxing, removal of trash, cleaning
of kitchen appliances, sweeping and mopping of floors, buffing
floors, cleaning of cab glass monthly to include shades. 

Contracting Officer or COTR Point of Patricia Dingler, Contracting Officer, Office Number: ( 817) 222. 
Contact, Phone and E -Mail: 4393, a ' ' . din Icy f a. v

I Mr. Buck RogersProject MaanLrL, 

Name of Contracting Activity or Department of Veterans Affairs, MichaelE. De Bakey
I renter. 2002 Holcombe Blvd., Houston, TX 77030

5330 Cdggs Rd., SY. A114, Box S7
Mums; rX 77027

713) 513- 1101(OJjre) ;(713)523. 1312(Fa4
11kc1004umaa nhaa.mm

www dkceale•adse9I.eam



Contract/Purchase Order Number: PO #: RI 1803

Contract Period of Performance: October 1 2012 thru September 30 2013 Option Year2

Contract Value: 236, 532. 00 Firm Fixed Priced

Detailed Description of Services Sub floor repairs, exhaust fan maintenance, VCT flooring
Performed: installation, repair and removal; roof repair; electrical repairs; 

Detailed Description of Services

HVAC maintenance and repair; appliance repair and install; 
AM door repair and installation to include emergency exits; grout

repair, interior and exterior painting; ceiling tile repairs and
installation, light bulb changing services; pressure washing

TEXAS

services and more

Contracting Officer or COTR Point of William Aguilar, Contracting Officer, 794 -7405
Contact, Phone, and E -Mail: 

Pro' eM Mana er: I Mr. Demetrio Luna

Locksmith Servkes Contract

Name of Contracting Activity or Texas Department ofHealth and Human Services, 5425 Polk
Customer: Str, St 250, Houston TX 77023

Contract/Purchase Order Number: PO #:52900 -3- 000067476

Contract Period of Performance: October 1 2012 thru September 30 2013 Base Year

Contract Value 30, 000.00 Firm Fixed Priced — 1DI

Detailed Description of Services Provide Professional Locksmith Services to all HHSC facilities

Performed: and partnering agencies Region 6. Services include recoiling
Simplex Locking systems, Providing replacement keys, 

TEXAS
installing new locks as requested. 

Health xd Human

Services Syskm

Contracting Officer or COTR Point of Tracee Glaze - Williamson, Contracting Officer, 713- 767 -2420; 
Contact Phone and E -Mail: ll h c. 

Project Manager: Mr. Damion Sterling

Handyman Services Contract

Name of Contracting Activity or Texas Department ofHealth and Human Services, 5425 Polk
Customer: Str., St 250, Houston TX 77023

Contract/Purchase Order Number: PO #: 52900. 3- 000067476

Contract Period of Performance: October 1, 2012 thru September 30, 2013 Base Year

Contract Value 20,000. 00 Firm Fixed Priced — IDI ) 

Detailed Description of Services Provide Professional Handyman Services to all HHSC facilities
Performed: and partnering agencies Region 6. Services include: minor

repair of office furniture, flooring repair and installation
ELAN

TEXAS
services, installation of solar shades, painting services, carpentry
services, general labor services and more. 

Health and Human
Services syntem

5330 Griggs Rd, A A114, Box 57
11" slon, TX 77021

713) 523- 1202( Qh'ice) ;( 713)523- 1312(Fox) 
dke2004u.PZmhmcoa

www.dkeenternrisesl.con, 



Contracting Officer or COTR Point of Tracee Glaze- Williamson, Contracting Officer, 713 -767- 2420; 
Contac Phon and E-Mail: Traces Willlameond0ON state ix us

Pro eet Mao em Mr, Damion Sterling

5330 Cr)WRd, AAIIJ, Eox57
Hoomm, 7X77011

713) 513. 1101(OJfra) , 1713) 573.1311(Far) 
dwelIUMMMAte m



O
r

l
y

O
f

r. -
1

10- 

ills, 
1

0, 
V

r. 

I
n
" 

10 o
n
, 

Nr. -
1

10- 

ills, 1
0, 

V

r. I
n
" 10





m

r
,
 

A

b
6» 

m 2

W@CL

3
c

a
W@E0

o0

I-
 

L
L
L
\ 

K
o

u

O

A

b
6» 

m 2

W@CL

3
c

a
W@E0

2

L

k
LU

G
f

Io

k
k §}

w
2

r

0
m

83

464a$
2

2
c

It



1
1



SIV" BAi
U. S. Small Business Administration

Houston District

Success Story

DKC Enterprises

tjflpj" 
DKC Enterprises, originally started as a means to
supplement income, has grown into a successful company
with over twelve years of experience offering customized
facilities support from janitorial services, landscaping, 
electrical, plumbing, carpentry, and other handyman type
services. DKC had a very humble beginning, recalls
president and owner Donna Caldwell. 

Service disabled veteran, Caldwell, had difficulty finding employment after her discharge
from the US Air Force in 1992. After a few months of minimum wage jobs, Caldwell

landed a job at Syscom Development Inc. a minority owned company that supported
Lockheed at NASA Johnson Space Center. Here she honed her skills in government

contracting, mentoring, and certifications. In need of extra cash, Caldwell purchased $ 40
worth of cleaning products and a vacuum cleaner and worked part time cleaning houses
for realtors. After being laid off from Syscom Development two years later, Caldwell
devoted full time to herjanitorial business. 

Through a contact, Caldwell learned about an opportunity to bid with the Michael E
DeBakey VA Medical Center. She bid on the job and was awarded her very first
government contract. DKC currently holds four contracts with the VA Medical Center. 
Upon realizing that the building she offices was located in a HUB Zone, she researched
the HUB Zone program and was later certified as a HUB Zone by the U. S. SmaJI
Business Administration. Soon after, DKC landed their first Total HUB Zone contract

with the U. S. Corp of Engineers Division Fort Worth. They also hold two small business
contracts with the Federal Aviation Administration and support the General Services
Administration ( GSA) at Hobby Airport on a Total Hub Zone contract. 

DKC was on a successful growth path but was interrupted when Hurricane Ike ravaged
the Texas gulf coast last fall creating problems for many Texas residents. DKC' s office
was without electricity for two weeks. Caldwell applied and was approved for an SBA
Economic Injury Disaster program loan. Even with this setback, Caldwell is determined
to persevere and focus on success. " DKC is focused on consistent success through

proven results, innovation and the relentless pursuits of fulfilling our client needs," said
Caldwell. 

Today, DKC is an active member of the National HUB Zone council, whose members
meet once a year in Washington DC. They are also active members of the Houston
Minority Business Council and the Women' s Enterprises Business Alliance. DKC has



successfully completed contracts with the Department of Veteran Affairs, La Marque
ISD, GSA, and the United Parcel Service. ' They employ over twenty dedicated full time
people. 

Donna Caldwell is a proud advocate for veterans and volunteers her experience and
advice to other veterans and service disabled veteran business owners. " I enjoy working
with Veteran owned businesses because the same qualities which have enabled them to
successfully defend our nation carry over into the business;' said Caldwell. Her
advocacy and commitment to help veterans led her tD win the 2009 Veteran Small
Business Champion of the Year award at the SBA Houston District and Regional levels. 

DKC Enterprises is located at 5330 Griggs Rd., Ste. A 114, Houston, TX 77021. 

Is your business successful? Would you like to be featured
on our local webpage? 

In our efforts to recognize the achievements of small businesses, the Houston District Office
features success stories on our webslte. The small business success stories are selected by
the district office, and represent small businesses that have received services from SBA
and /or our Resource Partners. 

All success stories are entered into our Washington database. Some are featured in our SBA
Houston e- Newsletters and are submitted to local newspapers, associations, chambers of
commerce, and community newsletters for publication. 

To qualify for consideration a small business must meet the following criteria: 

1. Recelve assistance from SBA or a Resource Partners, I. e., SCORE and Small Business
Development Centers ( SBDCs) 

2. Must be In business minimum of three years
3. Owner must sign Consent Form

If you would like our district office to consider your business for a small business success
story, please contact our Public Information officer at 713 - 773 -6516 or email at
Valerle nauven(&sba aoy. Please note some small businesses may also be included in public
officials' speeches. 



TIN on Pepe 3. 

Note. If the account is in more than one home, see the chart on page 4 for guidelines on whose
number to enter. 

Under penalties of perjury, I certify that

1. The numbershown on this form Is my correct taxpayer dentiiicatlon number ( a I am walling for a number to be Issued tome). and

2. 1 am not subject to badNp withhokHg because: ( a) I am exempt from backup wmefolding, or ( b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue
Service ORS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or ( a) the IRS has notified me that 14M
no lager subject to backup Withholding, and

3. 1 am a U. S. citizen or other U. S. person ( defined be". 

out hem 2 above it you have been notified by the IRS gal you we cunanilyaugacl to backup wM1thhoki g
I and dividends on your tax return. For mal selate tors. Item 2 does not apply. Far manage
fsecuredproperty, an Individual raWwwwrlt amentia letf!", and
tlNderlrlajyo la= but yid rust provid e your corn« TIN. Sea tls

ofn 
General Instructions ) 
Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise
noted. 

Purpose of Form
A parson who Is required to file an Information return vMh the IRS must
oil= Yale correct twpaywk% nbkaftonumber ( 11N) to repot for
axampla, Ywnnre l aidloyou. real awk aegectbro, nartgape interest
you paid, acquisition or abwh* NWeenl of Becra l property. cancellation
of debt orcmbftt& m you made to an 1Rk

Lose Forth W - 9 any t you ere a U. S. person ( including a resident
Wien), to provide your correct TN to the person requesting it ( the
requeste0 and, when applicable, to: 

1. Certify that the TIN you we gi 4 g Is correct ( or you are waiting for e
number to be Issued), 

2. Certify that you am not subject to backup withholding, or
3. Claim exemption from backup withholding it you are a U. S. exempt

Nee. V a requester gives you a meth other tfef Foram W - 9 to request

your TIN, you must use the requester' s form If it Is substantially slmlar
to this Form W- 9. 

Deflniton of a U. S. person. For faders, tax purposes, you are
considered a U. S. person if you are: 

An kdMdual who Is a U. S. citizen or U. S, resident alien, 

A partnership, corporation, company, or association created or
organized In the United States or under the laws of the United States, 

An estate ( other than a foreign estate), or

A domestic oust ( u defined in Regulations section 301. 7701. 7). 

Special ruins for perinanswps. Partnerships that Conduct a hods or

business In United Stake an generally required to pay a wl9Wdding
tam on am foreign pobara' shera of Income from such business. 
Furtive, it celeln cafes where a Form W - 9 has not been racaived, a
partnership is spored to presume that a partner it a forgpn person, 
and pay the wiWudceg lax. Tfweforet If you an a U. S. person that is a
partner in a partnership condta ding a trade abusiness in the United
States, provide Form W - 0 to the pefter" to establish you U. S. 

status and avod wllMddifg on you share of parlinum pImams. 

Col. No. 10231X fb' m VV- e ylay. 

rerm W-9 Request for Taxpayer Gin Form to the

RwV. D@cwow2b1t) Identiflcatlon Number and Certiflcation
roue"" Do Not

send to the IRS. t> `%. 1 = y T . ey
r Ytfa hisalcml onyaurscane imp raarfa
Original DKC Enterprises, ILC

ci BuWa aenakbo rtW arlUymuro,yateerd From above
aCI

CMCh WOMPrate box For federel taut canilxw[bn: 

zdlvlduaVade Proprietor  C Corporation  S Corporation  Pennwvhlp  TnosVeetals

United Ilibilty. comparry. Enter the hoe classification (C• C oapwarion. S• S owpmtkxn P- Parh sNpl 
Enempn Payee

DtlhejWinamwtonNl

Addr® a mh@r, eYNh, ens ala. eretier not naPinler'aname and Ykkaee leNlene/ 

5330 Griggs Ind, Ste At 14, Box 57

CeVaft* a WdEPlxxk

AtJ Houston, TX 77021
LWeapsura tareOwkm* 

Tavayer IdentillkaWn, Number

Enter your TIN In tae appropdala low The TIN provided must match the name given on the "Name" line tkrcw sa[ edhyawro r
to avoid bad" wAMotdrhg. Fror Wwkk^ deals your social security number (SS". However, Ior a
resident sMey oak papdgor, or dengarded orally sea the Part I instructions on page S. For other
eraitks. B is vowenobYerdentlaallan number( E1M. If You do not have a number , ses How to oat a

TIN on Pepe 3. 

Note. If the account is in more than one home, see the chart on page 4 for guidelines on whose
number to enter. 

Under penalties of perjury, I certify that

1. The numbershown on this form Is my correct taxpayer dentiiicatlon number ( a I am walling for a number to be Issued tome). and

2. 1 am not subject to badNp withhokHg because: ( a) I am exempt from backup wmefolding, or ( b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue
Service ORS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or ( a) the IRS has notified me that 14M

no lager subject to backup Withholding, and

3. 1 am a U. S. citizen or other U. S. person ( defined be". 

out hem 2 above it you have been notified by the IRS gal you we cunanilyaugacl to backup wM1thhoki g
I and dividends on your tax return. For mal selate tors. Item 2 does not apply. Far manage

fsecuredproperty, an Individual raWwwwrlt amentia letf!", and
tlNderlrlajyo la= but yid rust provid e your corn« TIN. Sea tls

ofn 
General Instructions ) 

Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise
noted. 

Purpose of Form
A parson who Is required to file an Information return vMh the IRS must
oil= Yale correct twpaywk% nbkaftonumber ( 11N) to repot for

axampla, Ywnnre l aidloyou. real awk aegectbro, nartgape interest
you paid, acquisition or abwh* NWeenl of Becra l property. cancellation

of debt orcmbftt& m you made to an 1Rk

Lose Forth W - 9 any t you ere a U. S. person ( including a resident
Wien), to provide your correct TN to the person requesting it ( the

requeste0 and, when applicable, to: 

1. Certify that the TIN you we gi 4 g Is correct ( or you are waiting for e
number to be Issued), 

2. Certify that you am not subject to backup withholding, or
3. Claim exemption from backup withholding it you are a U. S. exempt

Nee. V a requester gives you a meth other tfef Foram W - 9 to request

your TIN, you must use the requester' s form If it Is substantially slmlar
to this Form W- 9. 

Deflniton of a U. S. person. For faders, tax purposes, you are
considered a U. S. person if you are: 

An kdMdual who Is a U. S. citizen or U. S, resident alien, 

A partnership, corporation, company, or association created or
organized In the United States or under the laws of the United States, 

An estate ( other than a foreign estate), or

A domestic oust ( u defined in Regulations section 301. 7701. 7). 

Special ruins for perinanswps. Partnerships that Conduct a hods or

business In United Stake an generally required to pay a wl9Wdding
tam on am foreign pobara' shera of Income from such business. 

Furtive, it celeln cafes where a Form W - 9 has not been racaived, a
partnership is spored to presume that a partner it a forgpn person, 

and pay the wiWudceg lax. Tfweforet If you an a U. S. person that is a
partner in a partnership condta ding a trade abusiness in the United

States, provide Form W - 0 to the pefter" to establish you U. S. 
status and avod wllMddifg on you share of parlinum pImams. 

Col. No. 10231X fb' m VV- e ylay. 



BID DOCUMENTS & TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

City of Rosenberg Grounds Maintenance

BID NUMBER: 2014 -02

Pre -Bid: Wednesday, March 5, 2014, at 10: 00 am. 

Bid Opening: Wednesday, March 19, 2014, at 10:00 a.m. 

Darren McCarthy, Parks and Recreation Director
P. O. Box 32

21104' Street

Rosenberg, Texas 77471 -0032
832) 595 -3960

Mayor, Vincent M. Morales, Jr. 

COUNCILPERSONS

William Benton

Cynthia McConathy
Jimmie J. Pena

Susan Eaton

Dwayne Grigar

Amanda Bolf



INVITATION TO BID

Grounds Maintenance Services Contract for the City of Rosenberg
Bid No. 2014 -02

RETURN BID TO: City of Rosenberg
City Secretary' s Office
2110 4th Street

Rosenberg, Texas 77471

The enclosed INVITATION TO BID (ITB) and accompanying SPECIFICATIONS and BID SHEET(S) are for
your convenience in bidding the enclosed referenced Grounds Maintenance Services Contract for the City of
Rosenberg. 

Sealed bids in triplicate shall be received no later than: 

10: 00 A.M. on Wednesday, March 19, 2014
MARK ENVELOPE: ` BID NO. 2014- 02 - Grounds Maintenance Services Contract

for the City of Rosenberg" 

Bidder shall sign and date the bid. Bids which are not signed and dated will be rejected. 

All bids must be received at the designated location by the deadline shown. Bids received after the deadline will
not be considered for the award ofthe contract, and shall be considered void and unacceptable. 

Specifications may be obtained from the Parks Office at 3720 Airport Ave., Rosenberg, Texas 77471, between the
hours of 8: 00 a. m., and 5: 00 p. m., Monday through Friday. A Pre -bid Conference will be held on Wednesday, 
March 5, 2014, at 10: 00 A.M. at the Parks and Recreation Office, 3720 Airport Ave., Rosenberg, Texas 77471. 

The Bid Opening is scheduled for Wednesday, March 19, 2014, at 10: 00 A.M. at which time the sealed bids will
be publicly opened and read. Von are invited to attend. The City reserves the right to accept or reject any or all
bids. 

If the amount of the bid exceeds $ 50,000. 00, an Official Bidder' s Bond signed by both the Surely and Bidder, 
Cashiers Check, Certified Check, or letter of credit from an FDIC insured bank in an amount equal to five percent

5%) of the total bid must accompany each proposal. Said bid security shall also serve as guarantee that the
successful bidder will deliver all materials/ equipment and /or services in accordance with the delivery time and
specifications. 

The City reserves the right to reject any and all bids or accept any bid deemed advantageous to it. 
Bids shall remain valid for ninety (90) days. 

To obtain results, copies of the bid sheets, specifications, bidding documents or you have other questions, please
contact: 

City ofRosenberg
Darren McCarthy
Parks and Recreation Director
Telephone: 832 -595 -3960 Fax: 832 - 595 -3961 E -mail: darrenm(@ci,rosenbcriz. tx. us



INVITATION TO BID INSTRUCTIONS

AND TERMS OF CONTRACT

City of Rosenberg Grounds Maintenance
Bid No. 2014- 02

The City of Rosenberg will receive sealed bids for: 

Grounds Maintenance Services Contract
for the City or Rosenberg

TO PROVIDE FOR: the annual contract commencing on April 9, 2014, and continuing for a twelve- 
month period. 

IT IS UNDERSTOOD that the City Council of the City of Rosenberg reserves the right to reject any or all
bids for any or all products and /or services covered in this bid request and to waive informalities of
defects in such bids. 

BIDS must be submitted on the pricing forms included for that purpose in this packet. Each bid shall be
placed in a separate sealed envelope and manually signed by a person having the authority to bind the
firm in a contract and marked clearly on the outside as shown below. FACSIMILE TRANSMITTALS
SHALL NOT BE ACCEPTED. The bidders bond form attached shall be used. 

SUBMISSION OF BIDS: Sealed bids, in triplicate, shall be submitted to: 

City of Rosenberg
City Secretary' s Office
2110 4th Street

Rosenberg, Texas 77471

Not later than 10: 00 A.M., on Wednesday, March 19, 2014. 

MARK ENVELOPE: " BID NO. 2014-02 Grounds Maintenance Services Contract for the City of
Rosenberg." 

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS: Bidders should carefully examine all terms, conditions, specifications and
related documents. Should a bidder find discrepancies in or omissions from the specifications or related
documents, or should there be doubt as to their meaning, the City should be notified immediately for
clarification prior to submitting the bid. In the event of any conflict between the terms and provisions of
these requirements and the specifications, the specifications shall govern. In the event of any conflict of
interpretation of any part of this overall document, the City of Rosenberg' s interpretation shall govern. 

FUNDING: Funds for payment have been provided through the City of Rosenberg budget approved by
the City Council for this fiscal year only. State of Texas statutes prohibit the obligation and expenditure
of public funds beyond the fiscal year for which a budget has been approved. Therefore, anticipated
orders or other obligations that may arise past the end of the current City of Rosenberg fiscal year shall be
subject to budget approval. 

LATE BIDS: Bids received in the City Secretary' s office after submission deadline will be considered



void and unacceptable. City of Rosenberg is not responsible for lateness or non - delivery of mail, carrier, 
etc., and the date /time stamp in the City Secretary' s office shall be the official time of receipt. 

ALTERING BIDS: Bids cannot be altered or amended after submission deadline. Any alterations or
erasures made before opening time must be initialed by the signer of the bid, guaranteeing authenticity. 

WITHDRAWAL OF BIDS: Any bid may be withdrawn prior to the scheduling time for opening. Notice
to withdraw the bid must be in writing and submitted to the City prior to the scheduled time for opening
bids. Any bid withdrawal notice which is received after the deadline for receiving bids shall not be
considered. 

SALES TAX: City of Rosenberg is exempt by law from payment of Texas Sales Tax and Federal Excise
Tax. Do not include tax in bid. 

PRICING: Bidders are instructed to bid the total unit price on the items) specified where indicated on
tabulation sheet and to extend and show the total. In case of errors in extension, UNIT prices shall
govern. Prices for all goods and /or services shall be firm for the duration of this contract and shall be
stated on the bid sheet. Prices shall be all inclusive. No price changes, additions or subsequent

qualifications will be honored during the course of the contract. Additional charges not shown on the bid
will not be honored. All prices must be in ink. 

DELIVERY: All delivery and freight charges ( FOB City of Rosenberg designated location) are to be
included in the bid price. 

BID AWARD: If a contract is awarded, it will be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder meeting or
exceeding the terms, conditions and specifications of the bid. The City has the right to award a contract
upon the conditions, terms and specifications contained in a bid submitted to the City for a period of up to
ninety ( 90) days following the date specified for the opening of bids. In awarding a contract, the City
may waive minor technicalities and informalities in the bid process and bids received if they are not
material to or alter any of the conditions, terms or specifications contained in the invitation to bid or a
qualifying bid. 

In determining the lowest responsible bidder, the City may consider: 

1. Whether the bidder has adequate financial resources to comply with the contract awarded; 

2. Whether the bidder has a satisfactory record of performance with the City or other entities; 

3. Any other factors that could be material to the bidder' s ability to comply with the contract. 

REJECTION OF BIDS: The City Council may choose to reject all bids and not award any contract. If
the City Council does not award a contract within ninety ( 90) days following the date specified for the
opening of bids, all bids are deemed to be rejected by the City Council. 

PURCHASE ORDER: City of Rosenberg shall generate a purchase order to the successful bidder. The
purchase order number must appear on all invoices, packing lists and all related correspondence. City of
Rosenberg will not be responsible for any orders placed and/ or delivered without a valid purchase order
number. 

REFERENCES: City of Rosenberg requests bidder to supply, with this ITB, a list of three ( 3) references



where like products or services have been supplied by their firm. Include name of firm, address, 
telephone number and contact name. 

INSURANCE: The successful bidder shall provide and maintain the minimum insurance coverages set
forth below during the term of its agreement with the City. 

I. Commercial General Liability insurance at minimum combined single limits of $ 1, 000, 000 per - 
occurrence and $ 2, 000,000 general aggregate for bodily injury and property damage, which coverage
shall include products/ completed operations ($ 1, 000, 000 products/ completed operations aggregate), 
and XCU (Explosion, Collapse, Underground) hazards. Coverage must be written on an occurrence
form. Contractual Liability must be maintained covering the Contractors obligations contained in the
contract. The general aggregate limit must beat least two (2) times the each - occurrence limit, 

2. Workers Compensation insurance at statutory limits, including Employers Liability coverage a
minimum limit of $500,000 each - occurrence each accidenV$500,000 by disease each - occurrence/ 

500,000 by disease aggregate. 

3. Commercial Automobile Liability insurance at minimum combined single limits of $1, 000,000 per - 
occurrence for bodily injury and property damage, including owned, non-owned and hired car
coverage. 

Any Subcontractor( s) hired by the Contractor shall maintain insurance coverage equal to that required of
the Contractor. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to assure compliance with this provision. The
City of Rosenberg accepts no responsibility arising from the conduct, or lack of conduct, of the
Subcontractor. 

A Comprehensive General Liability insurance form may be used in lieu of a Commercial General
Liability insurance form. In this event, coverage must be written on an occurrence basis, at limits of

1, 000, 000 each - occurrence, combined single limit, and coverage must include a broad form
Comprehensive General Liability Endorsement, products /completed operations, XCU hazards and
contractual liability. 

With reference to the foregoing insurance requirement, Contractor shall specifically endorse applicable
insurance policies as follows: 

1. The City of Rosenberg shall be named as an additional insured with respect to General Liability and
Automobile Liability. 

2. All liability policies shall contain no cross liability exclusions or insured versus insured restrictions. 

3. A waiver of subrogation in favor of the City of Rosenberg shall be contained in the Workers
Compensation and all liability policies. 

4. All insurance policies shall be endorsed to require the insurer to immediately notify the City of
Rosenberg of any material change in the insurance coverage. 

5. All insurance policies shall be endorsed to the effect that the City of Rosenberg will receive at least
thirty (30) days notice prior to cancellation or non - renewal of the insurance. 

6. All insurance policies, which name the City of Rosenberg as an additional insured, must be endorsed



to read as primary coverage regardless of the application of other insurance. 

7. Required limits maybe satisfied by any combination of primary and umbrella liability insurances. 

8. Contractor may maintain reasonable and customary deductibles, subject to approval by the City of
Rosenberg. 

9. Insurance must be purchased from insurers that are financially acceptable to the City of Rosenberg. 
All insurance must be written on forms filed with and approved by the Texas Department of
Insurance. Certificates of Insurance shall be prepared and executed by the insurance company or it' s
authorized agent and shall contain provisions representing and warranting the following: 

1. Sets forth all endorsements and insurance coverage' s according to requirements and instructions
contained herein, 

2. Shall specifically set forth the notice-of- cancellation or termination provisions to the City of
Rosenberg. 

A valid certificate of Insurance verifying each of the coverage' s required above shall be submitted
with the Invitation to Bid documents. The certificate of insurance shall be sent to: 

City of Rosenberg
City Secretary' s Office
2110 4th Street

Rosenberg, Texas 77471

CONFLICT OF INTEREST: No public official shall have interest in this contract accept in accordance

with Vernon' s Texas Codes Annotated, Local Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171. 

ETHICS: The bidder shall not offer or accept gifts or anything of value or enter into any business
arrangement with any employee, official or agent of the City of Rosenberg. More than one ( 1) proposal
on any one ( 1) contract from a firm or individual under different names shall be grounds for rejection of
all proposals in which the firm or individual has an interest. One ( 1) or all proposals will be rejected if

there is any reason to believe that collusion exists between bidders. 

DESCRIPTIONS: Specifications may reference any catalog, brand name or manufacturer' s model
numbers. It is the intent of the City of Rosenberg to be DESCRIPTIVE - NOT RESTRICTIVE and to
establish a desired quality level of merchandise or to meet a pre - established standard of quality, Bidders
may offer items of equal quality; and the burden of proof of such quality rests with them. The City of
Rosenberg shall act as sole judge in determining quality and acceptability of products offered. 

ADDENDA: Any interpretations, corrections or changes to this Invitation to Bid and Specifications will
be made by addenda. Sole issuing authority of addenda shall be vested in the City of Rosenberg
purchasing department. Addenda will be mailed to all who are known to have received a copy of this
Invitation to Bid. Bidders shall acknowledge receipt of all addenda. 

BIDS MUST COMPLY with all federal, stale, county and local laws concerning this type of good or
service. 

DOCUMENTATION: Bidder shall provide with this bid response all documentation required by this



ITB. Failure to provide this information may result in rejection of bid. 

INDEMNIFICATION: The bidder shall indemnify, defend, and hold the City, its officers, agents, and
employees, harmless from any claim, loss, damage, suit, and liability of every kind, including all
expenses of litigation, court costs, and attorney's fees, for injury to or death of any person, or for damage
to any property, arising from or caused by any act or omission of bidder, its officers, employees, agents, 
or subcontractors, in performing its obligations under this Contract. 

TERMINATION OF CONTRACT: The City of Rosenberg reserves the right to terminate the contract
immediately in the event the successful bidder: 

1. Fails to meet delivery schedules; 
2. Defaults in the payment of any fees; 
3. Otherwise fails to perform in accordance with this contract; 
4. Becomes insolvent and/ or files for protection under the bankruptcy laws. 

Such termination is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies that the City of Rosenberg may
have in law or equity. Bidder, in submitting this bid, agrees that the City of Rosenberg shall not be liable
to prosecution for damages in the event that the City declares the bidder in default. 

NOTICE: Any notice provided by this bid or required by law to be given to the successful bidder by the
City of Rosenberg shall be deemed to have been given and received on the next business day after such
written notice has been deposited in the U. S. mail in Rosenberg, Texas, by Registered or Certified Mail
with sufficient postage affixed thereto, addressed to the successful bidder at the address so provided; 
provided this shall not prevent the giving ofactual notice in any other manner. 

PATENTS / COPYRIGHTS: The successful bidder agrees to protect the City of Rosenberg from claims
involving infringements of patents and /or copyrights. 

INVOICES submitted for payment shall be addressed to City of Rosenberg, Accounts Payable and shall
reference the City of Rosenberg approved purchase order number. Periodic payments will be made
within 30 days of invoice date or satisfactory delivery of the product or service, whichever is later, 
provided that all other requirements as detailed in the contract have been fulfilled. 

QUALITY CONTROL: Goods supplied under this contract shall be subject to approval as to quality and
must conform to the highest standards of manufacturing practice. Items found defective or not meeting
specifications shall be replaced at the supplier' s expense within a reasonable period of time. Payment for
defective goods or goods failing to meet specifications is not due until 30 days after satisfactory
replacement has been made. 

REMEDIES: The successful bidder and the City of Rosenberg agree that both parties have all rights, 
duties and remedies available as stated in the Uniform Commercial Code. 

SAMPLES: When requested, samples shall be furnished to the City of Rosenberg at no charge. 

LAW GOVERNING AND VENUE: The law of the State of Texas shall govern this contract and no
lawsuit shall be prosecuted on this contract except in a court of competent jurisdiction located in Fort
Bend County, Texas. 

ASSIGNMENT: The successful bidder shall not sell, assign, transfer or convey this contract, in whole or



in part, without the prior written consent ofthe City ofRosenberg. 

SILENCE OF SPECIFICATION: The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the
apparent omission from it of a detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning
that only the best commercial practices are to prevail. All interpretations of these specifications shall be
made on the basis of this statement. 

WARRANTY: Successful bidder shall warrant that all items or services shall conform to the proposed
specifications and all warranties as stated in the Uniform Commercial Code and be free from all defects in

material, workmanship and title. 



TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

CITY OF ROSENBERG GROUNDS MAINTENANCE

A. STATEMENT

ROSENBERG CTTY HALL

I. The Rosenberg City Hall is located at 2110 4th Street at the intersection of City Hall
Drive and 4th Street. 

2. The contractor will maintain all the turf area from the south of City Hall Drive curb to the
Dry Creek ditch located on the north side of City Hall and the turf area west of City Hall
to the edge of the pavement on the east side ofCity Hall. 

3. The contractor shall provide the City with an acceptable maintenance schedule and
monthly performance repoyt. The contractor will immediately contact the Parks and
Recreation Department if inclement weather has materially affected the maintenance
schedule, 

4. The City prefers this property be maintained on Fridays throughout the contract period. 

B. GENERAL GROUND MAINTENANCE

March throueh October

1. The contractor will maintain the City Hall grounds on a 1 - week schedule of mowing and
weed eating. 

a) Weed eat all curbs and sidewalks

b) Weed eat around all horticulture material
c) Weed eat around all objects
d) Mow the entire area at a height minimum of one -inch with a maximum of two - 

inches

2. During the hottest and driest part of the season, the contractor will maintain the grass at a
minimum of one -inch with maximum of two- inches. 

Novemberthrouah February

The contractor will maintain the City Hall grounds on a 2 -week schedule of mowing, 
edging and weed eating. Refer to the items a, b, c, and d above. 

C, SPECIAL MOWING

The contractor will perform two ( 2) special mowings, prunings, edging, and weed eating
based on the direction of the Parks and Recreation Department. The special work
required is associated with holidays or other special occasions, as determined by the
Parks and Recreation Department. 



D. PRUNINGS AND MULCHING

Trees, shrubs and glyynd -cover care: 

1. Prune deciduous trees when dormant to promote symmetrical shape in head and remove

suckers along trunk when they appear. 
2. Prune shrubs and ground -cover as necessary to maintain a neat and maintained

appearance at all times. 

3. Mulch around all trees and flower beds with hardwood mulch to a depth of at toast 2- 
inches, two (2) times per year. 

6. FERTILIZATION SCHEDULE

The contractor shall treat the entire turf area at least ( 3) three-times a year ( spring, 
summer, fall) according to soil samples collected by the contractor. 

F. HERBICIDE SCHEDULE
The contractor shall treat the entire turf area once in the spring with pre-emergent and
once in the fall. Post - emergent treatment shall take place twice a year. Schedule must be

approved by the Parks Supervisor before application. 

G. FIRE ANT TREATMENT

The contractor shall treat the entire turf area at least twice a year for fire ants. A
recommended schedule will be provided to the Parks Supervisor for approval before
treatment The contractor will use Advion ant bait or equal approved insecticide. 

H. TRASH CLEANUP

The contractor shall police the entire area each time for loose trash. It is the
responsibility of the contractor to remove and dispose of bash, pruned material and other
foreign objects. All grass clippings should be blown back on to mowed areas. At no
time should clippings, pruned material and other foreign objects be blown into storm
drains. 

PUBLIC ACTIVITY

The contractor will provide all materials such as insecticides, fuels and maintenance
equipment

SAFETY

The contractor shall maintain a " spill kit" with each work crew, minimum 5- gallon

capacity, in order to contain or mitigate any small fuel or oil spills that may occur while
performing the work. The contractor shall be responsible to promptly pick up and legally
dispose of any contaminated absorbent materials. Contractor shall be solely responsible
for any notification requirements in accordance with federal, state and local laws. 

K. CONTACT PERSONNEL

Paul Rodgers, Parks Supervisor, 832 -595 -3938 or 832 - 236.3518

E -mail: 0m1r0ci.rosenber2.tx.u2

10



A. STATEMENT

1. The Rosenberg Police Department is located at 2120 4th Street at intersection of City
Hall Drive and 4th S1rWL

2. The contractor will maintain all the turf area within the fenced area, along the curb of
City Hall Drive and the frontage ofthe police facility out to 4th Street. There is also an
area outside of the fence on the south side of the property up to and through the small
drainage ditch. 

3. The contractor shall provide the City with a maintenance schedule and monthly
performance report. The contractor will immediately contact the Parks and Recreation
Department if inclement weather has materially affected the maintenance schedule. 

4. The contractor shall also maintain the fenced area outside of the Police Chiefs office. 
Arrangements will be made with the Parks Supervisor to obtain access to this area. 

5. The City prefers this property be maintained on Fridays throughout the contract period. 
B. GENERAL GROUND MAINTENANCE

March through Q= bgr

1. The contractor will maintain the Police Facility grounds on a 1 -week schedule of mowing
and weed eating. 

a) Weed eat all curbs and sidewalks

b) Weeded around all horticulture material
c) Weed eat around all objects

d) Mow, weed eat and remove weeds from flower beds in the interior of the courtyard. 
e) Mow the entire area at a height minimum of one -inch with a maximum of two- loches

2. During the hottest and driest part of the season, the contractor will maintain the grass at a
minimum of one -inch with maximum oftwo - inches. 

November thr0ll2 February

The contractor will maintain the Police Facility grounds on a 2 -week schedule of
mowing, edging and weed eating. Refer to items a, b, c, d and a above. 

C. PRUNINGS AND MULCHING

Trees shrubs, and gLmind-coyer care: 

1. Prune deciduous trees when dormant to promote symmetrical shape in head and remove
suckers along trunk when they appear. 

2. Prune shrubs and ground -cover as necessary to maintain a neat and maintained
appearance at all times. 

3. Mulch around all trees and flower beds with hardwood mulch to a depth of at least 2- 
inches, two (2) times per year. 

11



D. FERTILIZATION SCHEDULE

The contractor shall treat the entire turf area at least ( 3) three -times a year ( spring, 
summer, fall) according to soil samples collected by the contractor. 

E. HERBICIDE SCHEDULE

The contractor shall treat the entire turf area once in the spring with pre- emergent and
once in the fall. Post - emergent treatment shall take place twice a year. Schedule must be
approved by the Parks Supervisor before application. 

R SPECIAL MOWING. 

The contractor will perform two (2) special mowings, prunings, edging, and weed eating
based on the direction of the Parks and Recreation Department. The special work
required is associated with holidays or other special occasions. 

G. FIRE ANT TREATMENT

The contractor shall treat the entire turf area at least twice a year for fire ants. A
recommended schedule will be provided to the Parks Supervisor for approval. The
contractor will use Advion ant bait or equal approved insecticide. 

H. TRASH CLEANUP

The contractor shall police the entire area each time for loose trash. It is the

responsibility of the contractor to remove and dispose oftrash, pruned material and other
foreign objects. All grass clippings should be blown back on to mowed areas. At no
time should clippings, pruned material and other foreign objects be blown into storm

drains. 

PUBLIC ACTIVITY

The contractor will provide all materials such as insecticides, fuels and maintenance
equipment. 

SAFETY

The contractor shall maintain a " spill kit' with each work crew, minimum 5- gallon

capacity, in order to contain or mitigate any small fuel or oil spills that may occur while
performing the work. The contractor shall be responsible to promptly pick up and legally
dispose of any contaminated absorbent materials. Contractor shall be solely responsible
for any notification requirements in accordance with federal, state and local laws. 

K. CONTACT PERSONNEL

Paul Rodgers, Parks Supervisor, 832. 595 -3938 or 932. 256 -3518
E- mail: paulr ci. ro2Mherptx.us

12



ROSENBERG CIVIC CENTER

A. STATEMENT

1. The Rosenberg Civic Center ( RCC) is located at 3825 Highway 36 South. 

2. Contractor shall maintain all turf area of the RCC from the north fence line to Stanley
Kucherka Drive and from the east boundary of the edge of pavement on Highway 36 to the
east approximately 30' past the rear concrete drive behind the RCC. 

3. The same maintenance specifications apply to the street right-of-way as in the RCC grounds. 

4. Access to the RCC Is the main entrance off Highway 36. 

5. Grounds maintenance shall be performed Monday through Friday, 5: 00 A.M. to 5, 00 P.M. 
excluding City observed holidays. 

6. Contractor shall provide the authorized RCC representative with a maintenance schedule and
monthly performance report. 

7. Contractor will immediately contact the authorized RCC representative if inclement weather
or other RCC activities have materially affected the maintenance schedule. 

B. GENERAL GROUNDS MAINTENANCE

1. Contractor will maintain the RCC mowing, weed eating, and edging as follows: 

a) March through October: once & week
b) November through February: every two weeks

2. Each maintenance visit shall include the following: 

a) Turfmowing
I. Contractor will mow entire turf area as outlined above at a height minimum of

one -inch with a maximum height of two-inches using a mulching mower. 
During the hottest and driest part ofthe season, contractor will maintain the turf

area at a minimum of one -inch with a maximum of two- inches.) 
ii. No turf clippings to be visible following turf mowing. ( Contractor to rake or

over -mow to remove turf clippings.) 

b) Special Mowing
I. Contractor will perform two ( 2) special turf mowings, edging, and weed eating

based on the direction of the authorized RCC representative. Special turf
mowing/work required could be associated with holidays or other special
occasions. 

13



c) Edging
I. Contractor shall maintain well - defined ( trenched) lines around trees and crape

myrtles. Crape myrtles inside landscaping beds are not to be maintained. 
it. NO edging with non - selective herbicide to kill unwanted grasses/ weeds is

allowed without prior approval of an authorized RCC representative. 
iii. Contractor will weed eat turf at lawn drains, Contractor shall not utilize non- 

selective herbicide at lawn drains. 

Iv. Sidewalks and curbing. 
1) Contractor shall edge all sidewalks and curbing at each maintenance visit. 
2) Contractor shall weed eat all borders Including concrete, along fence lines, 

around trees and other obstacles. 

3) Contractor will trim all curbs and sidewalks with weed eaters each visit. 

4) Turf trimmings shall be removed by blower or be swept, collected and
removed from the RCC property at each maintenance visit. 

1) Edging Planting Beds
i. Contractor shall weed eat planting beds and borders at each maintenance visit, 
ii, Contractor shall not trench around planting beds nor utilize non - selective

herbicide to edge around planting beds. 

e) Flower Beds, Shrubs, and Ornamental Trees
I. Contractor shall pull weeds of all beds, around trees and French drains in a

manner that will not damage any planting material. 
ii. Contractor shall apply time - release fertilizer two ( 2) times per year per

manufacturer instructions. Schedule of application and fertilizer selected must

be pre - approved. 

iii. Contractor shall apply pre - emergent two ( 2) times per year per manufacturer
instructions. Schedule of application and pre - emergent must be pre- approved. 

iv. Trim all bushes and shrubs to maintain uniform appearance two ( 2) times per

year (spring and fall), 

f) Weed Eating
I. Weed eat around all horticulture material. 

it. Weed eat around all objects including but not limited to flower beds, trees and
French drains, building gutters, playground fencing and chiller enclosure. 

g) Blowing
Turf trimmings shall be removed by blower or be swept, collected and removed
from RCC property. At no time should any turf trimmings be blown or swept
into storm sewers or into the chiller enclosure area, Pavement and work areas
should be kept clean and in orderly condition during maintenance operations. 

C. MULCH

Contractor will add to all flower beds, shrubs, ornamental trees and other plants a layer of
hardwood mulch to a depth of two ( 2) inches minimum. Mulch will be added two ( 2) times per
year as instructed. 

D. FIRE ANT TREATMENT
Contractor shall treat entire RCC grounds at least two ( 2) times per year for fire ants. 
Contractor shall provide a recommended schedule to the authorized RCC representative
for approval. Contractor will use Advion ant bait or equal approved insecticide. 

14



E. FERTILIZATION SCHEDULE

The contractor shall treat the entire turf area at least ( 3) three-times a year ( spring, 
summer, fall) according to soil samples collected by the contractor. 

F. HERBICIDE SCHEDULE

The contractor shall treat the entire turf area once in the spring with praemergent and
once in the fall. Post- emergent treatment shall take place twice a year. Schedule must be
approved by the Parks Supervisor before app)icadon. 

G. TRASH CLEAN UP

1. Contractor shall police entire RCC area for loose trash and vandalism. 
2. Contractor shall report vandalism to an authorized RCC representative. 
3. It is the contractor' s responsibility to remove and dispose of trash, materials, and any other

foreign objects collected from the RCC grounds. 
4. At no time should clippings, prunings and other foreign objects be blown into storm drains. 

s. PRUNING

Contractor shall prune the fence line at least twice a year. 

L ROADS AND DRAINAGE

Contractor is not responsible for the roads or drainage within the RCC. 

J. PUBLIC ACTIVITY

1. Contractor will report any acts of vandalism, complaints received or undesirable activities
observed within the RCC grounds to an authorized RCC representative. 

2. Contractor will provide all materials such as insecticides, fuels, and maintenance equipment. 
3. Contractor will have at least one ( 1) employee who is bilingual in English and Spanish when

performing each maintenance visit at the RCC. 
4. Contractor will be responsible for steeping landscape maintenance site as to not interfere with

the safety of Rosenberg Civic Center staff, City of Rosenberg employees, clients of and users
of the Rosenberg Civic Center. 

K. SAFETY

The contractor shall maintain a " spill kit" with each work crew, minimum 5- gallon capacity, 
in order to contain or mitigate any small fuel or oil spills that may occur while performing the
work. The contractor shall be responsible to promptly pick up and legally dispose of any
contaminated absorbent materials. Contractor shall be solely responsible for any notification
requirements in accordance with federal, state and local laws. 

L. CONTACT PERSONNEL

Carolyn Kagy, Civic Center Manager
Contact Phone: ( 832) 595 -3520

15



ROSFAWRG CEMETERY

A. STATEMENT

1. The Rosenberg Cemetery is located at 1401 Avenue D in the north part of the City. 

2. The cemetery is 470 -feet wide and 850 -feet long ( 9. 17 acres). The contractor will
maintain all the turf area running from the edge of the pavement on Avenue D to the
north end of the cemetery to 10 -fat past the shrubs. 

3. The same maintenance specifications apply to the street right -of -way as in the cemetery. 

4. The cemetery located immediately west of the 850 -foot property line is owned by Our
Lady of Guadalupe Catholic Church. These specifications do not apg],y to this private
cemeterv. Access to the cemetery is the main road through Rosenberg Cemetery, 

5. The Contractor shall provide the City with an acceptable maintenance schedule and
monthly performance report. The contractor will immediately contact the Parka and
Recreation Department if inclement weather or other cemetery activities ( such as
funerals) have materially affected the maintenance schedule. 

B. GENERAL GROUNDS MAINTENANCE

The contractor will maintain the cemetery on a 2 -week schedule of mowing and weed
eating. 
a) Weed eat around all headstones

b) Wad eat around all horticulture material

c) Wad eat around all objects

d) Mow the entire area at aheight minimum of one -inch with a maximum of two- inches. 

2. During the hottest and driest part of the season, the contractor will maintain the grass at a
minimum of one -inch with maximum of two- inches. 

MI, .. • 7Yd7f' 1

The contractor will maintain the cemetery on a 4 -week schedule of mowing, edging and
wad eating. Refer to the items a, b, 0. and d above. 

C. SIDEWALKS AND CURBING

The contractor shall edge all sidewalks and curbing once every 4- weeks. The contractor
will trim all curbs and sidewalks with wad eaters when not performing the month edging
schedule. Grass trimmings shall be removed by blower or be swept, 

D. SPECIALMOWING

The contractor will perform two ( 2) special mowings, prunings, edging, and weed eating
based on the direction of the Parks Supervisor. The special work required is associated

with holidays ( Easter, Veteran's Day, and Memorial Day) or other special occasions. 

16



G. FIRE ANT TREATMENT

The contractor shall treat the entire cemetery at least twice per year for fire ants. A
recommended schedule will be provided to the Parks Supervisor for approval. The
contractor will use Advion ant bait or equal approved insecticide. 

H. TRASH CLEANUP

I. The contractor shalt police the entire cemetery for loose trash and vandalism. The
contractor will be responsible for emptying the trash receptacles every two ( 2) weeks
March — October) and every four (Q) weeks (November — February). 

2. It is the responsibility of the contractor to remove and dispose of trash, pruned material
and other foreign objects after every mowing. 

3. All grass clippings should be blown back on to mowed areas. At no time should
clippings, pruned material and other foreign objects be blown into storm drains. 

1. PRUNING

The contractor shall prune the fence line, shrubbery and trees at least twice a year. 

J. ROADS AND DRAINAGE

The contractor is not responsible for the roads or drainage within the cemetery. 

K. PUBLIC ACTIVITY

1. The contractor will report any acts of vandalism, complaints received or undesirable
activities observed within the cemetery. 

2. The contractor will provide all materials such as insecticides, fuels and maintenance
equipment. 

3. The contractor must have at least one ( 1) employee who is bilingual in English and
Spanish when performing work in the cemetery. 

L, SAFETY

The contractor shall maintain a " spill kit" with each work crew, minimum 5- gallon
capacity, in order to contain or mitigate any small fuel or oil spills that may occur while
performing the work The contractor shell be responsibleto promptly pickup and legally
dispose of any contaminated absorbent materials. Contractor shall be solely responsible
for any notification requirements in accordance with federal, state and local laws. 

M. CONTACTPERSONNEL

Paul Rodgers, Parks Supervisor, 832 -595 -3938 or 832 -256 -3518
E -mail: paulr a ci rosenbere. x ,_ 

17



ROSENBERG FIRE DEPARTMENT STATION NO, I

A. STATEMENT

1. The Rosenberg Fire Department Station No. I is located at 1021 4th Street at the
intersection of Avenue I and 4th Street. 

2, The contractor will maintain all the turf area from the east edge of4th Street to the alley
and turf area south of the curb stops to north ofthe curb of Avenue I. 

3. The contractor shall provide the City with an acceptable maintenance schedule and
monthly performance report. The contractor will immediately contact the Parks and
Recreation Department if inclement weather has materially affected the maintenance
schedule. 

B. GENERAL GROUND MAINTENANCE

March through October

The contractor will maintain the Rosenberg Fire Department Station No. 1 grounds on a
1 - week schedule of mowing and weed eating. 

a) Weed eat all curbs and sidewalks

b) Weed eat around all horticulture material

c) Weed eat around all objects
d) Mow the entire area at a height minimum of one -inch with a maximum of two- inches
e) Weed eat the fenced — in area of radio tower

2. During the hottest and driest part of the season, the contractor will maintain the grass at a
minimum of one -inch with maximum of two- inches. 

Mal ,.. 

The contractor will maintain the Fire Station No. 1 grounds on a 2 -week schedule of

mowing edging and weed eating. Refer to the items a, b, c, d and a above. 

C. SPECIAL MOWING

The contractor will perform two (2) special mowings, prunings, edging and weed eating
based on the direction of the Parks and Recreation Department. The special work
required is associated with holidays or other special occasions. 

D. FM ANT TREATMENT

The contractor shall treat the entire turf area at least twice a year for fire ants. A
recommended schedule will be provided to the Director of Parks and Recreation for

approval. The contractor will use Advion ant bait or equal approved insecticide. 

E. FERTILIZATION SCHEDULE

The contractor shall treat the entire turf area at least ( 3) three -times a year ( spring, 
summer, fall) according to soil samples collected by the contractor. 

18



F. HERBICIDE SCHEDULE

The contractor shall treat the entire turf area once in the spring with pre - emergent and
once in the fall. Post - emergent treatment shall take place twice a year. Schedule must be
approved by the Parks Supervisor before application. 

G. TRASH CLEANUP

The contractor shall police the entire area each time for loose trash. It is the
responsibility of the contractor to remove and dispose of trash, pruned material and other
foreign objects. All grass clippings should be blown back on to mowed areas. At no time
should clippings, pruned material and other foreign objects be blown into storm drains. 

H. PUBLIC ACTIVITY

The contractor will provide all materials such as insecticides, fuels and maintenance
equipment. 

i. SAFETY

The contractor shall maintain a " spill kit" with each work crew, minimum 5- gallon
capacity, in order to contain or mitigate any small fuel or oil spills that may occur while
performing the work. The contractor shall be responsible to promptly pick up and legally
dispose of any contaminated absorbent materials. Contractor shall be solely responsible
for any notification requirements in accordance with federal, state and local laws. 

3. CONTACT PERSONNEL

Paul Rodgers, Parks Supervisor, 832. 595 -3938 of 832 -256 -3518
E -mail: p_aulnMol cosenbere mus

19



A. STATEMENT

1. The Rosenberg Fire Department Station No. 2 is located at 5320 Reading Road. 

2. The contractor will maintain alj the turf area west of Reading Road to one ( 1) mower
width between back fence and retention pond and one ( 1) mower width past the north
fence to two (2) mower widths past the south fence. 

3. The contractor shall provide the City with a maintenance schedule and monthly
performance report. The contractor will immediately contact the Parks and Recreation
Department if inclement weather has materially affected the maintenance schedule. 

B. GENERAL GROUND MAINTENANCE

March throulab October

The contractor will maintain the Rosenberg Fire Department Station No. 2 grounds on a
1 - week schedule of mowing and weed eating. 

a) Weed eat all curbs and sidewalks

b) Weed eat around all borticulture material

e) Weed eat around all objects

d) Weed eat and remove weeds from flower beds

a) Mow the entire area at a height minimum of one -inch with a maximum of two- inches

2. During the hottest and driest part of the season, the contractor will maintain the grass at a
minimum of one -inch with maximum of two- inches. 

S i'II!1R77YaSrkT'9

The contractor will maintain the Fire Station No, 2 grounds on a 2 -week schedule of

mowing, edging and' weed eating. Refer to the items a, b, c, d and a above. 

C. PRUNINGS AND MULCH

Trees, shrubs. and around- oovcr care: 

Prune shrubs and ground -cover as necessary to maintain a neat and maintained
appearance at all times. Add at least two ( 2) inches depth of hardwood mulch in the
spring and in the fall around the flower bed areas. 

D. SPECIAL MOWINO

The contractor will perform two ( 2) special mowing&, printings, edging, and weed eating
based on the direction of the Parks and Recreation Department The special work
required is associated with holidays or other special occasions. 

20



E. FIRE ANT TREATMENT

The contractor shall treat the entire turf area at least twice a year for fire ants. A
recommended schedule will be provided to the Director of Parks and Recreation for
approval. The contractor will use Advion ant bait or equal approved insecticide. 

F. FERTILIZATION SCHEDULE

The contractor shall treat the entire turf area at least ( 3) three -times a year ( spring, 
summer, fall) according to soil samples collected by the contractor. 

G. HERBICIDE SCHEDULE

The contractor shall treat the entire turf area once in the spring with pre-emergent and
once in the fall. Post- emergent treatment shall take place twice a year. Schedule must be
approved by the Parks Supervisor before application. 

H. TRASH CLEANUP

The contractor shall police the entire area each time for loose trash. It is the
responsibility of the contractor to remove and dispose of trash, pruned material and other
foreign objects. All grass clippings should be blown back on to mowed areas. At no time
should clippings, pruned material and other foreign objects be blown into storm drains. 

PUBLIC ACTIVITY

The contractor will provide all materials such as insecticides, fuels and maintenance
equipment. 

fl. SAFETY

The contractor shall maintain a " spill kit' with each work crew, minimum 5-gallon
capacity, in order to contain or mitigate any small fuel or oil spills that may occur while
performing the work. The contractor shall be responsible to promptly pick up and legally
dispose of any contaminated absorbent materials. Contractor shall be solely responsible
for any notification requirements in accordance with federal, state and local laws. 

K. CONTACTPFRSONNEL

Paul Rodgers, Parks Supervisor, 932 -595 -3.938 or 832 -256 -3518
E -mail: pul i rosenbem -Mus

21



A. STATEMENT

1. The Rosenberg Fire Department Station No. 3 is located on the corner ofAugust Green Drive
and F.M. 1- Oghway 2977. 

2. Contractor shall maintain all turf areas of Station No. 3 from August Green Drive to the
southern property line. 

3. The same maintenance specifications apply to the street right -of -ways as in the Rosenberg
Civic Center specifications. 

4. Access to Station No. 3 is the main entrance off of August Green Drive. 

5. Grounds maintenance crews must be observant of Station No, 3 emergency activity and stay
clear of all emergency vehicle traffic. 

6. Contractor shall provide the Parks Supervisor with a maintenance schedule and monthly
performance report. 

7. Contractor will immediately contact the Parks Supervisor if inclement weather or other
emergency activities have materially affected the maintenance schedule. 

8. The Fire Station No. 3 entry landscape reserve sign area and all right -of -way setback areas
are tentatively scheduled to be mowed as part of an HOA contract. Please indicate a bid. 
alternate to maintain this area

9. This station will not need Grounds Maintenance as part of this contract until May 1, 2014. 

a, GENERAL GROUNDS MAINTENANCE

1. Contractor will maintain the Station No. 3 mowing, weed eating, and edging as follows; 

March through October. once a week

November through February: every two weeks

2. Each maintenance visit shall include the following: 

ej _.Turf mowing
i- Contractor will mow entire turf area as outlined above at a height

minimum of one -inch with a maximum height of two - inches using a
mulching mower. ( During the hottest and driest part of the season, 
contractor will maintain the turf area at a minimum of one -inch with a
maximum of two- inches.) 

ii. No turfclippings to be visible following turf mowing. (Contractor to rake
or over -mow to remove turf clippings.) 

b) Special Mowing
L Contractor will perform two ( 2) special turf mowings, edging, and weed

eating based on the direction of the Parks Supervisor. Special turf
mowing/work required could be associated with holidays or other special
occasions. 

22



c) Edging
L Contractor shall maintain well- defined ( trenched) lines around trees and

crape myrtles. Crape myrtles inside landscaping beds are not to be
maintained. 

ii. NO edging with non - selective herbicide to kill unwanted grasses/ weeds
is allowed without prior approval of the Parks Supervisor. 

iii. Contractor will weed eat turf at lawn drains. Contractor shall not utilize
non - selective herbicide at lawn drains. 

d) Sidewalks and curbing: 
L Contractor shall edge all sidewalks and curbing at each maintenance

visit. 

ii. Contractor shall weed eat all borders including concrete, along fence
lines, around trees and other obstacles. 

iii. Contractor will trim all curbs and sidewalks with weed eaters each visit. 
iv. Turf trimmings shall be removed by blower or be swept, collected and

removed from StationNo. 3 property at each maintenance visit

e) Edging Planting Beds
1. Contractor shall weed eat planting beds and borders at each maintenance

visit. 

ii, Contractor shall not trench around planting beds nor utilize non - selective
herbicide to edge around planting beds. 

1) Flower Beds, Shrubs, and Ornamental Trees
1. Contractor shall pull weeds of all beds, around trees and drains in a

manner that will not damage any planting material. 

H. Contractor shall apply lime - release fertilizer two (2) times per year per
manufacturer instructions. Schedule of application and fertilizer selected
must be pre - approved, 

iii. Contractor shall apply pre-emergent two ( 2) times per year per
manufacturer instructions. Schedule of application and pre- emergent

must be pre- approved. 

iv. Trim all bushes and shrubs to maintain uniform appearance two (2) times
per year (spring and fall). 

g) Weed Eating
i. Weed eat around all horticulture material. 
ii. Weed eat around all objects including but not limited to flower beds, 

trees and drains, building gutters, and chiller enclosure. 

h) Blowing
Turftrimmings shall be removed by blower or be swept, collected and removed
from Station No. 3. At no time should any turf trimmings be blown or swept
into storm sewers or into the chiller enclosure area. Pavement and work areas
should be kept clean and in orderly condition during maintenance operations. 

C. MULCH

Contractor will add to all flower beds, shrubs, ornamental trees and other plants a layer of
hardwood mulch to a depth of two ( 2) inches minimum. Mulch will be added two (2) times per
year as instructed. 

23



E. FIRE ANT TREATMENT
Contractor shall treat entire Station No. 3 grounds at least two ( 2) times per year for fire
ants. Contractor shall provide a recommended schedule to the Parks Supervisor for
approval. Contractor will use Advion ant bait or equal approved insecticide. 

E. FERTILIZATION SCHEDULE

The contractor shall treat the entire turf area at least ( 3) three -times a year ( spring, 
summer, fall) according to soil samples collected by the contractor. 

F. HERBICIDE SCHEDULE

The contractor shall treat the entire turf area once in the spring with pro-emergent and
once in the fall. Post-emergent treatment shall take place twice a year. Schedule must be

approved by the Parks Supervisor before application, 

0. TRASH CLEAN UP

1. Contractor shall police Station No. 3 for loose trash and vandalism. 
2. Contractor shall report vandalism to the Parks Supervisor, 

3. It is the contractor' s responsibility to remove and dispose of trash, materials, and any other
foreign objects collected from Station No. 3 grounds. 

4. At no time should clippings, prunings and other foreign objects be blown into storm drains. 

H. PUBLIC ACTIVITY

I. Contractor will provide all materials such as insecticides, fuels, and maintenance equipment. 
2. Contractor will have at least one ( 1) employee who is bilingual in English and Spanish when

performing each maintenance visit at Station No. 3. 
3. Contractor will be responsible for keeping the landscape maintenance site as to not interfere

with the safety of their own stati; City of Rosenberg employees, and citizens ofRosenberg. 

K. SAFETY

The contractor shall maintain a " spill kit" with each work crew, minimum 5- gallon capacity, 
in order to contain or mitigate any small fuel or oil spills that may occur while performing the
work. The contractor shall be responsible to promptly pick up and legally dispose of any
contaminated absorbent materials. Contractor shall be solely responsible for any notification
requirements in accordance with federal, state and local laws. 

L. CONTACTPERSONNEL

Paul Rodgers, Parks Supervisor, 832 - 595. 3938 or 832. 256. 3518
E -mail: Paul ci: rosenber¢.tx.us

24



A. STATEMENT

1. The Rosenberg Fire Administration Building is located at 1012 5th Street: 

2. Contractor shall maintain all turf area west Of 5th Street to the alley and turf area from the
hedges on the north side of building to concrete area on south side ofbuilding. 

3. The contractor shall provide the City with a maintenance schedule and monthly
performance report. The contractor will immediately contact the Parks and Recreation
Department if inclement weather has materially affected the maintenance schedule. 

B. GENERAL GROUNDS MAINTENANCE

1. The contractor will maintain the Rosenberg Fire Administration Building grounds on a 1- 
week schedule of mowing and weed eating. 

a) Weed eat all curbs and sidewalks

b) Weed eat around all horticulture material
c) Weed eat around all objects

d) Weed eat and remove weeds from flower beds in front of Administration Building
e) Mow the entire area at a height minimum of one -inch with a maximum oftwo Inches

2. During the hottest and driest part of the season, the contractor will maintain the grass at a
minimum of one -ineh with maximum of two - inches. 

The contractor will maintain the Fire Administration grounds on a 2 -week schedule of
mowing, edging and weed eating Refer to the items a, b, c, d and a above. 

C. PRUNINGS AND MULCH

Trers„ ch ubs and ground -cover care? 

Prune shrubs and ground -cover as necessary to maintain a neat and maintained
appearance at all times. Add at least two ( 2) inches depth of hardwood mulch in the
spring and in the fall around the flower beds areas. 

D. SPECIAL MOWING

The contractor will perform two (2) special mowings, prunings, edging, and weed eating
based on the direction of the Parks and Recreation Department. The special work
required is associated with holidays or other special occasions. 

E. FIRE ANT TREATMENT
25



The contractor shall treat the entire turf area at least twice a year for fire ants. A
recommended schedule will be provided to the Parks Supervisor for approval. The
contractor will use Advion ant bait or equal approved insecticide. 

F, FERTILIZATION SCHEDULE

The contractor shall treat the entire turf area at least ( 3) threetimes a year ( spring, 
summer, fall) according to soil samples collected by the contractor. 

O. HERBICIDE SCHEDULE

The contractor shall treat the entire turf area once in the spring with pre-emergent and
once in the fall. Post - emergent treatment shall take place twice a year. Schedule must be

approved by the Parks Supervisor before application. 

H. TRASH CLEANUP

The contractor shall police the entire area each time for loose trash. It is the

responsibility of the contractor to remove and dispose of trash, pruned material and other
foreign objects. All grass clippings should be blown back on to mowed areas. At no time
should clippings, pruned material and other foreign objects be. blown into storm drains. 

PUBLIC ACTIVITY

The contractor will provide all materials such as insecticides, fuels and maintenance
equipment. 

SAFETY

The contractor shall maintain a " spill kif' with each work crew, minimum 5- gallon

capacity, in order to contain or mitigate any small fuel or oil spills that may occur while
performing the work. The contractor shall be responsible to promptly pick up and legally
dispose of any contaminated absorbent materials. Contractor shall be solely responsible
for any notification requirements in accordance with federal, state and local laws. 

K. CONTACTPERSONNEL

Paul Rodgers, Parks Supervisor, 832 -595 -3938 or 832. 256 -3518

E -mail: yaulrCa),ci. rosenber .tgx_us

26



ROS&DKRE. WATER PLANTS

A. FACILITY LOCATIONS: 

1. The Rosenberg Water Plants are located at: 

la) Water Plant # 1, 2218 Avenue G
2a) Water Plant #2, 1415 Alamo Street
3a) Water Well Site in Travis Park 1415 Alamo Street
41t) Water Plant N3, 1024 Grunwald Heights
5a) Water Tower 43, 2214 Ruby Street
6a) Water Plant # 4, 3720 Airport Avenue Rear
7a) Water Plant #5, 401 Cottonwood Church Road
sa) Water Plant 46, 7075 Reading Road
9a) Water Plant #7. 4926 Oak Briar Lane
10a) Water Tower #6, FM 2977 &. August Green Drive Rear (0.5 Be= behind nrestatiw Nw 3) 

2. The contractor will maintain all the turf area. 

3. The contractor shall provide the City with an acceptable maintenance schedule and
MANDATORY MONTHLY PERFORMANCE REPORT. The contractor will
Immediately contact the Utilities Department if inclement weather has materially
affected the maintenance schedule, 

B. GENERAL GROUND MAINTENANCE

1. Schedule / Frequency of Services: 

a) Feb0j= 1st jbtouah October 31st: The contractor will maintain the Water Plant
grounds by mowing and weed eating twice a month at or close to fifteen ( 15) day
intervals. 

b) November Ist throygh January 3191: The contractor will maintain the Water Plant
grounds by mowing and weed eating once per month, at or close to thirty (30) day
intervals. 

c) The contractor shall provide up to two ( 2) additional mowing and weed eating
services described in this Section as a part of the lump sum bid. The contractor shall
perform these services within forty -eight (48) hours after verbal or email notification
from the City. 

2. The contractor will mow the grass at a minimum of one -inch with a maximum of two- inches
at each service visit. 

3. The contractor will maintain the Water Plant grounds by mowing, edging, and weed eating at
the intervals in item # 1 above. Services shalt include the following tasks: 

a) Weed eat all curbs and sidewalks

27



b) Weed eat around all horticulture material
c) Weed eat around all objects

d) Mow the entire area at a height minimum of one -inch with a maximum of
two- inches

e) Weed eat and mow outside of all perimeter fences at least six ( 6) feet where
applicable

f) Trim trees and shrubs as needed

4. The contractor will cut, prune, and remove from site all tree limbs, bushes, and shrubs to
ensure proper cut of turf. No grass clippings, leaves, trash, or debris will be blown or left on

any public street or in any curb. 

5. No chemicals are to be used on these sites for weed control, edging, or growth regulation. 

C. TRASH CLEAN -UP

The contractor shall police the entire area each time for loose trash. It is the

responsibility of the contractor to remove and dispose of wash, pruned material, and other
foreign objects. 

D. CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITY

The contractor shall provide all materials such as fuels and maintenance equipment. The

contractor shall be solely responsible for any damage that may occur to his equipment
while performing this contract and will not hold the City responsible even in the eventthe
City is negligent. 

S, SAFETY

1. The contractor shall at all times exercise reasonable precautions for the safety of
employees and others on or near the work and shall comply with all applicable provisions

of Federal, State, and Municipal Safety Laws. All machinery and equipment and other
physical hazards shall be guarded In accordance with the " Manual of Accident Prevention

in Construction" of the Associated General Contracts of America except where

incompatible with guards, safe walkways, ladders, bridges, gang planks and other safety
devices. The safety precautions actually taken and their adequacy shall be the sole
responsibility ofthe contractors acting at his discretion as an independent contractor. 

2. The contractor shall keep and maintain a " spill -kit" with each work crew, minimum 5- 
gallon capacity, in order to contain or mitigate any small fuel or oil spills that may occur
while prosecuting the work. The contractor shall be responsible to promptly pick up and
properly dispose of any contaminated absorbent materials. Contractor shall be solely
responsible for any notification requirements in accordance with Federal and State laws. 

F. CONTACT PERSONNEL

Kevin Williams, Utilities Superintendent, 832 -595 -3583
E -mail: kevinwftr ci.rosenberntx.us

29



itOS'NBERG LIFT STATIONS

A. FACILITY LOCATIONS: 

The Rosenberg Lift Stations are located at: 

la) Lift Station # 1, 1820 3A Street
2a) Lift Station #2, 3600 Avenue F
3a) Lift Station #3, 1002 Wilson Street (rear) 
4a) Lift Station #4, 1814 Jones Street
5a) Lift Station #5, 1115 Avenue D
6a) Lift Station #7, 2615 Mons Avenue
7a) Lift Station #8, 3102 West Street
8a) Lift Station 0,2311 Avenue B
9e) Lift Station #10, 1911 Avenue
l0a) Lift Station # 11, 2809 FM 2218 —B. F. Terry Boulevard
I la) Lift Station 014, 2811 Airport Avenue
12a) Lift Station # 15, 2119 Avenue B
13a) Lift Station # 16, 1900 FM 2218
14a) Lift Station # 17, 100 Rude Road
15a) Lift Station # 18, 451 Highway 36 West
16a) Lift Station # 19. 5630 Bryan Road
17a) Lift Station #20, 3301 Vista Drive
I Be) Lift Station #21, Spur 529
19a) Lift Station 422, 2102 1" Street
20a) Lift Station #23, 1302 Cottonwood School Road
21i) Lift Station #24, 7707 Reading Road
22a) Lift Station #25, 2230'/ 2 J. Meyer Road
23a) Lift Station #27, 6801 Reading Road

2. The contractor will maintain all the turf area within the fenced area. 

3. The contractor shall provide the City with a maintenance schedule and
MANDATORY MONTHLY PERFORMANCE REPORT. The contractor will
immediately contact the Utilities Department if lndement weather has materially
affected the maintenance schedule, 

B. GENERAL GROUND MAINTENANCE

1. Schedule l Frequency of Services

a) February st through October 31s: The contractor will maintain the Lift Station
grounds by mowing and weed eating twice a month at or close to fifteen ( 15) day
intervals. 

b) November IM th= ah January 31st: The contractor will maintain the Lift Station
grounds by mowing and weed eating once per month, at or close to thirty (30) day
Intervals. 

c) The contractor shall provide up to two ( 2) additional mowing and weed eating
services described in this Section as a part ofthe lump sum bid. The contractor shall

29



perform these services within forty -eight ( 48) hours after verbal or email notification
from the City. 

2. The contractor will mow the grass at a minimum of one -inch with a maximum of two- 
inches at each service visit. 

3. The contractor will maintain the Lift Station grounds by mowing, edging, and weed
eating at the intervals in item # 1 above. Services shall include the following tasks: 

a) Weed eat all curbs and sidewalks

b) Weed eat around all horticulture material

c) Weed eat around all objects

d) Mow the entire area to a minimum of one- inch with a maximum of two - inches
a) Weed eat and mow outside ofall perimeter fences at least six (6) feet where applicable
f) Trim trees and shrubs as needed

4. The contractor will cut, prune and remove from site all tree limbs, bushes and shrubs to
ensure proper cut ofturf. No grass clippings, leaves, trash or debris will be blown or Ieft

on any public street, or in any curb. 

S. No"chemicals are to be used on these sites for weed control, edging or growth regulating. 

C. TRASH CLEANUP

The contractor shall police the entire area for loose trash. It is the responsibility of the
contractor to remove and dispose of trash, pruning and other foreign objects. 

D. CONTRACTORRESPONSMILiTY

The contractor shall provide all materials such as fuels and maintenance equipment. The

contractor shall be solely responsible for any damage that may occur to his equipment
while performing this contract and will not hold the City responsible even in the event the
City is negligent. 

E. SAFETY

1. The contractor shall at all times exercise reasonable precautions for the safety of
employees and others on or near the work and shall comply with all applicable provisions
of Federal, State, and Municipal Safety Laws, All machinery and equipment and other
physical hazards shall be guarded in accordance with the " Manual ofAccident Prevention
in Construction" of the Associated General Contracts of America except where
incompatible with guards, safe walkways, ladders, bridges, gang planks and other safety
devices. The safety. precautions actually taken and their adequacy shall be the sole
responsibility of the contractors acting at his discretion as an independent contractor. 

2. The contractor shall keep and maintain a " spill -kit", with each work crew, minimum 5- 
gallon capacity, in order to contain or mitigate any small fuel or oil spills that may occur
while performing work, The contractor shall be responsible to promptly pick up and
properly dispose of any contaminated absorbent materials. Contractor shall be. solely
responsible for any notification requirements in accordance with Federal and State Laws. 

F. CONTACTPERSONNEL

Kevin Williams, Utilities Superintendent, 832 -595 -3583. 
E -mail: kevinwQci.rosenberg.tx.us

30



Bid Proposal

Ground Maintenance of Rosenberg City Hall, Rosenberg Police Department, Rosenberg Civic Center, 
Rosenberg Cemetery, Rosenberg Fite Station No. 1, Rosenberg Fire Station No. 2, Rosenberg Fire
Station No. 3, Rosenberg Fire Administration Building, Rosenberg Water Plants and Rosenberg Lift
Stations. 

A Pre -Bid Conference has been set up for Wednesday, March 5, 2014 Q 10: 00 a.m., at the Parks and
Recreation Department, located at 3720 Airport Avenue, Rosenberg, Texas 77471. Completed written
bids must be received by 10. 00 a. m. on Wednesday_ March 19. 2014. Mailing address is: 

BID NO. 2014- 02, Grounds Maintenance Services Contract for the City of Rosenberg
P.O. Box 32

Rosenberg, TX 77471 -0032. 

The contractor may submit in person or by mail for consideration. The reference sheet must accompany
the quote worksheet. No quotes will be considered without the completed reference document. 

The City reserves the right to request additional information or to meet with representatives from
proposing organizations or individuals to discuss points in the proposal before and after submission, any
and all of which may be used in forming a recommendation. 

31

f

T Year, with an
option for an

Additional 1 Year
at the same price

Rosenberg City Hall
Rosenberg Police Department SP

Rosenberg Civic and Convention Center
Rosenborg Cemetery
Rosenberg Fire Station No. 1
Rosenberg Fire Station No. 2
Rosenberg Fire Station No. 3 QC0 5D

Rosenberg Fire Administration Building
Rosenberg Water Plants
Rosenberg Lift Stations
Bid Alternate Fire Station No. 3 Landscape Areas

LUMP SUM TOTALS (without alternate) S

31



ACCEPTANCE OF WRITTEN QUOTES: 

It is understood by the undersigned that the right is reserved by the City to reject any or all written quotes
for this service. 

DATE- i71 

BIDDER: s. A/ YxtlteSFS L

ATTESTISEAL ( if a corporation): 
WITNESS ( if not a corporation): 

MMWA

f
NAME: ) n-rf2k

TITLE- VfC>—p ii CDC) 

32



BIDDER CERTIFICATION

By signature affixed, the bidder certifies that neither the bidder nor the firm, corporation, partnership, or
institution represented by the bidder, or anyone acting for such firm, corporation, or institution has
violated the anti -trust laws of this State, codified in Section 1 5. 01, et seq., Texas Business and Commerce
Code, or the Federal antitrust laws, nor communicated directly or indirectly the bid made to any
competitor or any other person engaged in such fine of business. 

Bidder has examined the specifications and has fully informed themselves as to all terms and conditions. 
Any discrepancies or omissions from the specifications or other documents have been clarified with City
representatives and noted on the bid proposal submitted. 

Bidder guarantees product offered will meet or exceed specifications identified in this bid invitation. 
Bidders agree that the bids submitted shall remain firm for ninety ( 90) days following the date specified
for the opening of bids. 

Bidder Mast Fill In and Sign: . 

J
NAME OF FIRM /COMPANY: lA - 3 % 

AGENTS NAME: 

AGENTS TITLE: ge " t`-' 

MAILING ADDRESS: 

CITY, STATE, ZIP: 

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE: 

DATE OF BID: ter A? /S/ 

33



FULL LEGAL FIRM/COMPANY

BUSINESS STREET ADDRESS: 

BUSINESS MAILING ADDRESf

BIDDER INFORMATION

BUSINESS TELEPHONE NUMBER: 

BUSINESS FA?( NUMBER: 

COUNTY: OWNED: 5_ 

CORPORATION: _ PARTNERSHIP :_ PROPRIETORSHIP:_ L.L.C. ' L.L.P. 

YEAREST.fiZ NO. OF YEARS IN BUSINESS

NATURE OF BUSINESS: 

PRINCIPALS: 

NO. 

ADDRESS / CITY / STATE / ZIP: 

PHONE NO. 

34



BIDDER CUSTOMER 1 CLIENT REFERENCES

Bidders must establish the firm' s work experience and abilities through a minimum of three verifiable
clients within the Fort Bend County or Greater Houston area. References must be for clients with two
2) years or more successful service. 

1. COMPAI

ADDRESS: 

CITY / STA

PHONE NO. 

LENGTH OF CONTRACT: 

NAME OF CONTACT: 

2. COMPAi

ADDRESS: 

CITY / STA

PHONE NO

LENGTH 0

NAME OF i

3. COMPA

ADDRESS: 

CITY / STA

PHONE NC

LENGTH C

NAME OF i

1

35



OFFICIAL BIDDER' S BOND

THE STATE OF TEXAS } 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

COUNTY O°FF FORT BEND } 

I
THAT — we- i _ h±,_ io  l as Principal and the other subscriber hereto

as Surety, do hereby acknowledge ourselves to be held and firmly bound to the City of Rosenberg, 
Texas, as municipal corporation, in the sum of ( an equal to 5% of

the greatest amount bid by the bidder to do the work). 

The condition of this obligation is as follows: 

WHEREAS, the Principal has submitted on or about this date a bid proposal offering to perform

the following: 

Grounds Maintenance Services for the City of Rosenberg

In accordance with the plans, specifications and terms and conditions related thereto to which reference is

hereby made. 

NOW, THEREFORE, if the said Principal' s offer as stated in the Bid Proposal is accepted by

the City, and the said Principal executes and returns to the City the number of original counterparts of the

contract required by the City, on the forms prepared by the City, for the work described herein and also

executes and returns the same number of the Performance, Payment and Maintenance Bonds, if required, 

on the forms prepared by the City, in connection with the work described herein, within the time provided

in the specifications ( such bonds to be executed by a Surety Company authorized to do business in the

State of Texas, and having an underwriting limitation in at least the amount of the bond) then this

obligation is null and void, otherwise it is to remain in full force and effect. 

In the event that the Principal is unable to or fails to perform the obligations undertaken herein, 

the undersigned Principal and Surety shall be liable to the City of Rosenberg for the full amount of this

obligation which is hereby acknowledged as the amount of damages which will be suffered by the City on

account of the failure of such Principal to perform such obligations, the actual amount of such damages

being difficult to ascertain. 

36



EXECUTED this — Ir — day of 2014. 

Printed Name

Title

Surety

Signature

Printed Name

Title

REVIEWED: 

CITY ATTORNEY

ATTEST/WITNESS: 

Signature

Printed Name

V & s + CDe
Title

ATTEST/ WITNESS: ( SEAL) 

Signature

Printed Name

Title

SEAL) 

THE FOREGOING BOND IS APPROVED AND
ACCEPTED ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF
ROSENBERG: 

Robert Gracia, City Manager

37



aRbr
CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 11

DATE

D1

THIS CERTIFICATE S ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES HOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW, THIS CEATIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER( S), AXTHORPFD
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOTDIA

IMPORTANT. 11 ma earlYcate holder H an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pWIcJ( Ha) mart G onderaad N SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, suWmt to
as Is and amdasM of as panty, contain Poodles may require an aldoraerr ont Astabment m this cwdkaa doss net confer NShe m as
m4fimes holder In IMa W Imh Aftraemed(O

PRODUCER . 

HEYDARI FINANCIAL GROUP INC 7 - 4 4 ( 713) 975 - 1722

3120 S W Freeway A 218
igLl&

ali@heydarLfinanclai. com

Houston, TX 77098 1 INe ma" AFFotmlxD DoY m I ' NAIco

INSURED Original DXC Enterprises, LLC INSURER e: — - "-' -- ° --"- --- , 

5330 Griggs Rd, Suite A114 mmm c: Torus Insurance Company

Houston, TX 77021 as,, m D: TeTCaa Mutual Insurance Cos
713- 523 -1202 INSURER E:. 

NSURER F: 

CCvmmAC- -S neoTm" TCIJI IMBCR• REVISION NUMBER- 

748 19 TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICE$ OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE RIaAR® NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTW T STANDNG ANY REOLARENENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBE) HFREN 18 SUBJECT TO ALL THE TEIM
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE GEM REDUCED BY PAID CLANG

W
tYPE OFINBURURCE POLICY NUTABEA LIMITS

A

OWERAL LASILRY

COMMBROML ODIERAL UABIUTY

CWMSaAOE ® OCCUR

VUMC0045310 O/ 16/ 13 0116/ 14

FACN OCGIIRRBlCE i 000 OO
ORBiITSF- 

PREMIN ea amn raU 1 OO

MED EDD' IAaeaneasae I ?. 

PERSOW& ADVINJURY t 11000, 000

aRrFRAJ. ASGREGATTa s 2, 00-0, 00-0

GEIL AOBREOATB

X PiOl1GY

LAWTAPPLESPFA

FIIP
LOC

PRoaxam - ODMPIDpme 7

1

H

AUfONCRAE UA LITY

ANYAVTOALLOYAR D SCHEDULED
AliT08 AUTOS

X HIRED AUTO$ X

AUTED
76UEGXD5030 0/ 16/ 13 0/ 16/ 14

IEN & XIMMM
1, 000, 0 0

IgDILY I" RY ( For Ponanl i

BODILY YiAMY par makall 1

PW owdoll
t

i

C EKCm;v

A DAB

LI, B

X OCCUR

CLAMTHAADe
64111H130ALI 0/ 31/ 13 0 / 16 /14 EACH CCCURRENCE i 41000, 000

AGGREGATE i 4, 000, 000

Dm 1 RETENTION i t

D

MORIfaRSO0A19e$ ITABN . 
AND EMPLOYW IMPART YIN

ry
a

enno.", G

IryaAdeaxb a,OF

NIA

0001259569 0116113 0/ 16/ 14

X

1i ,,

0000D, 000O
ELDISEA9E• EA9Pff

EL DL " AE• PIX1C1' UMIr t 11000, 000

Ohe omer ificatmehoLCOATOi NBm a 01tlwtlACgtD 1D1, Atle a Ramvk the " 

refnglaq
The oertiflLaRte holder is as additional insured on the above re£ertlnced o cial general liability, 

commercial auto, and commercial umbralla policies. A vaiver of enbrogation applias in favor of the

cart-ifieats holder on all referanceed policies. A 30 day notice of cancallationapplies. 

City of Missouri City
Purchasing Office
Attn, Alfonso Guerrero Jr

1522 Texas Parkway
Missouri City, TX 77489

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCE LUED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WALL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WWTH THE POUCY PROVISIONS. 

O 18682010 ACORC CORPORATION. AB

AGORD25 (2D1WW The ACARD nam and logo are regMemd rnaltw of ACORD



DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS AFFAIRS
Center for Veterans Enterprise

Washington, DC 20420

At' l 8 8 2013

Ms. Donna K. Caldwell mrsewyaenrlo oave

Original DKC Enterprises, LLC
DUNS # 037833972
5330 Griggs Road Suite A114
Houston, TX 77021 - 3758

Dear Ms. Caldwell; 

On behalf of 1he U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs (VA), Center for Veterans
Enterprise ( CVE), I am writing to inform you that your service - disabled Veteran -owned
smell business (SDVOSS) has been verified and added to the Veteran business
database at www.vlpmetbiz.gov. Original DKC Enterprises, LLC will be eligible to
participate In Veterans First Contracting Program opportunities with VA. This
verlflcadon is valid for two years from the dale of this letter. 

To promoie your verified status, you.may use the following link to download the
logo for use on your marketing materials and business cards: 

http :t /www.vetblz.govldve_completed s.jpg

To ensure that your business is correctly listed in the Vendor Information Pages, 
check your profile for the verified logo. Please notify us if the logo is not present within
72 hours of receipt of this letter. 

While CVE has confirmed that Original DKC Enterprises, LLC is in compliance
with the Yegulatlons., Original DKC; Enterprises, LLC must inform CVE of any changes or
other circumstanoesthat would adversely affect Its eligibility. Any such changes or
other Circumstances may be grounds for CVE to re- evaluate Original DKC Enterprises, 
LhC' s eligibility far the VIP program. Please be advised that this letter and other
information pertaining to your CVE application they subject to Freedom of

Information Act (FOIA) requests. Additionally, please retain a copy of this letter to
confirm your continued program eliglbility. 

Thank you for your service to our country and for continuing to serve America
through small business ownership. 

Sincerely, 

Gault

Deputy Director
Center for Veterans Enterprise

World Class Professionals

Enabling Veteran 8uslnass Opportunities by Protecting the Veteran Advantago —One Val at 0 Theo



Vendor Information Pages Page 1 of 1

VENDOR INFORMATION PAGES Search 6aafne,asn 1519e Out I Home I HCIP

Qnrsdam Pr rnrcema Cosuct UP: canherrx vmr+ n EnOh. onu evo vvwn. Awuw aw gaawyhw,, Km 20 I ( 09679M - 2xn 1202) wr3MG h V" Ikaor

h1. 5. 6ePPMruhFPl VaMnha eatl.. ISP YemnMPNniw' aW - WuMgbn. M 1Pi} 0

AaNIr. 4NIMXp DnR'. 

httDs:// www. vit). vethi7.. gov/ PublicA nrrh/ Vi wRnx9S( 7M-- Q 11gQn illl lmt 

Find Veteran Businesses

Feel M., I
YPWSeWeh Oanr(r lZY

Sorter. 1 match

Buenas Name - 

i' 

0wa: 3MM912 yrwvw! 

Original DKC Enterprises, LLC ' 
m, ruas. nhMr

State: YerMed Swoseit_ 
U. eMSSem DUNS 037833972

vuWMPSewdseweWS Itt®don: HOUSTON, TX

Phore:( 713) 523. 1202

Email: d9aDP S@Yn . c

Web: hltPJlww•wAlanamrhee2mW hP

Last Modified: 1i /512012

i

Qnrsdam Pr rnrcema Cosuct UP: canherrx vmr+ n EnOh. onu evo vvwn. Awuw aw gaawyhw,, Km 20 I ( 09679M - 2xn 1202) wr3MG h V" Ikaor

h1. 5. 6ePPMruhFPl VaMnha eatl.. ISP YemnMPNniw' aW - WuMgbn. M 1Pi} 0

AaNIr. 4NIMXp DnR'. 

httDs:// www. vit). vethi7.. gov/ PublicA nrrh/ Vi wRnx9S( 7M-- Q 11gQn illl lmt 



DKC Notification 051014
From: Donna Caldwell [dkc2004us@yahoo.com]
Sent: Saturday, May 10, 2014 8:13 AM
To: Paul Rodgers
Cc: Darren McCarthy; Jeffrey Trinker
Subject: Re: W.O.W.Cemetery

Darren

Unfortunately we where not able to complete the cemetery on Friday.

But we did get city hall, civic center, police station, and fire admin on Friday. 

On Tuesday we cut all fire stations, lift stations and water plants with the 
exception of one we missed 
due to bring locked. 

Mr McCarthy please accept this is my notification of termination of contract due to 
not being able to 
meet performance standards.  

Respectfully
Donna Caldwell 
 
On May 9, 2014, at 3:33 PM, Paul Rodgers <paulr@ci.rosenberg.tx.us> wrote:
Just met with your mow crew at the cemetery and showed her the area that was 
marked not to mow. After going over some of the items listed in the contract, she 
informed me that they were leaving at 3:00. She also informed me that they were not 
coming back on Saturday to finish. I’m not sure she would be able to finish on 
Saturday 
anyway with only 3 persons there to mow and weedeat. It is imperative that the 
cemetery be finished by Saturday evening before Mother’s Day. I relayed this info. 
to 
Darren and he agrees that it must be finished by Saturday evening. If not, there 
will be 
a lot of very unhappy people and phone calls. I need to know that this will be taken

care of. They weren’t able to get to the 3 Fire Stations either today. Call me on my
cell 
to let me know what your game plan is so I can report back to Darren and Jeff.

 
"Be advised that emails are subject to the Texas Public Information Act. City emails
should not be considered 
confidential." 
 
ELECTED OFFICIALS, BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS: 
Be advised that email communications could lead to violations of the Texas Open 
Meetings Act.

Page 1

reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 

May 20, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

5 Resolution No. R-1790 – Awarding Bid No. 2014-02 for Grounds 
Maintenance Services Contract  

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1790, a Resolution awarding Bid No. 2014-02 for 
Grounds Maintenance Services; and, authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute, for and on 
behalf of the City, a General Services Contract related thereto and all necessary documentation regarding 
same. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[X] Recurring 
[   ] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[X] Yes  [   ] No  [   ] N/A 

Source of Funds: 

101-1953-540-6240 
501-5054-600-6240 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
1. Bid Summary Form 
2. Proposal 
3. Resolution No. R-1790 
4. Caldwell Email Correspondence - 05-10-14 - Please refer to previous Agenda item 
5. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 04-01-14 – Please refer to previous Agenda item 
6. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 10-22-13 
 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   
 
 
 
Darren McCarthy  
Parks and Recreation Director 

Reviewed by:   

[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services  
[X] Asst. City Manager of Public Services   
[   ] City Attorney   
[   ] City Engineer   
[X] Exec. Dir. of Support Services     
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On Tuesday, April 01, 2014, City Council awarded Bid No. 2014-02 to Original DKC Enterprises, LLC, for 
Grounds Maintenance Services to include mowing at the following City locations: Rosenberg City Hall, 
Rosenberg Police Department, Rosenberg Civic Center, Rosenberg Fire Department Administration Building, 
Rosenberg Fire Departments No. 1, No. 2 and No. 3, the Rosenberg Cemetery, Water Plants, and Lift Stations.  
As stated in the previous Agenda item, staff was informed on May 10, 2014, by Original DKC Enterprises, LLC, 
that they would be terminating the Contract because they could not meet the performance standards.   
 
The bid summary form for the nine (9) responses received is attached.  As stated in the invitation to bid, formal 
bids are valid for ninety (90) days beyond the bid opening.  Staff had worked with Landscape Professionals of 
Texas from 2009-2012 and they performed satisfactory work.  Should City Council award Bid No. 2014-02 as 
recommended, the proposal for Landscape Professionals of Texas will be attached to Resolution No. R-1790 as 
Exhibit “A”.  
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1790, awarding Bid No. 2014-02 for a General Services 
Contract for Grounds Maintenance Services to Landscape Professionals of Texas in the amount of $64,362.00.  
The Contract term will be for one (1) year, effective May 21, 2014, to May 22, 2015, for all facilities. 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

BID NO. COMPANY TOTAL BID  
 
 

CALENDAR  
DAYS 

1.  Original DKC Enterprises, LLC      $40,606.50 365 
 
 

2.  Maldonado Nursery and 
Landscaping 
 

$60,811.00 365 

3.  Landscape Professionals of Texas 
 
 

$64,362.00       365 
 

4.  Growth Services, Inc. 
 
 

$67,414.00       365 
 

5.  Z Best Lawns 
 
 

$70,897.50       365 
 

6.  Earth First Commercial 
 
 

$71,044.27       365 
 

7.  Bio Landscape & Maintenance 
 
 

$88,596.00       365 
 

8.  The Landscape Specialists 
 
 

$96,775.00       365 
 

9.  Rosenberg Tree Service 
 
 

$98,150.00       365 
 

 
GROUNDS MAINTENANCE SERVICES 

BID NO. 2014-02 
BID SUMMARY 

























 
RESOLUTION NO. R-1790 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AWARDING BID NO. 2014-02 FOR GROUNDS 
MAINTENANCE SERVICES; AND, AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF 
OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, APPROPRIATE 
DOCUMENTS AND/OR AGREEMENTS REGARDING SAME. 

 
*  *  *  *  * 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

Section 1. The approval and award of Bid No. 2014-02 to 

_________________________, in the amount of $___________ for Grounds 

Maintenance Services. 

Section 2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to negotiate and execute 

any documentation necessary to facilitate said project. 

Section 3.   A copy of the Proposal is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made 

a part hereof for all purposes. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2014.  

  

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
May 20, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

6 Ordinance No. 2014-22 – Authorizing and Ordering the Issuance of 
Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2014 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2014-22, an Ordinance authorizing and ordering the 
issuance of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, 
Series 2014; awarding the sale thereof; and containing matters incident thereto. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 
 
[   ] One-time 
[X]  Recurring 
[   ]  N/A 

Budgeted: 

[X] Yes  [   ] No  [   ] N/A 

Source of Funds: N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
 

1. Ordinance No. 2014-22 
2. Resolution No. R-1773 – 04-01-14 
3. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 04-01-14  
 

APPROVALS 
Submitted by:   

 
Joyce Vasut 
Executive Director of 
Administrative Services 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services 
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services 
[   ] City Attorney 
[   ] City Engineer 
[X] City Bond Counsel MD/jv  
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council:   
 
 
Robert Gracia  
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On April 01, 2014, City Council adopted Resolution No. R-1773 authorizing publication of Notice of 
Intention to issue Certificates of Obligation, in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $5,000,000 for 
the Lift Station No. 11 Replacement and FY2014 Sanitary Sewer Pipe Bursting Projects. The notice was 
published on April 04, 2014, and April 11, 2014, as required, with an amount not to exceed $5,000,000.00.  
There has been no presentation of a petition by the citizens to call an election to approve the issuance of 
$5,000,000.00 in Certificates of Obligation for improvements to the proposed projects, and to pay the costs 
incurred in connection with the issuance of the Certificates.   
 
Ordinance No. 2014-22 authorizes the issuance of the Certificates and approves the results of the bidding 
process and sale of the Certificates.  The Ordinance also sets forth the procedures for the finalization of 
the sale and delivery of the proceeds to the City.  Joe Morrow of First Southwest Company and Marcus 
Deitz with Fulbright & Jaworski LLP, representing the City as Bond Counsel, will be present at the meeting 
to review the results of the sale with City Council. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance No. 2014-22, an Ordinance authorizing and ordering the 
issuance of the City of Rosenberg, Texas Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 
2014; awarding the sale thereof; and containing matters incident thereto.  
 



96842527.3  
 1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-22 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND ORDERING THE ISSUANCE OF 
THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE 
CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION, SERIES 2014; AWARDING THE SALE 
THEREOF; AND CONTAINING MATTERS INCIDENT THERETO 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Rosenberg, Texas (the “City”), acting through its City Council, 
is authorized pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions of Texas Local Government 
Code Chapter 271, Subchapter C, as amended (the “Act”), to issue certificates of obligation to 
provide all or part of the funds to pay contractual obligations to be incurred for the purchase of 
materials, supplies, equipment, machinery, buildings, land and rights-of-way for authorized 
needs and purposes and for the payment of contractual obligations for professional services, to 
wit: (i) water and sewer system improvements, including the construction and installation of a 
lift station and the installation, repair and replacement of water and sewer lines and (ii) 
professional services rendered in connection with the above listed projects; 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council authorized the publication of a notice of intention to issue 
Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2014 (the “Certificates”) to the 
effect that the City Council was tentatively scheduled to meet at 7:00 p.m. on May 20, 2014, at 
its regular meeting place to adopt an ordinance authorizing the issuance of the Certificates to be 
payable from (i) an ad valorem tax levied, within the limits prescribed by law, on the taxable 
property located within the City, and (ii) the revenues to be derived from the City’s waterworks 
and sewer system (the “Waterworks and Sewer System”) after the payment of all operation and 
maintenance expenses thereof (the “Net Revenues”) in an amount not to exceed $10,000, 
provided that the pledge of Net Revenues is and shall be junior and subordinate in all respects to 
the pledge of Net Revenues to the payment of any obligation of the City, whether authorized 
heretofore or hereafter, which the City designates as having a pledge senior to the pledge of the 
Net Revenues to the payment of the Certificates; 

WHEREAS, such notice was published at the times and in the manner required by the 
Act; 

WHEREAS, no petition signed by at least five percent (5%) of the qualified voters of the 
City has been filed with or presented to any official of the City protesting the issuance of such 
Certificates on or before May 20, 2014, or the date of passage of this Ordinance. 

WHEREAS, the City is authorized by Section 1502.052, Texas Government Code, as 
amended, to pledge the revenues of the Waterworks and Sewer System to the payment of 
certificates. 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that it is in the best interests of the City and that it is 
otherwise desirable to issue the Certificates to provide all or part of the funds to pay contractual 
obligations to be incurred for the purposes authorized by the Act; now therefore,  

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 



96842527.3 2 
 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS 

Section 1.1: Definitions.  As used herein, the following terms shall have the meanings 
specified, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise: 

“Act” shall mean Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 271, Subchapter C, as 
amended. 

“Attorney General” shall mean the Attorney General of the State of Texas. 

“Certificate” or “Certificates” shall mean any or all of the City of Rosenberg, Texas 
Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2014, authorized by this 
Ordinance. 

“City” shall mean the City of Rosenberg, Texas and, where appropriate, its City Council. 

“City Council” shall mean the governing body of the City. 

“Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

“Comptroller” shall mean the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas. 

“Construction Fund” shall mean the Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of 
Obligation, Series 2014 Construction Fund established by the City and described in Section 4.3 
of this Ordinance. 

 “DTC” shall mean The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, or any 
successor securities depository. 
 

“DTC Participant” shall mean brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing 
corporations and certain other organizations on whose behalf DTC was created to hold securities 
to facilitate the clearance and settlement of securities transactions among DTC Participants. 

“Debt Service Fund” shall mean the Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of 
Obligation, Series 2014 Debt Service Fund established by the City and described in Section 4.2 
of this Ordinance. 

“Fiscal Year” shall mean the City’s then designated fiscal year, which currently is the 
twelve month period beginning on the first day of October of a calendar year and ending on the 
last day of September of the next succeeding calendar year and each such period may be 
designated with the number of the calendar year in which such period ends. 

“Interest Payment Date,” when used in connection with any Certificate, shall mean 
September 1, 2014 and each March 1 and September 1 thereafter until maturity or earlier 
redemption of such Certificate.  



96842527.3 3 
 

“MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 

“Ordinance” shall mean this Ordinance and all amendments hereof and supplements 
hereto. 

“Outstanding”, when used with reference to the Certificates, shall mean, as of a particular 
date, all Certificates theretofore and thereupon delivered pursuant to this Ordinance except:  (a) 
any Certificates canceled by or on behalf of the City at or before such date; (b) any Certificates 
defeased pursuant to the defeasance provisions of this Ordinance or otherwise defeased as 
permitted by applicable law; and (c) any Certificates in lieu of or in substitution for which a 
replacement Certificate shall have been delivered pursuant to this Ordinance. 

“Paying Agent/Registrar” shall mean Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., Minneapolis, Minnesota, 
and its successors in that capacity. 

“Purchaser” shall mean the entity or entities specified in Section 6.1 hereof. 

“Record Date” shall mean the close of business on the fifteenth calendar day of the 
calendar month immediately preceding the applicable Interest Payment Date. 

“Register” shall mean the registration books for the Certificates kept by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar in which are maintained the names and addresses of, and the principal amounts 
registered to, each Registered Owner of Certificates. 

“Registered Owner” shall mean the person or entity in whose name any Certificate is 
registered in the Register. 

“Rule” means SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended from time to time.  

“SEC” means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. 

Section 1.2: Interpretations.  All terms defined herein and all pronouns used in this 
Ordinance shall be deemed to apply equally to singular and plural and to all genders.  The titles 
and headings of the articles and sections of this Ordinance have been inserted for convenience of 
reference only and are not to be considered a part hereof and shall not in any way modify or 
restrict any of the terms or provisions hereof.  This Ordinance and all the terms and provisions 
hereof shall be liberally construed to effectuate the purposes set forth herein and to sustain the 
validity of the Certificates and the validity of the levy of ad valorem taxes to pay the principal of 
and interest on the Certificates. 

 Section 1.3: Recitals Incorporated.  The recitals to this Ordinance are hereby approved 
by the City Council and incorporated into and made a part of this Ordinance. 

 



96842527.3 4 
 

ARTICLE II 

TERMS OF THE CERTIFICATES 

Section 2.1: Amount, Purpose and Authorization.  The Certificates shall be issued in 
fully registered form, without coupons, under and pursuant to the authority of the Act in the total 
authorized aggregate principal amount of FIVE MILLION AND NO/100 DOLLARS 
($5,000,000) for the purpose of providing all or part of the funds to pay contractual obligations to 
be incurred for the purchase of materials, supplies, equipment, machinery, buildings, land and 
rights-of-way for authorized needs and purposes and for the payment of contractual obligations 
for professional services, to wit: (i) water and sewer system improvements, including the 
construction and installation of a lift station and the installation, repair and replacement of water 
and sewer lines and (ii) professional services rendered in connection with the above listed 
projects. 

Section 2.2: Designation, Date and Interest Payment Dates.  The Certificates shall be 
designated as the “City of Rosenberg, Texas Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of 
Obligation, Series 2014,” and shall be dated June 1, 2014.  The Certificates shall bear interest 
at the rates set forth in Section 2.3 below, from the later of June 1, 2014 or the most recent 
Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, calculated on the 
basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months, payable on September 1, 2014, and each 
March 1 and September 1 thereafter until maturity or earlier redemption. 

If interest on any Certificate is not paid on any Interest Payment Date and continues 
unpaid for thirty (30) days thereafter, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall establish a new record 
date for the payment of such interest, to be known as a Special Record Date.  The Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall establish a Special Record Date when funds to make such interest payment 
are received from or on behalf of the City.  Such Special Record Date shall be fifteen (15) days 
prior to the date fixed for payment of such past due interest, and notice of the date of payment 
and the Special Record Date shall be sent by United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, not 
later than five (5) days prior to the Special Record Date, to each affected Registered Owner as of 
the close of business on the day prior to mailing of such notice. 

Section 2.3: Numbers, Denomination, Interest Rates and Maturities.  The Certificates 
shall be issued bearing the numbers, in the principal amounts and bearing interest at the rates 
set forth in the following schedule, and may be transferred and exchanged as set out in this 
Ordinance.  The Certificates shall mature on March 1 in each of the years and in the amounts 
set out in such schedule.  Certificates delivered in transfer of or in exchange for other 
Certificates shall be numbered in order of their authentication by the Paying Agent/Registrar, 
shall be in the denomination of $5,000 or integral multiples thereof and shall mature on the 
same date and bear interest at the same rate as the  Certificate or Certificates in lieu of which 
they are delivered. 

Bond 
Number 

Maturity 
(March 1) 

Principal 
Amount 

Interest 
Rate 

R-1 2015 $185,000 % 
R-2 2016 190,000  



96842527.3 5 
 

Bond 
Number 

Maturity 
(March 1) 

Principal 
Amount 

Interest 
Rate 

R-3 2017 190,000  
R-4 2018 195,000  
R-5 2019 200,000  
R-6 2020 205,000  
R-7 2021 210,000  
R-8 2022 220,000  
R-9 2023 225,000  
R-10 2024 235,000  
R-11 2025 240,000  
R-12 2026 250,000  
R-13 2027 265,000  
R-14 2028 275,000  
R-15 2029 285,000  
R-16 2030 300,000  
R-17 2031 310,000  
R-18 2032 325,000  
R-19 2033 340,000  
R-20 2034 355,000  
    

Section 2.4: Redemption Prior to Maturity.  (a)  The City reserves the right, at its 
option, to redeem prior to maturity the Certificates maturing on or after March 1, 2024 in 
whole or in part, in principal installments of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, on March 
1, 2023 or any date thereafter, at a price equal to the principal amount of the Certificates or 
portions thereof called for redemption plus accrued interest to the date of redemption.   

 (b) Certificates may be redeemed in part only in integral multiples of $5,000. 
If a Certificate subject to redemption is in a denomination larger than $5,000, a portion of such 
Certificate may be redeemed, but only in integral multiples of $5,000. In selecting portions of 
Certificates for redemption, each Certificate shall be treated as representing that number of 
Certificates of $5,000 denomination which is obtained by dividing the principal amount of such 
Certificate by $5,000. Upon presentation and surrender of any Certificate for redemption in part, 
the Paying Agent/Registrar, in accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance, shall 
authenticate and deliver in exchange therefor a Certificate or Certificates of like maturity and 
interest rate in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion of the Certificate 
so surrendered. 

(c) Notice of any redemption, identifying the Certificates or portions thereof to be 
redeemed, shall be sent by United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, to the Registered 
Owners thereof at their addresses as shown on the Register, not less than thirty (30) days 
before the date fixed for such redemption. By the date fixed for redemption, due provision 
shall be made with the Paying Agent/Registrar for the payment of the redemption price of the 
Certificates called for redemption. If such notice of redemption is given, and if due provision 
for such payment is made, all as provided above, the Certificates which are to be so redeemed 
thereby automatically shall be redeemed prior to their scheduled maturities, they shall not bear 



96842527.3 6 
 

interest after the date fixed for redemption, and they shall not be regarded as being Outstanding 
except for the purpose of being paid with the funds so provided for such payment. 

Section 2.5: Manner of Payment, Characteristics, Execution and Authentication.  The 
Paying Agent/Registrar is hereby appointed the paying agent for the Certificates.  The 
Certificates shall be payable, shall have the characteristics and shall be executed, sealed, 
registered and authenticated, all as provided and in the manner indicated in the FORM OF 
CERTIFICATES set forth in Article III of this Ordinance.  If any officer of the City whose 
manual or facsimile signature shall appear on the Certificates shall cease to be such officer 
before the authentication of the Certificates or before the delivery of the Certificates, such 
manual or facsimile signature shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes as if 
such officer had remained in such office. 

The approving legal opinion of Fulbright & Jaworski LLP, Houston, Texas, Bond 
Counsel, may be printed on the back of the Certificates over the certification of the City 
Secretary, which may be executed in facsimile.  CUSIP numbers also may be printed on the 
Certificates, but errors or omissions in the printing of either the opinion or the numbers shall 
have no effect on the validity of the Certificates. 

Section 2.6: Authentication.  Except for the Certificates to be initially issued, which 
need not be authenticated by the Paying Agent/Registrar, only such Certificates as shall bear 
thereon a certificate of authentication, substantially in the form provided in Article III of this 
Ordinance, manually executed by an authorized representative of the Paying Agent/Registrar, 
shall be entitled to the benefits of this Ordinance or shall be valid or obligatory for any 
purpose.  Such duly executed certificate of authentication shall be conclusive evidence that the 
Certificate so authenticated was delivered by the Paying Agent/Registrar hereunder.  

Section 2.7: Ownership.  The City, the Paying Agent/Registrar and any other person 
may treat the person in whose name any Certificate is registered as the absolute owner of such 
Certificate for the purpose of making and receiving payment of the principal or thereof and 
interest thereon and for all other purposes, whether or not such Certificate is overdue, and 
neither the City nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be bound by any notice or knowledge to 
the contrary.  All payments made to the person deemed to be the Registered Owner of any 
Certificate in accordance with this Section shall be valid and effective and shall discharge the 
liability of the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar upon such Certificate to the extent of the 
sums paid. 

Section 2.8: Registration, Transfer and Exchange.  The Paying Agent/Registrar is 
hereby appointed the registrar for the Certificates.  So long as any Certificate remains 
Outstanding, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall keep the Register at its principal corporate trust 
office in which, subject to such reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall provide for the registration and transfer of the Certificates in accordance 
with the terms of this Ordinance. 

Each Certificate shall be transferable only upon the presentation and surrender thereof at 
the principal corporate trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar, accompanied by an assignment 
duly executed by the Registered Owner or his authorized representative in form satisfactory to 



96842527.3 7 
 

the Paying Agent/Registrar.  Upon due presentation of any Certificate for transfer, the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver in exchange therefor, within seventy-two (72) 
hours after such presentation, a new Certificate or Certificates, registered in the name of the 
transferee or transferees, in authorized denominations and of the same maturity and aggregate 
principal amount and bearing interest at the same rate as the Certificate or Certificates so 
presented and surrendered. 

All Certificates shall be exchangeable upon the presentation and surrender thereof at the 
principal corporate trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar for a Certificate or Certificates of 
the same maturity and interest rate and in any authorized denomination, in an aggregate principal 
amount equal to the unpaid principal amount of the Certificate or Certificates presented for 
exchange.  The Paying Agent/Registrar shall be and is hereby authorized to authenticate and 
deliver exchange Certificates in accordance with the provisions of this Section.  Each Certificate 
delivered by the Paying Agent/Registrar in accordance with this Section shall be entitled to the 
benefits and security of this Ordinance to the same extent as the Certificate or Certificates in lieu 
of which such Certificate is delivered. 

All Certificates issued in transfer or exchange shall be delivered to the Registered 
Owners thereof at the principal corporate trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar or sent by 
United States mail, first class, postage prepaid. 

The City or the Paying Agent/Registrar may require the Registered Owner of any 
Certificate to pay a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that may be 
imposed in connection with the transfer or exchange of such Certificate.  Any fee or charge of 
the Paying Agent/Registrar for such transfer or exchange shall be paid by the City. 

The Paying Agent/Registrar shall not be required to transfer or exchange any Certificate 
called for redemption in whole or in part during the forty-five (45) day period immediately prior 
to the date fixed for redemption; provided, however, that this restriction shall not apply to the 
transfer or exchange by the Registered Owner of the unredeemed portion of a Certificate called 
for redemption in part. 

Section 2.9: Book-Entry Only System.  The definitive Certificates shall be initially 
issued in the form of a separate single fully registered Certificate for each of the maturities 
thereof.  Upon initial issuance, the ownership of each such Certificate shall be registered in the 
name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, and except as provided in Section 2.11 hereof, all of 
the Outstanding Certificates shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of 
DTC.  Upon delivery by DTC to the Paying Agent/Registrar of written notice to the effect that 
DTC has determined to substitute a new nominee in place of Cede & Co., and subject to the 
provisions in this Ordinance with respect to interest checks being mailed to the Owner at the 
close of business on the Record Date, the word “Cede & Co.” in this Ordinance shall refer to 
such new nominee of DTC. 

With respect to Certificates registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, 
the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation to any DTC 
Participant or to any person on behalf of whom such a DTC Participant holds an interest in the 
Certificates.  Without limiting the immediately preceding sentence, the City and the Paying 



96842527.3 8 
 

Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation with respect to (a) the accuracy of the 
records of DTC, Cede & Co. or any DTC Participant with respect to any ownership interest in 
the Certificates, (b) the delivery to any DTC Participant or any other person, other than a 
Certificateholder, as shown on the Register, of any notice with respect to the Certificates, 
including any notice of redemption or (c) the payment to any DTC Participant or any other 
person, other than a Certificateholder as shown in the Register, of any amount with respect to 
principal of Certificates, premium, if any, or interest on the Certificates. 

Except as provided in Section 2.10 of this Ordinance, the City and the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall be entitled to treat and consider the person in whose name each Certificate 
is registered in the Register as the absolute owner of such Certificate for the purpose of payment 
of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on Certificates, for the purpose of giving notices of 
redemption and other matters with respect to such Certificate, for the purpose of registering 
transfer with respect to such Certificate, and for all other purposes whatsoever.  The Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall pay all principal of Certificates, premium, if any, and interest on the 
Certificates only to or upon the order of the respective owners, as shown in the Register as 
provided in this Ordinance, or their respective attorneys duly authorized in writing, and all such 
payments shall be valid and effective to fully satisfy and discharge the City’s obligations with 
respect to payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Certificates to the extent 
of the sum or sums so paid.  No person other than an owner shall receive a Certificate evidencing 
the obligation of the City to make payments of amounts due pursuant to this Ordinance. 

Section 2.10: Payments and Notices to Cede & Co.  Notwithstanding any other 
provision of this Ordinance to the contrary, as long as any Certificates are registered in the 
name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all payments with respect to principal of, premium, 
if any, and interest on the Certificates, and all notices with respect to such Certificates shall be 
made and given, respectively, in the manner provided in the representation letter of the City to 
DTC. 

Section 2.11: Successor Securities Depository; Transfer Outside Book-Entry Only 
System.  In the event that the City or the Paying Agent/Registrar determines that DTC is 
incapable of discharging its responsibilities described herein and in the representation letter of 
the City to DTC, and that it is in the best interest of the beneficial owners of the Certificates 
that they be able to obtain certificated Certificates, the City or the Paying Agent/Registrar shall 
(a) appoint a successor securities depository, qualified to act as such under Section 17(a) of the 
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, notify DTC of the appointment of such 
successor securities depository and transfer one or more separate Certificates to such successor 
securities depository or (b) notify DTC of the availability through DTC of Certificates and 
transfer one or more separate Certificates to DTC Participants having Certificates credited to 
their DTC accounts.  In such event, the Certificates shall no longer be restricted to being 
registered in the Register in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, but may be 
registered in the name of the successor securities depository, or its nominee, or in whatever 
name or names Certificateholders transferring or exchanging Certificates shall designate, in 
accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance. 

Section 2.12: Replacement Certificates.  Upon the presentation and surrender to the 
Paying Agent/Registrar of a damaged or mutilated Certificate, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall 



96842527.3 9 
 

authenticate and deliver in exchange therefor a replacement Certificate, of the same maturity, 
interest rate and principal amount, bearing a number not contemporaneously outstanding.  The 
City or the Paying Agent/Registrar may require the Registered Owner of such Certificate to 
pay a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in 
connection therewith and any other expenses connected therewith, including the fees and 
expenses of the Paying Agent/Registrar and the City. 

If any Certificate is lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken, the City, pursuant to 
the applicable laws of the State of Texas and ordinances of the City, and in the absence of notice 
or knowledge that such Certificate has been acquired by a bona fide purchaser, shall execute, and 
the Paying Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver, a replacement Certificate of the same 
maturity, interest rate and principal amount, bearing a number not contemporaneously 
outstanding, provided that the Registered Owner thereof shall have: 

(a) furnished to the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar satisfactory evidence of the 
ownership of and the circumstances of the loss, destruction or theft of such 
Certificate;  

(b) furnished such security or indemnity as may be required by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar and the City to save and hold them harmless; 

(c) paid all expenses and charges in connection therewith, including, but not limited 
to, printing costs, legal fees, fees of the Paying Agent/Registrar and any tax or 
other governmental charge that may be imposed; and 

(d) met any other reasonable requirements of the City and the Paying 
Agent/Registrar. 

 If, after the delivery of such replacement Certificate, a bona fide purchaser of the original 
Certificate in lieu of which such replacement Certificate was issued presents for payment such 
original Certificate, the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be entitled to recover such 
replacement Certificate from the person to whom it was delivered or any person taking 
therefrom, except a bona fide purchaser, and shall be entitled to recover upon the security or 
indemnity provided therefor to the extent of any loss, damage, cost or expense incurred by the 
City or the Paying Agent/Registrar in connection therewith. 

If any such mutilated, lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken Certificate has 
become or is about to become due and payable, the City in its discretion may, instead of issuing a 
replacement Certificate, authorize the Paying Agent/Registrar to pay such Certificate. 

Each replacement Certificate delivered in accordance with this Section shall be entitled to 
the benefits and security of this Ordinance to the same extent as the Certificate or Certificates in 
lieu of which such replacement Certificate is delivered. 

Section 2.13: Cancellation.  All Certificates paid or redeemed in accordance with this 
Ordinance, and all Certificates in lieu of which exchange Certificates or replacement 
Certificates are authenticated and delivered in accordance herewith, shall be canceled and 
destroyed upon the making of proper records regarding such payment or redemption.  The 



96842527.3 10 
 

Paying Agent/Registrar shall periodically furnish the City with certificates of destruction of 
such Certificates. 

ARTICLE III 

FORM OF CERTIFICATES 

The form of the Certificates, including the Form of Comptroller’s Registration 
Certificate, Form of Paying Agent/Registrar’s Authentication Certificate, and Form of 
Assignment shall be, respectively, substantially as shown in Exhibit A hereto, with such 
additions, deletions and variations, including an insurance legend or statement, if any, as may be 
necessary or desirable and not prohibited by this Ordinance. 

ARTICLE IV 

SECURITY FOR THE CERTIFICATES 

Section 4.1: Pledge and Levy of Taxes and Revenues.  (a)  To provide for the 
payment of principal of and interest on the Certificates, there is hereby levied, within the limits 
prescribed by law, for the current year and each succeeding year thereafter, while the 
Certificates or any part of the principal thereof and the interest thereon remain outstanding and 
unpaid, an ad valorem tax upon all taxable property within the City sufficient to pay the 
interest on the Certificates and to create and provide a sinking fund of not less than 2% of the 
principal amount of the Certificates or not less than the principal payable out of such tax, 
whichever is greater, with full allowance being made for tax delinquencies and the costs of tax 
collection, and such taxes, when collected, shall be applied to the payment of principal of and 
interest on the Certificates by deposit to the Debt Service Fund (hereinafter defined) and to no 
other purpose. 

(b) The City hereby declares its purpose and intent to provide and levy a tax legally 
sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Certificates, it having been determined that 
the existing and available taxing authority of the City for such purpose is adequate to permit a 
legally sufficient tax.  As long as any Certificates remain outstanding, all moneys on deposit in, 
or credited to, the Debt Service Fund shall be secured by a pledge of security, as provided by law 
for cities in the State of Texas. 

(c) In addition, the City also hereby pledges the revenues to be derived from the 
City’s waterworks and sewer system, after the payment of all operation and maintenance 
expenses thereof (the “Net Revenues”), in an amount not to exceed $10,000, to the payment of 
the principal of and interest on the Certificates, provided that the pledge of Net Revenues is and 
shall be junior and subordinate in all respects to the pledge of Net Revenues to the payment of 
any obligation of the City, whether authorized heretofore or hereafter, which the City designates 
as having a pledge senior to the pledge of the Net Revenues to the payment of the Certificates.  
The City also reserves the right to issue, for any lawful purpose at any time, in one or more 
installments, bonds, certificates of obligation and other obligations of any kind, secured in whole 
or in part by a pledge of Net Revenues, that may be prior and superior in right to, on a parity 
with, or junior and subordinate to the pledge of Net Revenues securing the Certificates. 



96842527.3 11 
 

(d) To pay the interest coming due on the Certificates prior to receipt of the taxes 
levied to pay such interest, there is hereby appropriated from current funds on hand, which are 
hereby certified to be on hand and available for such purpose, an amount sufficient to pay such 
interest, and such amount shall be used for no other purpose. 

Section 4.2: Debt Service Fund.  The Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of 
Obligation, Series 2014 Debt Service Fund (the “Debt Service Fund”) is hereby created as a 
special fund solely for the benefit of the Certificates.  The City shall establish and maintain 
such fund at an official City depository and shall keep such fund separate and apart from all 
other funds and accounts of the City.  Any amount on deposit in the Debt Service Fund shall be 
maintained by the City in trust for the  Registered  Owners  of  the  Certificates.  Such amount, 
plus any other amounts deposited by the City into such fund and any and all investment 
earnings on amounts on deposit in such fund, shall be used only to pay the principal of, 
premium, if any, and interest on the Certificates. 

Section 4.3:  Construction Fund.  The Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of 
Obligation, Series 2014 Construction Fund (the “Construction Fund”) is hereby created as a 
special fund of the City.  Money on deposit in the Construction Fund shall be used only for the 
purposes set forth in Section 2.1 of this Ordinance.  Money on deposit in the Construction 
Fund may, at the option of the City, be invested as permitted by Texas law, provided that all 
such deposits and investments shall be made in such manner that the money required to be 
expended from the Construction Fund will be available at the proper time or times.   

All interest and income derived from such deposits and investments shall remain in the 
Construction Fund, except that, to the extent required by law, such interest and income may be 
applied to make such payments to the United States of America as shall be required to assure that 
interest on the Certificates is exempt from federal income taxation.  Upon the completion of the 
purposes set forth in Section 2.1 of this Ordinance, any surplus funds on deposit in the 
Construction Fund shall be transferred into the Debt Service Fund.   

Section 4.4: Further Proceedings.  After the Certificates to be initially issued have 
been executed, it shall be the duty of the Mayor to deliver the Certificates to be initially issued 
and all pertinent records and proceedings to the Attorney General for examination and 
approval.  After the Certificates to be initially issued shall have been approved by the Attorney 
General, they shall be delivered to the Comptroller for registration.  Upon registration of the 
Certificates to be initially issued, the Comptroller (or a deputy lawfully designated in writing 
to act for the Comptroller) shall manually sign the Comptroller’s registration certificate 
prescribed herein to be affixed or attached to the Certificates to be initially issued, and the seal 
of said Comptroller shall be impressed, or placed in facsimile, thereon. 

ARTICLE V 

CONCERNING THE PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR 

Section 5.1: Acceptance.  Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., Minneapolis, Minnesota is hereby 
appointed as the initial Paying Agent/Registrar for the Certificates pursuant to the terms and 
provisions of the Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement by and between the City and the Paying 



96842527.3 12 
 

Agent/Registrar.  The Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement shall be substantially in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit B, the terms and provisions of which are hereby approved, and the 
Mayor is hereby authorized to execute and deliver such Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement on 
behalf of the City in multiple counterparts and the City Secretary is hereby authorized to attest 
thereto and affix the City’s seal.  Such initial Paying Agent/Registrar and any successor Paying 
Agent/Registrar, by undertaking the performance of the duties of the Paying Agent/Registrar 
hereunder, and in consideration of the payment of any fees pursuant to the terms of any 
contract between the Paying Agent/Registrar and the City and/or the deposits of money 
pursuant to this Ordinance, shall be deemed to accept and agree to abide by the terms of this 
Ordinance. 

Section 5.2: Trust Funds.  All money transferred to the Paying Agent/Registrar in its 
capacity as Paying Agent/Registrar for the Certificates under this Ordinance (except any sums 
representing Paying Agent/Registrar’s fees) shall be held in trust for the benefit of the 
Registered Owners of the Certificates, and shall be disbursed in accordance with this 
Ordinance. 

Section 5.3: Certificates Presented.  Subject to the provisions of Section 5.4, all 
matured Certificates presented to the Paying Agent/Registrar for payment shall be paid without 
the necessity of further instructions from the City.  Such Certificates shall be canceled as 
provided herein. 

Section 5.4: Unclaimed Funds Held by the Paying Agent/Registrar.  Funds held by 
the Paying Agent/Registrar that represent principal of and interest on the Certificates 
remaining unclaimed by the Registered Owner thereof after the expiration of three years from 
the date such funds have become due and payable (a) shall be reported and disposed of by the 
Paying Agent/Registrar in accordance with the provisions of Title 6 of the Texas Property 
Code, as amended, to the extent such provisions are applicable to such funds, or (b) to the 
extent such provisions do not apply to the funds, such funds shall be paid by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar to the City upon receipt by the Paying Agent/Registrar of a written request 
therefor from the City. 

The Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no liability to the Registered Owners of the 
Certificates by virtue of actions taken in compliance with this Section. 

Section 5.5: Paying Agent/Registrar May Own Certificates.  The Paying 
Agent/Registrar in its individual or any other capacity, may become the owner or pledgee of 
Certificates with the same rights it would have if it were not the Paying Agent/Registrar. 

Section 5.6: Successor Paying Agents/Registrars.  The City covenants that at all times 
while any Certificates are Outstanding it will provide a legally qualified bank, trust company, 
financial institution or other agency to act as Paying Agent/Registrar for the Certificates.  The 
City reserves the right to change the Paying Agent/Registrar for the Certificates on not less 
than sixty (60) days’ written notice to the Paying Agent/Registrar, as long as any such notice is 
effective not less than 60 days prior to the next succeeding principal or interest payment date 
on the Certificates.  Promptly upon the appointment of any successor Paying Agent/Registrar, 
the previous Paying Agent/Registrar shall deliver the Register or a copy thereof to the new 



96842527.3 13 
 

Paying Agent/Registrar, and the new Paying Agent/Registrar shall notify each Registered 
Owner, by United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, of such change and of the address of 
the new Paying Agent/Registrar.  Each Paying Agent/Registrar hereunder, by acting in that 
capacity, shall be deemed to have agreed to the provisions of this Ordinance. 

ARTICLE VI 

PROVISIONS CONCERNING SALE AND 

APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS OF CERTIFICATES 

Section 6.1: Sale of Certificates.  The sale of the Certificates to _______ (the 
“Purchaser”) at a price of $_________ (representing the par amount of the Certificates of 
$5,000,000, plus a net re-offering premium of $______) plus accrued interest on the 
Certificates, is hereby approved, and delivery of the Certificates to the Purchaser shall be made 
upon payment therefor in accordance with the terms of sale and the terms and conditions of the 
Purchaser’s bid attached hereto as Exhibit C.  It is hereby officially found, determined and 
declared that the Purchaser is the highest bidder for the Certificates as a result of invitations for 
competitive bids which price and terms are hereby found and determined to be the most 
advantageous reasonably obtainable by the City..  It is further officially found, determined and 
declared that the Certificates have been sold at public sale to the bidder offering the lowest net 
interest cost, which is hereby determined to be a net effective interest rate of _______%, after 
receiving sealed bids pursuant to an Official Notice of Sale and Preliminary Official Statement 
prepared and distributed in connection with the sale of the Certificates.  The Initial Certificates 
shall be registered in the name of the Purchaser. 

Section 6.2: Approval, Registration and Delivery.  The Mayor is hereby authorized to 
have control and custody of the Certificates and all necessary records and proceedings 
pertaining thereto pending their delivery, and the Mayor  and other officers and employees of 
the City are hereby authorized and directed to make such certifications and to execute such 
instruments as may be necessary to accomplish the delivery of the Certificates and to assure 
the investigation, examination and approval thereof by the Attorney General and the 
registration of the initial Certificates by the Comptroller.  Upon registration of the Certificates, 
the Comptroller (or the Comptroller’s certificates clerk or an assistant certificates clerk 
lawfully designated in writing to act for the Comptroller) shall manually sign the Comptroller’s 
Registration Certificates prescribed herein to be attached or affixed to each Certificates 
initially delivered and the seal of the Comptroller shall be impressed or printed or lithographed 
thereon. 

Section 6.3: Offering Documents; Ratings.  The City hereby approves the form and 
contents of the Preliminary Official Statement, attached hereto as Exhibit D and the final 
Official Statement, attached hereto as Exhibit E, dated as of the date hereof, relating to the 
Certificates, and any addenda, supplement or amendment thereto, and ratifies and approves the 
distribution of such Preliminary Official Statement and Official Statement in the offer and sale 
of the Certificates and in the reoffering of the Certificates by the Purchaser, with such changes 
therein or additions thereto as the officials executing same may deem advisable, such 
determination to be conclusively evidenced by their execution thereof.  The Mayor is hereby 
authorized and directed to execute, and the City Secretary is hereby authorized and directed to 
attest, the final Official Statement.  It is further hereby officially found, determined and 



96842527.3 14 
 

declared that the statements and representations contained in the Preliminary Official 
Statement and final Official Statement are true and correct in all material respects, to the best 
knowledge and belief of the City Council, and that, as of the date thereof, the Preliminary 
Official Statement was an official statement of the City with respect to the Certificates that was 
deemed “final” by an authorized official of the City except for the omission of no more than 
the information permitted by subsection (b)(1) of Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission. 

Further, the City Council hereby ratifies, authorizes and approves the actions of the 
Mayor, the City’s financial advisor and other consultants in seeking ratings on the Certificates 
from Moody’s Investor’s Service, Inc. and Standard & Poor’s Ratings Group and such actions 
are hereby ratified and confirmed. 
 

Section 6.4: Application of Proceeds of Certificates.  Proceeds from the sale of the 
Certificates shall, promptly upon receipt by the City, be applied as follows: 

(1) Accrued interest in the amount of $_________ shall be deposited into the Debt 
Service Fund created in Section 4.2 of this Ordinance; 

(2) A portion of the proceeds in the amount of $________ shall be applied to pay 
expenses arising in connection with the issuance of the Certificates, including the 
Underwriter’s Discount; 

The remaining proceeds in the amount of $5,000,000 shall be deposited into the 
Construction Fund created in Section 4.3 of this Ordinance. 

Section 6.5: Tax Exemption.   

(1) Definitions. When used in this Section, the following terms have the following 
meanings: 

“Closing Date” shall mean the first date of physical delivery of the initial 
Certificates in exchange for the payment therefor. 

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended by all legislation, 
if any, effective on or before the Closing Date. 

“Computation Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.148-1(b) of the 
Regulations. 

“Gross Proceeds” means any proceeds as defined in Section 1.148-1(b) of the 
Regulations, and any replacement proceeds as defined in Section 1.148-1(c) of the 
Regulations, of the Certificates. 

“Investment” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.148-1(b) of the Regulations. 

“Nonpurpose Investment” means any investment property, as defined in section 
148(b) of the Code, in which Gross Proceeds of the Certificates are invested and 
which is not acquired to carry out the governmental purposes of the Certificates. 



96842527.3 15 
 

“Rebate Amount” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.148-1(b) of the 
Regulations. 

“Regulations” means any proposed, temporary, or final Income Tax Regulations 
issued pursuant to sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Code, and 103 of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1954, which are applicable to the Certificates.  Any 
reference to any specific Regulation shall also mean, as appropriate, any 
proposed, temporary or final Income Tax Regulation designed to supplement, 
amend or replace the specific Regulation referenced. 

“Yield” of 

  (i) any Investment has the meaning set forth in Section 1.148-
5 of the Regulations; and 

  (ii) the Certificates has the meaning set forth is Section 1.148-4 
of the Regulations. 

(2) Not to Cause Interest to Become Taxable.  The City shall not use, permit the use 
of, or omit to use Gross Proceeds or any other amounts (or any property the 
acquisition, construction or improvement of which is to be financed directly or 
indirectly with Gross Proceeds) in a manner which if made or omitted, 
respectively, would cause the interest on any Certificate to become includable in 
the gross income, as defined in section 61 of the Code, of the owner thereof for 
federal income tax purposes.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, 
unless and until the City receives a written opinion of counsel nationally 
recognized in the field of municipal bond law to the effect that failure to comply 
with such covenant will not adversely affect the exemption from federal income 
tax of the interest on any Certificate, the City shall comply with each of the 
specific covenants in this Section. 

(3) No Private Use or Private Payments.  Except to the extent that it will not cause 
the Certificates to become “private activity bonds” within the meaning of section 
141 of the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall at all 
times prior to the last stated maturity of Certificates: 

  (i) exclusively own, operate and possess all property the 
acquisition, construction or improvement of which is to be financed or refinanced 
directly or indirectly with Gross Proceeds of the Certificates, and not use or 
permit the use of such Gross Proceeds (including all contractual arrangements 
with terms different than those applicable to the general public) or any property 
acquired, constructed or improved with such Gross Proceeds in any activity 
carried on by any person or entity (including the United States or any agency, 
department and instrumentality thereof) other than a state or local government, 
unless such use is solely as a member of the general public; and 

  (ii) not directly or indirectly impose or accept any charge or 
other payment by any person or entity who is treated as using Gross Proceeds of 



96842527.3 16 
 

the Certificates or any property the acquisition, construction or improvement of 
which is to be financed or refinanced directly or indirectly with such Gross 
Proceeds, other than taxes of general application within the City or interest earned 
on investments acquired with such Gross Proceeds pending application for their 
intended purposes. 

(4) No Private Loan.  Except to the extent that it will not cause the Certificates to 
become “private activity bonds” within the meaning of section 141 of the Code 
and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall not use Gross Proceeds 
of the Certificates to make or finance loans to any person or entity other than a 
state or local government.  For purposes of the foregoing covenant, such Gross 
Proceeds are considered to be “loaned” to a person or entity if: (1) property 
acquired, constructed or improved with such Gross Proceeds is sold or leased to 
such person or entity in a transaction which creates a debt for federal income tax 
purposes; (2) capacity in or service from such property is committed to such 
person or entity under a take or pay, output or similar contract or arrangement; or 
(3) indirect benefits, or burdens and benefits of ownership, of such Gross 
Proceeds or any property acquired, constructed or improved with such Gross 
Proceeds are otherwise transferred in a transaction which is the economic 
equivalent of a loan. 

(5) Not to Invest at Higher Yield.  Except to the extent that it will not cause the 
Certificates to become “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of section 148 of the 
Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall not at any time 
prior to the final stated maturity of the Certificates directly or indirectly invest 
Gross Proceeds in any Investment, if as a result of such investment the Yield of 
any Investment acquired with Gross Proceeds, whether then held or previously 
disposed of, materially exceeds the Yield of the Certificates. 

(6) Not Federally Guaranteed.  Except to the extent permitted by section 149(b) of 
the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall not take or 
omit to take any action which would cause the Certificates to be federally 
guaranteed within the meaning of section 149(b) of the Code and the Regulations 
and rulings thereunder. 

(7) Information Report.  The City shall timely file the information required by section 
149(e) of the Code with the Secretary of the Treasury on Form 8038-G or such 
other form and in such place as the Secretary may prescribe. 

(8) Rebate of Arbitrage Profits.  Except to the extent otherwise provided in section 
148(f) of the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder: 

  (i) The City shall account for all Gross Proceeds (including all 
receipts, expenditures and investments thereof) on its books of account separately 
and apart from all other funds (and receipts, expenditures and investments 
thereof) and shall retain all records of accounting for at least six years after the 
day on which the last outstanding Certificate is discharged.  However, to the 



96842527.3 17 
 

extent permitted by law, the City may commingle Gross Proceeds of the 
Certificates with other money of the City, provided that the City separately 
accounts for each receipt and expenditure of Gross Proceeds and the obligations 
acquired therewith. 

  (ii) Not less frequently than each Computation Date, the City 
shall calculate the Rebate Amount in accordance with rules set forth in section 
148(f) of the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder.  The City shall 
maintain such calculations with its official transcript of proceedings relating to the 
issuance of the Certificates until six years after the final Computation Date. 

  (iii) As additional consideration for the purchase of the 
Certificates by the purchasers thereof and the loan of the money represented 
thereby and in order to induce such purchase by measures designed to insure the 
excludability of the interest thereon from the gross income of the owners thereof 
for federal income tax purposes, the City shall pay to the United States out of the 
Debt Service Fund or its general fund, as permitted by applicable Texas statute, 
regulation or opinion of the Attorney General of the State of Texas, the amount 
that when added to the future value of previous rebate payments made for the 
Certificates equals (i) in the case of a Final Computation Date as defined in 
Section 1.148-3(e)(2) of the Regulations, one hundred percent (100%) of the 
Rebate Amount on such date; and (ii) in the case of any other Computation Date, 
ninety percent (90%) of the Rebate Amount on such date.  In all cases, the rebate 
payments shall be made at the times, in the installments, to the place and in the 
manner as is or may be required by section 148(f) of the Code and the 
Regulations and rulings thereunder, and shall be accompanied by Form 8038-T or 
such other forms and information as is or may be required by section 148(f) of the 
Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder. 

  (iv) The City shall exercise reasonable diligence to assure that 
no errors are made in the calculations and payments required by paragraphs (2) 
and (3), and if an error is made, to discover and promptly correct such error 
within a reasonable amount of time thereafter (and in all events within one 
hundred eighty (180) days after discovery of the error), including payment to the 
United States of any additional Rebate Amount owed to it, interest thereon, and 
any penalty imposed under Section 1.148-3(h) of the Regulations. 

(9) Not to Divert Arbitrage Profits.  Except to the extent permitted by section 148 of 
the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall not, at any 
time prior to the earlier of the Stated Maturity or final payment of the Certificates, 
enter into any transaction that reduces the amount required to be paid to the 
United States pursuant to Subsection 8 of this Section because such transaction 
results in a smaller profit or a larger loss than would have resulted if the 
transaction had been at arm’s length and had the Yield of the Certificates not been 
relevant to either party. 



96842527.3 18 
 

(10) Elections.  The City hereby directs and authorizes the Mayor, the City Secretary, 
the City Manager, the City’s Financial Director and the City’s legal advisor, 
either or any combination of them, to make elections permitted or required 
pursuant to the provisions of the Code or the Regulations, as they deem necessary 
or appropriate in connection with the Certificates, in the Certificate as to Tax 
Exemption or similar or other appropriate certificate, form or document.  Such 
elections shall be deemed to be made on the Closing Date. 

 Section 6.6: Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations.  In accordance with the provisions of 
paragraph (3) of subsection (b) of Section 265 of the Code, the City will designate the 
Certificates to be “qualified tax exempt obligations” in that the Certificates are not “private 
activity bonds” as defined in the Code and the reasonably anticipated amount of “tax exempt 
obligations” to be issued by the City (including all subordinate entities of the City) for the 
calendar year 2014 will not exceed $10,000,000.  

Section 6.7: Related Matters.  In order that the City shall satisfy in a timely manner 
all of its obligations under this Ordinance, the Mayor, City Secretary and all other appropriate 
officers, agents, representatives and employees of the City are hereby authorized and directed 
to take all other actions that are reasonably necessary to provide for the issuance and delivery 
of the Certificates, including, without limitation, executing and delivering on behalf of the City 
all certificates, consents, receipts, requests, notices, and other documents as may be reasonably 
necessary to satisfy the City’s obligations under this Ordinance and to direct the transfer and 
application of funds of the City consistent with the provisions of this Ordinance. 

ARTICLE VII 
 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 
 
 Section 7.1: Continuing Disclosure Undertaking.  The City shall provide annually to 
the MSRB, within six (6) months after the end of each fiscal year and in an electronic format 
prescribed by the MSRB, financial information and operating data with respect to the City of the 
general type described in the Official Statement, being the information described in Exhibit F 
attached hereto.  Any financial statements so to be provided shall be (a) prepared in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles for governmental units as prescribed by the 
Government Accounting Standards Board from time to time, as such principles may be changed 
from time to time to comply with state or federal law or regulation and (b) audited, if the City 
commissions an audit of such statements and the audit is completed within the period during 
which they must be provided. If audited financial statements are not available at the time the 
financial information and operating data must be provided, then the City shall provide unaudited 
financial statements for the applicable fiscal year to the MSRB and shall provide to the MSRB 
audited financial statements, when and if the same become available. 

If the City changes its Fiscal Year, it will notify the MSRB of the change (and of the date 
of the new fiscal year end) prior to the next date by which the City otherwise would be required 
to provide financial information and operating data pursuant to this Article. 



96842527.3 19 
 

The financial information and operating data to be provided pursuant to this Article may 
be set forth in full in one or more documents or may be included by specific reference to 
documents (i) available to the public on the MSRB’s internet web site or (ii) filed with the SEC. 

Section 7.2:  Material Event Notices.  The City shall file notice of any of the following 
events with respect to the Certificates to the MSRB in a timely manner and not more than 10 
business days after occurrence of the event: 

(1) Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

(2) Non-payment related defaults, if material; 

(3) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 

(4) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 

(5) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 

(6) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or 
final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-
TEB), or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax exempt 
status of the Certificates, or other material events affecting the tax status of the 
Certificates; 

(7) Modifications to rights of holders of the Certificates, if material; 

(8) Certificate calls, if material, and tender offers; 

(9) Defeasances; 

(10) Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Certificates, if 
material;  

(11) Rating changes; 

(12) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, or similar event of the City, which shall 
occur as described below; 

(13) The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the City or 
the sale of all or substantially all of its assets, other than in the ordinary course of 
business, the entry into of a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the 
termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than 
pursuant to its terms, if material; and 

(14) Appointment of a successor or additional Paying Agent/Registrar or the change of 
name of a Paying Agent/Registrar, if material. 

For these purposes, any event described in the immediately preceding paragraph (l) is 
considered to occur when any of the following occur:  the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent, 



96842527.3 20 
 

or similar officer for the City in a proceeding under the United States Bankruptcy Code or in any 
other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has 
assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the City, or if such 
jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers in 
possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the 
entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement, or liquidation by a court or 
governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or 
business of the City. 

 Section 7.3: Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments.  The City shall be obligated to 
observe and perform the covenants specified in this Article for so long as, but only for so long as, 
the City remains an “obligated person” with respect to the Certificates within the meaning of the 
Rule, except that the City in any event will give the notice required by Section 7.2 of any 
Certificate calls and defeasance that cause the City to be no longer such an “obligated person.” 

The provisions of this Article are for the sole benefit of the Holders and beneficial 
owners of the Certificates, and nothing in this Article, express or implied, shall give any benefit 
or any legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to any other person. The City 
undertakes to provide only the financial information, operating data, principal statements, and 
notices which it has expressly agreed to provide pursuant to this Article and does not hereby 
undertake to provide any other information that may be relevant or material to a complete 
presentation of the City’s financial results, condition, or prospects or hereby undertake to update 
any information provided in accordance with this Article or otherwise, except expressly provided 
herein. The City does not make any representation or warranty concerning such information or 
its usefulness to a decision to invest in or sell Certificates at any future date. 

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE CITY BE LIABLE TO THE HOLDER 
OR BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY CERTIFICATE OR ANY OTHER PERSON, IN 
CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR DAMAGES RESULTING IN WHOLE OR IN PART FROM 
ANY BREACH BY THE CITY, WHETHER NEGLIGENT OR WITHOUT FAULT ON ITS 
PART, OF ANY COVENANT SPECIFIED IN THIS ARTICLE, BUT EVERY RIGHT AND 
REMEDY OF ANY SUCH PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR OR ON ACCOUNT 
OF ANY SUCH BREACH SHALL BE LIMITED TO AN ACTION FOR MANDAMUS OR 
SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE. 

No default by the City in observing or performing its obligations under this Article shall 
constitute a breach of or default under the Ordinance for purposes of any other provision of this 
Ordinance. 

Nothing in this Article is intended or shall act to disclaim, waive, or otherwise limit the 
duties of the City under federal and state securities law. 

The provisions of this Article may be amended by the City from time to time to adapt to 
changed circumstances that arise from a change, legal requirements, a change in law, or a change 
in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of the City, but only if (1) the provisions of 
this Article, as so amended, would have permitted an underwriter to purchase or sell Certificates 
in the primary offering of the Certificates in compliance with the Rule, taking into account any 



96842527.3 21 
 

amendments or interpretations of the Rule to the date of such amendment, as well as such 
changed circumstances and (2) either (a) the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount 
(or any greater amount required by any other provision of this Ordinance that authorizes such an 
amendment) of the Outstanding Certificates consent to such amendment or (b) a person that is 
unaffiliated with the City (such as nationally recognized bond counsel) determines that such 
amendment will not materially impair the interest of the Holders and beneficial owners of the 
Certificates. If the City so amends the provisions of this Article it shall include with any 
amended financial information or operating data next provided in accordance with Section 7.1 an 
explanation in narrative form of the reasons for the amendment and of the impact of any change 
in the type of financial information or operating data so provided. The City may also amend or 
repeal the provisions of this continuing disclosure agreement if the SEC amends or repeals the 
applicable provision of the Rule or a court of final jurisdiction enters judgment that such 
provisions of the Rule are invalid, but only if and to the extent that the provisions of this 
sentence would not prevent an underwriter from lawfully purchasing or selling Certificates in the 
primary offering of the Certificates. 

 Section 7.4: Information Format.  The City information required under this Article 
shall be filed with the MSRB through EMMA in such format and accompanied by such 
identifying information as may be specified from time to time thereby.  Under the current rules 
of the MSRB, continuing disclosure documents submitted to EMMA must be in word-searchable 
portable document format (PDF) files that permit the document to be saved, viewed, printed, and 
retransmitted by electronic means and the series of obligations to which such continuing 
disclosure documents relate must be identified by CUSIP number or numbers. 
 
 Financial information and operating data to be provided pursuant to this Article may be 
set forth in full in one or more documents or may be included by specific reference to any 
document (including an official statement or other offering document) available to the public 
through EMMA or filed with the SEC. 
 

ARTICLE VIII 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 
 Section 8.1: Defeasance. The City may defease the provisions of this Ordinance and 
discharge its obligations to the Registered Owners of any or all of the Certificates to pay the 
principal of and interest thereon in any manner now or hereafter permitted by law, including by 
depositing with the Paying Agent/Registrar or with the State Treasurer of the State of Texas 
either: 
 

(a) cash in an amount equal to the principal amount of such Certificates plus interest 
thereon to the date of maturity or redemption; or  

(b) pursuant to an escrow or trust agreement, cash and/or (i) direct noncallable 
obligations of United States of America, including obligations that are 
unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of America; (ii) noncallable 
obligations of an agency or instrumentality of the United States, including 
obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the agency or 



96842527.3 22 
 

instrumentality and that, on the date the governing body of the issuer adopts or 
approves the proceedings authorizing the issuance of refunding bonds, are rated as 
to investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm not less 
than AAA or its equivalent; or (iii) noncallable obligations of a state or an agency 
or a City, municipality, or other political subdivision of a state that have been 
refunded and that, on the date the governing body of the issuer adopts or approves 
the proceedings authorizing the issuance of refunding bonds, are rated as to 
investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than 
AAA or its equivalent, which, in the case of (i), (ii) or (iii), may be in book-entry 
form, and the principal of and interest on which will, when due or redeemable at 
the option of the holder, without further investment or reinvestment of either the 
principal amount thereof or the interest earnings thereon, provide money in an 
amount which, together with other moneys, if any, held in such escrow at the 
same time and available for such purpose, shall be sufficient to provide for the 
timely payment of the principal of and interest thereon to the date of maturity or 
earlier redemption;  

provided, however, that if any of the Certificates are to be redeemed prior to their respective 
dates of maturity, provision shall have been made for giving notice of redemption as provided 
in this Ordinance.  Upon such deposit, such Certificates shall no longer be regarded to be 
Outstanding or unpaid.  Any surplus amounts not required to accomplish such defeasance shall 
be returned to the City. 

Section 8.2: Ordinance a Contract - Amendments.  This Ordinance shall constitute a 
contract with the Registered Owners from time to time, be binding on the City, and shall not be 
amended or repealed by the City so long as any Certificate remains Outstanding except as 
permitted in this Section.  The City may, without the consent of or notice to any Registered 
Owners, from time to time and at any time, amend this Ordinance in any manner not 
detrimental to the interests of the Registered Owners, including the curing of any ambiguity, 
inconsistency, or formal defect or omission herein.  In addition, the City may, with the consent 
of Registered Owners who own in the aggregate 51% of the principal amount of the 
Certificates then Outstanding, amend, add to, or rescind any of the provisions of this 
Ordinance; provided that, without the consent of all Registered Owners of Outstanding 
Certificates, no such amendment, addition, or rescission shall (1) extend the time or times of 
payment of the principal of and interest on the Certificates, reduce the principal amount 
thereof, the redemption price, or the rate of interest thereon, or in any other way modify the 
terms of payment of the principal of or interest on the Certificates, (2) give any preference to 
any Certificate over any other Certificate, or (3) reduce the aggregate principal amount of 
Certificates required to be held by Registered Owners for consent to any such amendment, 
addition, or rescission.  

Section 8.3: Legal Holidays.  In any case where the date interest accrues and becomes 
payable on the Certificates or principal of the Certificates matures or the date fixed for 
redemption of any Certificates or a Record Date shall be in the City a Saturday, Sunday, legal 
holiday or a day on which banking institutions are authorized by law to close, then payment of 
interest or principal need not be made on such date, or the Record Date shall not occur on such 
date, but payment may be made or the Record Date shall occur on the next succeeding day 



96842527.3 23 
 

which is not in the City a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which banking 
institutions are authorized by law to close with the same force and effect as if (i) made on the 
date of maturity or the date fixed for redemption and no interest shall accrue for the period 
from the date of maturity or redemption to the date of actual payment or (ii) the Record Date 
had occurred on the fifteenth day of that calendar month. 

Section 8.4: No Recourse Against City Officials.  No recourse shall be had for the 
payment of principal of or interest on any Certificates or for any claim based thereon or on this 
Ordinance against any official of the City or any person executing any Certificates. 

Section 8.5: Further Proceedings.  The Mayor, City Secretary and other appropriate 
officials of the City are hereby authorized and directed to do any and all things necessary 
and/or convenient to carry out the terms of this Ordinance. 

Section 8.6: Severability.  If any Section, paragraph, clause or provision of this 
Ordinance shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or 
unenforceability of such Section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the 
remaining provisions of this Ordinance. 

Section 8.7: Open Meeting.  It is hereby found, determined and declared that a 
sufficient written notice of the date, hour, place and subject of the meeting of the City Council 
at which this Ordinance was adopted was posted at a place convenient and readily accessible at 
all times to the general public at City Hall for the time required by law preceding this meeting, 
as required by the Open Meetings Law, Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, and that this 
meeting has been open to the public as required by law at all times during which this 
Ordinance and the subject matter thereof has been discussed, considered and formally acted 
upon.  The City Council further ratifies, approves and confirms such written notice and the 
contents and posting thereof. 

Section 8.8: Repealer.  All orders, resolutions and ordinances, or parts thereof, 
inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such inconsistency. 

Section 8.9: Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in force and effect from and 
after its passage on the date shown below. 

Section 8.10:  Preamble.  The facts and recitations set forth in the preamble of this 
Ordinance are hereby found to be true and correct.  

 
 

[signature page follows] 



96842527.3  
S-1 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of  ______ “ayes” in favor and _______ “no’s” 
against on this first and final reading in full compliance with the provisions of Section 3.10 of the 
Charter of the City of Rosenberg on this, the 20th day of May, 2014. 

 CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS 

  
Mayor 

 

ATTEST 

 

  
City Secretary 

(SEAL) 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

  
City Attorney 

  

 

 

Exhibits: 

Exhibit A – Form of Certificate 
Exhibit B – Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement 
Exhibit C – Winning Bid 
Exhibit D – Preliminary Official Statement  
Exhibit E – Official Statement 
Exhibit F – Description of Annual Financial Information 
 



 

96842527.3  
 A-1 

EXHIBIT A 
 

FORM OF CERTIFICATE 
 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF TEXAS 

CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS 
COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION, SERIES 2014 

 
NUMBER DENOMINATION 
1R-  $_______________ 
REGISTERED  REGISTERED 

 
2INTEREST 

RATE: 
DATED  
DATE: 

2MATURITY 
DATE: 

 
2CUSIP: 

_________% June 1, 2014 March 1, ____  
 
REGISTERED OWNER: 
 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: DOLLARS 
 

3THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, a municipal corporation of the State of Texas 
(the “City”), for value received, hereby promises to pay to the Registered Owner identified above 
or its registered assigns, on the maturity date specified above, upon presentation and surrender of 
this Certificate at the principal corporate trust office of Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., Minneapolis, 
Minnesota, or its successor (the “Paying Agent/Registrar”), the principal amount identified 
above payable in any coin or currency of the United States of America which on the date of 
payment of such principal is legal tender for the payment of debts due to the United States of 
America, and to pay interest thereon at the rate shown above, calculated on a basis of a 360-day 
year composed of twelve 30-day months, from the later of the Dated Date identified above or the 
most recent interest payment date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for.  Interest 
                                                 
1 Initial Certificate shall be numbered T-1. 
2 Omitted from the Initial Certificate. 
3 The first sentence of the Initial Certificate shall read as follows: 

“THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, a municipal corporation of the State of Texas (the “City”), for 
value received, hereby promises to pay to the Registered Owner identified above or its registered assigns, 
on March 1 of each of the years and in the principal amounts set forth in the following schedule: [Insert 
information regarding years of maturity, principal amounts and interest rates from Section 2.3 of the 
Ordinance], upon presentation and surrender of this Certificate at the principal corporate trust office of 
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., Minneapolis, Minnesota, or its successor (the “Paying Agent/Registrar”), payable 
in any coin or currency of the United States of America which on the date of payment of such principal is 
legal tender for the payment of debts due to the United States of America, and to pay interest thereon at the 
rate shown above, calculated on a basis of a 360-day year composed of twelve 30-day months, from the 
later of the Dated Date identified above or the most recent interest payment date to which interest has been 
paid or duly provided for.” 



96842527.3  
A-2 

on this Certificate is payable on September 1, 2014, and each March 1 and September 1 
thereafter until maturity of this Certificate, by check sent by United States mail, first class, 
postage prepaid, by the Paying Agent/Registrar to the Registered Owner of record as of the close 
of business on the fifteenth calendar day of the calendar month immediately preceding the 
applicable interest payment date, as shown on the registration books kept by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar.  Any accrued interest payable at maturity shall be paid upon presentation and 
surrender of this Certificate at the principal corporate trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar. 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ONE OF A DULY AUTHORIZED SERIES OF 
CERTIFICATES (the “Certificates”) in the aggregate principal amount of $5,000,000 issued 
pursuant to an ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City on May 20, 2014 (the 
“Ordinance”) for the purpose of providing all or part of the funds to pay contractual obligations 
to be incurred for the purchase of materials, supplies, equipment, machinery, buildings, land and 
rights-of-way for authorized needs and purposes and for the payment of contractual obligations 
for professional services, to wit: (i) water and sewer system improvements, including the 
construction and installation of a lift station and the installation, repair and replacement of water 
and sewer lines and (ii) professional services rendered in connection with the above listed 
projects. 

 
4THIS CERTIFICATE shall not be valid or obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to 

any benefit under the Ordinance unless this Certificate is authenticated by the Registrar by due 
execution of the authentication certificate endorsed hereon. 

 
THE CITY RESERVES THE RIGHT, at its option, to redeem prior to maturity the 

Certificates maturing on or after March 1, 2024, in whole or in part, in principal installments of 
$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, on March 1, 2023, or any date thereafter, at a price 
equal to the principal amount of the Certificates or portions thereof called for redemption plus 
accrued interest to the date of redemption.   

CERTIFICATES MAY BE REDEEMED IN PART only in integral multiples of $5,000. 
If a Certificate subject to redemption is in a denomination larger than $5,000, a portion of such 
Certificate may be redeemed, but only in integral multiples of $5,000. In selecting portions of 
Certificates for redemption, each Certificate shall be treated as representing that number of 
Certificates of $5,000 denomination which is obtained by dividing the principal amount of such 
Certificate by $5,000. Upon surrender of any Certificate for redemption in part, the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, in accordance with the provisions of the Ordinance, shall authenticate and 
deliver in exchange therefor a Certificate or Certificates of like maturity and interest rate in an 
aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion of the Certificate so surrendered. 

 
NOTICE OF ANY SUCH REDEMPTION, identifying the Certificates or portions 

thereof to be redeemed, shall be sent by United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, to the 
Registered Owners thereof at their addresses as shown on the books of registration kept by the 

                                                 
4  In the Initial Certificate, this paragraph shall read:  “THIS CERTIFICATE shall not be valid or obligatory for any 
purpose or be entitled to any benefit under the Ordinance unless this Certificate is registered by the Comptroller of 
Public Accounts of the State of Texas by registration certificate attached or affixed hereto.” 



96842527.3  
A-3 

Paying Agent/Registrar, not less than thirty (30) days before the date fixed for such redemption. 
By the date fixed for redemption, due provision shall be made with the Paying Agent/Registrar 
for the payment of the redemption price of the Certificates called for redemption. If such notice 
of redemption is given, and if due provision for such payment is made, all as provided above, the 
Certificates which are to be so redeemed thereby automatically shall be redeemed prior to their 
scheduled maturities, they shall not bear interest after the date fixed for redemption, and they 
shall not be regarded as being outstanding except for the purpose of being paid with the funds so 
provided for such payment. 

 
THIS CERTIFICATE IS TRANSFERABLE only upon presentation and surrender at the 

principal corporate trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar, accompanied by an assignment 
duly executed by the Registered Owner or its authorized representative, subject to the terms and 
conditions of the Ordinance. 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS EXCHANGEABLE at the principal corporate trust office of the 
Paying Agent/Registrar for a Certificate or Certificates of the same maturity and interest rate and 
in the principal amount of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, subject to the terms and 
conditions of the Ordinance. 

THE PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR is not required to accept for transfer or exchange 
any Certificate called for redemption, in whole or in part, during the forty-five (45) day period 
immediately prior to the date fixed for redemption; provided, however, that such limitation shall 
not apply to the transfer or exchange by the Registered Owner of an unredeemed portion of a 
Certificate called for redemption in part. 

THE CITY OR PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR may require the Registered Owner of 
any Certificate to pay a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that may be 
imposed in connection with the transfer or exchange of a Certificate.  Any fee or charge of the 
Paying Agent/Registrar for a transfer or exchange shall be paid by the City. 

THE REGISTERED OWNER of this Certificate by acceptance hereof, acknowledges 
and agrees to be bound by all the terms and conditions of the Ordinance. 

IT IS HEREBY DECLARED AND REPRESENTED that this Certificate has been duly 
and validly issued and delivered; that all acts, conditions and things required or proper to be 
performed, exist and to be done precedent to or in the issuance and delivery of this Certificate 
have been performed, exist and have been done in accordance with law; that the Certificates do 
not exceed any constitutional or statutory limitation; and that annual ad valorem taxes sufficient 
to provide for the payment of the interest on and principal of this Certificate, as such interest 
comes due and such principal matures, have been levied and ordered to be levied, within the 
limits prescribed by law, against all taxable property in the City and have been irrevocably 
pledged for such payment. 

IT IS FURTHER DECLARED AND REPRESENTED that the revenues to be derived 
from the City’s waterworks and sewer system, after the payment of all operation and 
maintenance expenses thereof (the “Net Revenues”), in an amount not to exceed $10,000, are 
pledged to the payment of the principal of and interest on the Certificates provided that the 



96842527.3  
A-4 

pledge of Net Revenues is and shall be junior and subordinate in all respects to the pledge of Net 
Revenues to the payment of any obligation of the City, whether authorized heretofore or 
hereafter, which the City  designates as having a pledge senior to the pledge of the Net Revenues 
to the payment of the Certificates.  The City also reserves the right to issue, for any lawful 
purpose at any time, in one or more installments, bonds, certificates of obligation and other 
obligations of any kind, secured in whole or in part by a pledge of Net Revenues, that may be 
prior and superior in right to, on a parity with, or junior and subordinate to the pledge of Net 
Revenues securing the Certificates. 

REFERENCE IS HEREBY MADE TO THE ORDINANCE, a copy of which is filed 
with the Paying Agent/Registrar, for the full provisions thereof, to all of which the Registered 
Owners of the Certificates assent by acceptance of the Certificates. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused its corporate seal to be impressed or 
placed in facsimile hereon and this Certificate to be signed by the Mayor and countersigned by 
the City Secretary by their manual, lithographed or printed facsimile signatures. 

 

 

CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS 

 
Mayor 

(SEAL)  

 COUNTERSIGNED: 

 
City Secretary 

* * * 



96842527.3  
A-5 

FORM OF COMPTROLLER’S REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE 
 

The following form of Comptroller’s Registration Certificate shall be attached or affixed 
to each of the Certificates initially delivered: 

OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER § 
OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS § REGISTER NO._______________ 
THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
 
 

I hereby certify that this certificate has been examined, certified as to validity and 
approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas, and that this certificate has been 
registered by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas. 

WITNESS MY SIGNATURE AND SEAL OF OFFICE this ________________. 

 
       
Comptroller of Public Accounts 
of the State of Texas 

 
(SEAL) 

* * * 
 

FORM OF PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR’S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE 
 

The following form of authentication certificate shall be printed on the face of each of the 
Certificates other than those initially delivered:   

AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE 
 

This Certificate is one of the Certificates described in and delivered pursuant to the 
within mentioned Ordinance; and, except for the Certificates initially delivered, this Certificate 
has been issued in exchange for or replacement of a Certificate, Certificates, or a portion of a 
Certificate or Certificates of an issue which originally was approved by the Attorney General of 
the State of Texas and registered by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas. 

WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A. 
as Paying Agent/Registrar 

By 
Authorized Signature 

Date of Authentication: 

 
* * * 

 



96842527.3  
A-6 

FORM OF ASSIGNMENT 
 

The following form of assignment shall be printed on the back of each of the Certificates: 

ASSIGNMENT 
 
 For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto 
______________________________________________________________________ 

(Please print or type name, address, and zip code of Transferee) 
______________________________________________________________________ 

(Please insert Social Security or Taxpayer Identification Number of Transferee) 
 
 
the within certificate and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 
______________________________ attorney to transfer such certificate on the books kept for 
registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 

DATED:  

Signature Guaranteed: 

  

 
NOTICE: Signature must be guaranteed 
by a member firm of the New York 
Stock Exchange or a commercial bank or 
trust company. 

  

  
Registered Owner 

NOTICE: The signature above must correspond 
to the name of the Registered Owner as shown 
on the face of this certificate in every particular, 
without any alteration, enlargement or change 
whatsoever. 

* * * 
 

 
 
 



96842527.3  
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT 
 
 

SEE TAB 7 
 
 



96842527.3  
 

EXHIBIT C 
 

WINNING BID 
 

SEE TAB 4



96842527.3  
 

 
EXHIBIT D 

PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT 
 

SEE TAB 5 
 

 
 



96842527.3  
 

EXHIBIT E 
 

OFFICIAL STATEMENT 
 

SEE TAB 6 
 
 
 



96842527.3  
 

 

EXHIBIT F 
 

DESCRIPTION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
 

The following information is referred to in Section 7.1 of this Ordinance. 
 
Annual Financial Statements and Operating Data 
 

The financial information and operating data with respect to the City to be provided 
annually in accordance with such Section are as specified (and included in the Appendix or 
under the headings of the Official Statement referred to) below: 
 

1. The audited financial statements of the City, but for the most recently 
concluded fiscal year, and, to the extent that such statements are not completed and 
available, unaudited financial statements for such fiscal year. 

 
2. The all quantitative financial information and operating data with respect 

to the City of the general type included in this Official Statement under Tables numbered 
1 through 5 and 7 through 13 and in Appendix B. 

 
Accounting Principles 
 
 The accounting principles referred to in such Section are the accounting principles 
described in the notes to the financial statements referred to in paragraph 1 above. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 











reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 

May 20, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

7 Resolution No. R-1789 – Amendment to Interlocal Cooperation 
Agreement Renewal for the Collection of Taxes 

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1789, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, an Amendment to Interlocal Cooperation Agreement for the 
Collection of Taxes, by and between the City and Fort Bend County, Texas, for a period ending on June 
30, 2015. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[X] Recurring 
[   ] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[X] Yes  [   ] No  [   ] N/A 

Source of Funds:   
101-1400-510-4110 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
 

1. Resolution No. R-1789 
 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 
Joyce Vasut 
Executive Director of 
Administrative Services 

Reviewed by: 
   
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services 
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services 
[X] City Attorney LJL/rl 
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The City of Rosenberg has previously contracted with the Fort Bend County Tax Assessor/Collector, Patsy 
Schultz, for tax collection services.  Fort Bend County has requested the City execute an Amendment to 
Interlocal Cooperation Agreement for the Collection of Taxes, to extend the existing Agreement for another year 
through June 30, 2015. 
 
The Amendment extending tax collection services with Fort Bend County is attached to Resolution No. R-1789 
as Exhibit “A”.  Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1789, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager 
to execute an Amendment to Interlocal Cooperation Agreement for the Collection of Taxes with Fort Bend 
County as the City’s Tax Assessor/Collector. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1789 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, 
TEXAS, AN AMENDMENT TO INTERLOCAL COOPERATION 
AGREEMENT FOR THE COLLECTION OF TAXES, BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AND FORT BEND COUNTY, 
TEXAS, FOR A PERIOD ENDING ON JUNE 30, 2015. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 
  
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute an Amendment 

to Interlocal Cooperation Agreement for the Collection of Taxes (Amendment), by and 

between the City of Rosenberg, Texas, and Fort Bend County, Texas, for a period 

ending on June 30, 2015. 

Section 2. A copy of such Amendment is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and 

made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2014. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 
 









2.04 

2.05 

3.01 

3.02 

3.03 

3.04 

3.05 

County may terminate this agreement by providing written notice to the City no 
later than six (6) months in advance of the expiration of the initial term of this 
Agreement or any renewal term. 
In the event of termination of this Agreement by the City, the City shall assume 
all contractual obligations entered into with County for services rendered to City 
for the duration of the term of the Agreement and any renewal, and County shall 
be relieved of all contractual obligations under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 111 
OBLIGATION OF COUNTY 

!. 

For the purposes and consideration herein stated and contemplated, County shall 
provide tax collection services for the City for tax accounts within the jurisdiction 
of City. 
City hereby designates the County Tax Assessor/Collector as its Tax 
Assessor/Collector for purposes of compliance with Chapter 26 of the Texas 
Property Tax code, as amended. 
County shall perform all the duties required by law of the Tax Assessor-Collector 
of the City with regard to assessing and collection of ad valorem taxes, including 
timely providing the City a schedule concerning the publication of tax rates in the 
newspaper for the City. The County will cause to be published in the City’s 
Official Newspaper all notices required by law under the Texas Property Tax 
Code. 
The City shall adopt a tax rate by October 1 of each year or the 60th day after the 
date the certified tax appraisal roll is received by the City, whichever is later. In 
the event the tax rate is adopted subsequent to October 1 of any year, City shall 
reimburse County for any additional costs incurred, in accordance with Article ... 

, IV 
of this Agreement. 
The City hereby expressly authorizes County to do and perform all acts necessary 
and proper to collect taxes for the City, including but not limited to: 

Calculation of taxes, preparation of current and delinquent tax 
rolls, pro-ration of taxes, correction of clerical errors in tax rolls, 
collection of current liabilities, collection of delinquent taxes, 
issuance of refunds, and calculation of the effective andi,rollback 
tax rates as required by Section 26.04 of the Property Tax Code. 
County shall assess and collect the ad valorem propeAy taxes 
owing to the City. The term “assess” does not include those 
hnctions defined as “appraisal” by the Property Tax Code. 
The County shall produce a consolidated tax statement for both 
County and City taxes and the County may include taxes owed to 
any other participating taxing entity. 
County shall prepare consolidated tax statements for each parcel 
on the tax rolls of City. 
County shall mail statements by October 20Lh of each calendar 
year, or as soon therafter as practicable. 

. .  

A. 

B. 

C. 

D. 

E. 

’ /  . .  

Interlocal Agreement for Tax Collection 
Page 2 of 7 



, '  . ., 

3.06 

3.07 

3.08 

3.09 

3.10 
3.11 

4.01 

4.02 

4.03 

F. County shall mail notices of delinquent service charges in 
accordance with Section 33.07 of the Texas Property Tax Code. 

G. County shall perform for City all duties provided by law of the 
State of Texas for the collection of taxes. 

H. County shall perform any additional, reasonable services which 
may be requested by City. All additional services shall be'billed to 
City by County at actual costs. 

Report of the current year tax levy, showing taxable value, 
exemptions, abatements, net taxable values, tax rate, and tax levy 
for each parcel ofproperty; 
Remittance report with each remittance to City showing the taxes 
paid by year, amount paid, principal and interest paid, service 
charge paid, etc.; 
Monthly report of tax activity showing the amount of initial levy, 
collections during month for both current and delinquent taxes, 
adjustments during the month, and the year-to-date collections 
percentage of current levy; and 

County shall provide the following reports, upon request, by City: .. 

A. 

B. 

C. 

D. Any additional reports which may be requested by the City. 
The taxes collected by County for City shall be remitted as follows: 

A. by ACH; or 
B. by wire to City's designated depository or agent; or 
C. by check mailed to City. 

City shall provide written notification to County of the manner in which .,. taxes , 

shall be remitted, as described in Section 3.07 above. 
The taxes collected by County shall be remitted to the City on a daily basis for the 
period beginning December 15'h and ending February 15th of each year. 
Remittance at other times during the year shall be made at least once per week. at 
all other times. 
Wire transfers shall incur a charge of five dollars ($5.00) for each transfer. 
Refunds to taxpayers and taxpayer checks returned from banks shall be, deducted 
from the County's remittance to City. 

ARTICLE IV 
OBLIGATIONS OF CITY 

City agrees to promptly deliver to County all records necessary to perform 
its duties under the terms of this Agreement. 
For services rendered pursuant to this Agreement, City agrees to pay County 
the following amounts: 
A. Thirty-five cents ($0.35) per parcel per year; 
B. Other costs for which City will reimburse the County for actual costs incurred 

for any additional services requested City or mandated by state statute. 
City shall pay to County the cost of assessment and collection as provided in 

1, 

Interlocal Agreement for Tax Collection 
Page 3 of 7 



5.01 

5.02 

5.03 

5.04 

5.05 

5.06. 

5.07 

Section 4.02. The payment shall be remitted to County after the mailing of 
consolidated tax statements and no more than 30 days after receipt of County 

. ,  invoice. .! 

ARTICLE V 
ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS 

All records necessary to be maintained by County for the assessment and 
collections of taxes shall be kept clearly on the books and records of County, and 
a designated representative of the City, including the City auditors, is authorized 
to examine the records maintained by County at such reasonable time and interval 
as City deems necessary. Such books and records will be kept in the offices of 
County. 
City shall maintain a Public Fidelity Bond covering all offices, officials and 
employees in the amount of one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000.00). 
City shall transfer to the possession and control of County, without charge, copies 
of all records necessary for the performance of the duties and responsibilities of 
County pursuant to this Agreement, which shall include all tax records, including 
the delinquent tax rolls. 
County shall not be legally responsible to City for any failure to collect taxes, nor 
shall the County Tax Assessor-Collector be legally responsible unless the failure 
to collect taxes results from failure to perform the duties imposed by law and by 
this Agreement. 
City reserves the right to institute such suits for the collection of delinquent 
taxes as City deems necessary and to contract with an attorney for collection of 
delinquent taxes. 
County shall comply with all provisions of the Texas Property Tax Code,"as 
amended, and any policies and procedures regarding collection of ad valorem 
property taxes which City may adopt. 
In the event County waives any penalty and/or interest on any parcel, pursuant to 
Section 33.011 of the Property Tax Code, City consents to the waiver of the 
penalty and/or interest on the same parcel(s), and hereby authorizes County to 
waive such penalty and/or interest on behalf of City. .,,,. . 

ARTICLE VI 
LIABILITY 

Each party to this Agreement agrees that it shall have no liability whatsoever for 
the actions or omissions of an individual employed by another party, regardless'of where 
the individual's actions occurred. Each party is solely responsible for the actions and/or 
omissions of its employees and officers. 

Interlocal Agreement for Tax Collection 
Page 4 of 7 



ARTICLE VI1 
MISCELLANEOUS 

This Agreement may be amended by the mutual agreement of the parties hereto 
in writing to be attached to and incorporated into this Agreement. 
Venue for any litigation involving this Agreement shall be in Fort Bend County, 
Texas. 
If any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall be held to 
be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or 
unenforceability shall not affect any other provision thereof and this Agreement 
shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never 
been contained herein. 
This Agreement supersedes any and all other agreements, either oral or in, writing 
between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, and.no other 
agreement, statement, or promise relating to the subject matter of this Agreement 
which is not contained herein shall be valid or binding. 
This Agreement 'may not be assigned by either party. 

7.01 

7.02 

7.03 

7.04 

7.05 

ARTICLE VI11 
NOTICES 

Any notice required to be given under the provisions of this Agreement shall be in 
writing and shall be duly served when it shall have been deposited, enclosed in a wrapper 
with the proper postage prepaid thereon, and duly registered or certified, return receipt 
requested, in a United States Post Office, addressed to the Owner at the mailing address 
as hereinafter set out. If mailed, any notice of communication shall be deemed to be 
received three (3) days after the date of deposit in the United States Mail. Unless 
otherwise provided in this Agreement, all notices shall be delivered to the Owner or the 
County at the following addresses: 

To County: 

To: 

copy to: 

The Honorable Patsy Schultz 
Fort Bend County Tax Assessor-Collector 
500 Liberty, Suite 101 
Richmond, Texas 77469 

c;Sy d Qosenbeq 
F;n&cle pire cSor - 
FO.BO* 32 
Rae0 b e e  , TX 77471 

Fort Bend County Attorney 
301 Jackson, Suite 728 
Richmond, Texas 77469 

Interlocal Agreement for Tax Collection 
Page 5 of 7 



Either party may designate a different address by giving the other party ten (IO) days 
written notice thereof. 

ARTICLE IX 
ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND ATTACHMENT 

This Agreement contains the entire Agreement among the parties and supercedes all other 
negotiations and agreements, whether written or oral. Attached hereto is Exhibit A - 
Documentation Reauired From Taxine Entities. which is made a part of this Aereement. 

THE UNDERSIGNED OFFICER AND/OR AGENTS OF THE PARTIES HERETO 
ARE THE PROPERLY AUTHORIZED OFFICIALS AND HAVE THE NECESSARY 
AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE THIS AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF THE PARTIES 
HERETO, AND EACH PARTY HEREBY CERTIFIES TO THE OTHER THAT ANY 

Y RESOLUTIONS AND/OR ORDERS EXTENDING SAID AUTHORITY 
H DULY PASSES AND ARE NOW IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT. 

Robert E. Hebert, County Judge 

9d-L a2, aoo~ 
Dah! 

NAME OF JURISDICTION 

Interlocal Agreemenl for Tax Collection 
Page 6 of 7 



MERlnterlocal Agreement.Tax Collection: 1396(040506) 

Interlocal Agreement for Tax Collection 
Page 7 of 7 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
May 20, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

8 Ordinance 2014-23 - Canvassing the Returns and Declaring the Results of 
the May 10, 2014 Special Municipal Election 

 

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2014-23, an Ordinance canvassing the returns and 
declaring the results of the Special Municipal Election held on May 10, 2014, within the City for the 
purpose of voting on an initiated Ordinance and Resolution; and containing other provisions relating to the 
subject. 
 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ]  Recurring 
[X]  N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [X] No  [   ] N/A 

Source of Funds:  
101-1300-510-5720 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #: N/A 

 
1. Ordinance No. 2014-23 
2. Office of Election Administration, Fort Bend County, Texas Canvass Report - to be provided under 

separate cover 
 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by: 

 
Linda Cernosek, TRMC 
City Secretary 

Reviewed by:   
[   ] Finance Director   
[   ] Assistant City Manager 
[X] City Attorney  LL/lc 
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 

Approved for Submittal to City 
Council:   

 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

As Presiding Officer of the May 10, 2014 Municipal Election, the Mayor is required to hold a canvass of the 
election ballots, and he and the City Council must declare the election results.  The proposed Ordinance would 
confirm that the election on proposed propositions was held, the proper procedures were followed as mandated 
by law, the results have been filed with the City Council, the number of votes each proposition received, and 
declaration of the results.   
 
A copy of the proposed Ordinance No. 2014-23 is included as a supporting document for City Council’s 
approval.  The electronic transmittal of the official canvass report from the Office of Elections Administration, Fort 
Bend County, Texas will be provided to City Council upon receipt. 
 



Page 1 of 2 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-23 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, CANVASSING THE RETURNS AND 
DECLARING THE RESULTS OF THE SPECIAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION 
HELD ON MAY 10, 2014, WITHIN THE CITY FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
VOTING ON AN INITIATED ORDINANCE AND RESOLUTION; AND 
CONTAINING OTHER PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE SUBJECT. 

 
WHEREAS, a Special Municipal Election (Election) was duly held in the City of 

Rosenberg on May 10, 2014, in accordance with the requirements of law and the Texas 
Election Code; and, 

WHEREAS, said Election was duly and legally held in conformity with the 
election laws of the State of Texas, and the results of said Election have been verified 
and returned by the proper judges and clerk; and,  

 
WHEREAS, it appears that a total of 1414 votes were cast in said Election. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG:  

 
 Section 1. The facts and matters set forth in the preamble of this Ordinance 
are hereby found to be true and correct. 
 
 Section 2. The official canvass of the returns of the Special Election held on 
May 10, 2014, reflects that the votes cast on the Propositions were as follows: 

 
PROPOSITION 1 

 
Shall the City Council for the City of Rosenberg pass an ordinance which 
reads as follows? 
The City of Rosenberg shall not donate to any person or entity, including Texas 
Department of Transportation (TXDOT), the real property owned by the City, and 
located in Rosenberg, Texas, between: Avenue H and Avenue I, and Damon and 
Louise Streets, for the roadway project known as the “One-Way Pairs” Project.  
The property may only be sold in the future for fair market value, as determined 
by independent appraisal. 
 
FOR the ordinance 991 
 
AGAINST the ordinance 408 

  



Page 2 of 2 

PROPOSITION 2 
 
Shall the City Council for the City of Rosenberg pass a resolution 
which reads as follows?  
The City of Rosenberg shall not donate to any person or entity, including 
Texas Department of Transportation (TXDOT), the real property owned by 
the City, and located in Rosenberg, Texas, between: Avenue H and 
Avenue I, and Damon and Louise Streets, for the roadway project known 
as the “One-Way Pairs” Project.  The property may only be sold in the 
future for fair market value, as determined by independent appraisal. 
 
FOR the resolution 995 
 
AGAINST the resolution 408 
 

 Section 3. The official canvass of the returns of the Special Election held on 
May 10, 2014, reflects that such election has resulted favorably to the adoption of the 
Proposed Proposition 1 and 2 with a majority of the qualified voters voting at the 
election having voted for the Propositions. 
 
 Section 4. The Proposed Propositions, as approved and adopted by a majority 
of the qualified voters voting at such Special Election, shall become an Ordinance and 
Resolution to read as per the proposition language. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of __________”ayes” in favor and of 
__________ “noes” against on this first and final reading in full compliance with Section 
3.10 of the City Charter of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, on the 20th day of May, 2014. 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary   Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
       
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 

 
 
       
Lora Lenzsch, City Attorney 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
May 20, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

9 Ordinance No. 2014-24 – Sale of City Property for “One-Way Pairs” 
Project 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2014-24, an Ordinance to adopt and pass an initiative 
Ordinance submitted to the qualified voters on the May 10, 2014 Special Election which prohibits the City 
from donating specified real property for the “One-Way Pairs” Project. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds: N/A  

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
 

1. Ordinance No. 2014-24 
 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 
Linda Cernosek, TRMC 
City Secretary 
 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[X] City Attorney LJL/rl    
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The purpose of Ordinance No. 2014-24 is for City Council to adopt and pass an Ordinance, which reflects the 
results of the Special Election held, on May 10, 2014, which states: “The City of Rosenberg shall not donate to 
any person or entity, including TXDOT (Texas Department of Transportation), the real property owned by the 
City, and located in Rosenberg, Texas, between: Avenue H and Avenue I, and Damon and Louise Streets, for 
the roadway project known as the “One-Way Pairs” Project.  The property may only be sold in the future for fair 
market value, as determined by independent appraisal.”  The Special Election was held subject to an initiative 
petition received by the citizens of the City of Rosenberg on December 06, 2013, pursuant to Article VII, Section 
7.02 of the Rosenberg City Charter, titled Initiative. 
 
Sec. 7.07. Adoption of ordinances states, “If a majority of the qualified voters voting on any proposed ordinance 
or resolution or measure shall vote in favor thereof, it shall thereupon, or at any time fixed therein, become 
effective as a law or as a mandatory order of the city council.”  Therefore, this Ordinance is adopted per Section 
7.07 of the Charter.  
 



1 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2014-24 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, TO ADOPT AND PASS AN INITIATIVE  
ORDINANCE SUBMITTED TO THE QUALIFIED VOTERS ON THE 
MAY 10, 2014 SPECIAL ELECTION WHICH PROHIBITS THE CITY 
FROM DONATING SPECIFIED REAL PROPERTY FOR THE “ONE-
WAY PAIRS” PROJECT. 
 

 WHEREAS, the City Charter of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, provides for the 
Citizens of Rosenberg to initiate legislation pursuant to Article VII, Section 7.02 of said 
Charter; and, 

 WHEREAS, on December 06, 2013, the City Secretary received an initiative 
petition for an ordinance and/or a resolution prohibiting the City from donating real 
property for the “One-Way Pairs” Project; and, 

 WHEREAS, the City held a special election, on May 10, 2014, for a vote by the 
qualified voters of the City, as to the  initiative; and, 

 WHEREAS, the voters, by a majority vote, voted in favor of the initiative 
ordinance; and  
  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article VII, Section 7.07 of the City Charter of the City of 
Rosenberg, if a majority of the qualified voters voting on any proposed ordinance or 
resolution or measure shall vote in favor thereof, it shall thereupon, or at any time fixed 
therein, become effective as a law or as a mandatory order of the city council.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS: 

Section 1. Findings. 

 That the facts and recitations contained in the preamble of this Ordinance are 
hereby found and declared to be true and correct and are adopted as part of this 
Ordinance for all purposes. 
 

Section 2. Ordinance. 
 
 The following initiated Ordinance shall become effective as an order of the City 
Council: 

The City of Rosenberg shall not donate to any person or entity, including TXDOT 
(Texas Department of Transportation), the real property owned by the City, and located 
in Rosenberg, Texas, between: Avenue H and Avenue I, and Damon and Louise 
Streets, for the roadway project known as the “One-Way Pairs” Project.  The property 



2 
 

may only be sold in the future for fair market value, as determined by independent 
appraisal. 

Section 3. Severability Clause. 

 If any word, section, article, phrase, paragraph, sentence, clause, or portion of 
this Ordinance or application thereof to any person or circumstance is held to be invalid 
or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not affect the 
validity of the remaining portion of this Ordinance; and the City Council hereby declares 
it would have passed such remaining portions of this Ordinance despite such invalidity 
which remaining portions shall remain in full force and effect. 

Section 4. Effective Date. 

 This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its adoption and publication in 
accordance with and as provided by law and the City Charter. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of __________”ayes” in favor and of __________ 

“noes” against on this first and final reading in full compliance with Section 3.10 of the City 

Charter of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, on this the _________ day of ____________, 

2014. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
_____________________________  _________________________________ 
Linda Cernosek,  City Secretary   Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
      
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Lora Jean D. Lenzsch, City Attorney 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
May 20, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

10 Resolution No. R-1792 – Sale of City Property for “One-Way Pairs” 
Project 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1792, a Resolution to adopt and pass an initiative 
Resolution submitted to the qualified voters on the May 10, 2014 Special Election which prohibits the City 
from donating specified real property for the “One-Way Pairs” Project. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds: N/A  

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
 

1. Resolution No. R-1792 
 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 
Linda Cernosek, TRMC 
City Secretary 
 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[X] City Attorney LJL/rl     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The purpose of Resolution No. R-1792 is for City Council to adopt and pass a Resolution, which reflects the 
results of the Special Election held on May 10, 2014, which states: “The City of Rosenberg shall not donate to 
any person or entity, including TXDOT (Texas Department of Transportation), the real property owned by the 
City, and located in Rosenberg, Texas, between: Avenue H and Avenue I, and Damon and Louise Streets, for 
the roadway project known as the “One-Way Pairs” Project.  The property may only be sold in the future for fair 
market value, as determined by independent appraisal.”  The Special Election was held subject to an initiative 
petition received by the citizens of the City of Rosenberg on December 6, 2013, pursuant to Article VII, Section 
7.02 of the Rosenberg City Charter, titled Initiative. 
 
Sec. 7.07. Adoption of ordinances states, “If a majority of the qualified voters voting on any proposed 
ordinance or resolution or measure shall vote in favor thereof, it shall thereupon, or at any time fixed 
therein, become effective as a law or as a mandatory order of the city council.” Therefore, this Resolution 
is adopted per Section 7.07 of the Charter.  
 



1 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. R-1792 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, TO ADOPT AND PASS AN INITIATIVE  
RESOLUTION SUBMITTED TO THE QUALIFIED VOTERS ON THE 
MAY 10, 2014 SPECIAL ELECTION WHICH PROHIBITS THE CITY 
FROM DONATING SPECIFIED REAL PROPERTY FOR THE “ONE-
WAY PAIRS” PROJECT. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 

WHEREAS, the City Charter of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, provides for the 
Citizens of Rosenberg to initiate legislation pursuant to Article VII, Section 7.02 of said 
Charter; and, 

 WHEREAS, on December 06, 2013, the City Secretary received an initiative 
petition for an ordinance and/or a resolution prohibiting the City from donating real 
property for the “One-Way Pairs” Project; and, 

 WHEREAS, the City held a special election, on May 10, 2014, for a vote by the 
qualified voters of the City, as to the  initiative; and, 

 WHEREAS, the voters, by a majority vote, voted in favor of the initiative 
resolution; and  
  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article VII, Section 7.07 of the City Charter of the City of 
Rosenberg, if a majority of the qualified voters voting on any proposed ordinance or 
resolution or measure shall vote in favor thereof, it shall thereupon, or at any time fixed 
therein, become effective as a law or as a mandatory order of the city council; now, 
therefore,  

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

Section 1. Findings. 

 That the facts and recitations contained in the preamble of this Resolution are 
hereby found and declared to be true and correct and are adopted as part of this 
Resolution for all purposes. 
 

Section 2. Resolution. 
 
 The following initiated Resolution shall become effective as an order of the City 
Council: 

The City of Rosenberg shall not donate to any person or entity, including TXDOT 
(Texas Department of Transportation), the real property owned by the City, and located 



2 
 

in Rosenberg, Texas, between: Avenue H and Avenue I, and Damon and Louise 
Streets, for the roadway project known as the “One-Way Pairs” Project.  The property 
may only be sold in the future for fair market value, as determined by independent 
appraisal. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2014. 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
_____________________________  _________________________________ 
Linda Cernosek,  City Secretary   Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
      
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
May 20, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

11 Ordinance No. 2014-25 - “Sex Offender” Ordinance 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2014-25, an Ordinance amending the Code of Ordinances 
by adding a new Article III to Chapter 15 thereof, defining certain terms; making it unlawful for certain 
registered sex offenders to reside within 2,500 feet of premises where children gather; prohibiting property 
owners from renting real property to certain registered sex offenders; providing exceptions to the 
ordinance; providing for posting of signs; providing penalties for violations of the ordinance;  repealing all 
ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent or in conflict herewith; providing a severability clause; and 
providing an effective date. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
 

1. Ordinance No. 2014-25 V1 - Redlined for Distance  
2. Ordinance No. 2014-25 V2 - Redlined for Distance and Signage Removed 
3. Area Map – Drug Free Locations with 1,000, 2,000, and 2,500 Foot Buffers 
4. City Council Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt – 04-22-14 

 

APPROVALS 
Submitted by:   

 
Dallis Warren 
Police Chief 
 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services 
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services   
[X] City Attorney LJL/rl    
[   ] City Engineer 
[X] Assistant Police Chief TD/rl 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Currently there are minimal regulations pertaining to the residency of registered sex offenders. At the April 
22nd City Council Workshop, staff presented a draft Ordinance regulating certain sexual offenders.  Based 
on the feedback and comments from City Council, two versions of this Ordinance are being presented for 
consideration. Ordinance No. 2014-25 (V1) is presented with the limits on residence locations extended to 
2,500 feet and also providing for signage to be required and displayed at the residences of specific 
offenders.  Also attached is Ordinance No. 2014-25 (V2) which extends the limits on residence locations to 
2,500 feet but removes the requirement for posted signage.   
 
Staff is recommending version (V1) of Ordinance No. 2014-25, which provides for greater oversight of 
registered sex offenders and restriction on residence locations for these offenders and requires signage to 
be posted. 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-25 (V1) 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, BY ADDING A NEW ARTICLE III TO 
CHAPTER 15 THEREOF, DEFINING CERTAIN TERMS; MAKING IT 
UNLAWFUL FOR CERTAIN REGISTERED SEX OFFENDERS TO 
RESIDE WITHIN 2,0002,500 FEET OF PREMISES WHERE CHILDREN 
GATHER; PROHIBITING PROPERTY OWNERS FROM RENTING REAL 
PROPERTY TO CERTAIN REGISTERED SEX OFFENDERS; 
PROVIDING EXCEPTIONS TO THE ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR 
POSTING OF SIGNS; PROVIDING PENALTIES FOR VIOLATIONS OF 
THE ORDINANCE;  REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF 
ORDINANCES INCONSISTENT OR IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City Council for the City of Rosenberg has a compelling interest 
in protecting the health, safety and welfare of the most vulnerable of its population from 
dangers which they are often ill-equipped to avoid, by reducing the opportunities for 
certain sex offenders to come in contact with children; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds from evidence and statistical reports reveal 
that the recidivism rate for released sex offenders is alarmingly high, especially for 
those who commit their crimes against children; and, 

WHEREAS, the City is becoming an increasingly attractive place for families with 
small children; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to establish a policy which provides 
maximum protection of the lives of persons who reside in or visit the City of Rosenberg; 
and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that establishing policy to restrict the property 
available for residence of sex offenders will provide better protection for children 
gathering in the City; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that requiring sex offenders to post signs on 
their property serves as a means of communication to the public to provide additional 
protection to children; and, 

WHEREAS, Article 42.12 of the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure, provides that 
certain offenders of crimes, including sexual offenses, to register with the State of 
Texas; and, 



 
Page 2 of 6 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council reasonably believes that establishing a buffer zone 
not to exceed 2,0002,500 feet between premises where children commonly gather, 
which includes but is not limited to schools, licensed day-care facilities, playgrounds, 
public or private youth centers and video arcade facilities, and temporary or permanent 
residences of individuals required to register on the Texas Department of Public 
Safety’s Sex Offender Database will reduce opportunities for sexual predators to come 
into contact with children; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council reasonably believes that prohibiting individuals 
required to register on the Texas Department of Public Safety’s Sex Offender Database 
from entering areas where children regularly congregate will reduce opportunities for 
sexual predators to come into contact with children; now, therefore, 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS: 
 

Section 1. That the Code of Ordinances of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, is 
hereby amended and adding a new Article III to Chapter 15 thereof providing for the 
Regulation of Sex Offenders as follows: 

“CHAPTER 15 – HUMAN RELATIONS. 
ARTICLE III – REGULATION OF SEX OFFENDERS 

 
Secs. 15-38 – 15-40. – Reserved. 

Sec. 15-41. - Definitions. 

For the purposes of this section, the following words, terms and phrases when 
used in this section, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except 
where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

Child sex offender means any offender subject to registration under state or 
federal law, or the Uniform Code of Military Justice or law of a foreign country, who has 
been convicted or received an order of deferred adjudication for a "sexual offense" 
involving a minor.  

City park for purposes of this chapter means land owned or controlled by a unit of 
local government which is designated by the unit of local government for use solely or 
primarily for children's recreation.   

City recreation center for purposes of this chapter means city recreational areas, 
including but not limited to soccer fields, baseballs fields and lakes under the jurisdiction 
of a unit of local government as amended from time to time.  

Habitual offender means any offender subject to registration under state law, who 
has for a "sexually violent offense" been convicted two (2) or more times, received an 



 
Page 3 of 6 

 

order of deferred adjudication two (2) or more times, or been convicted and received an 
order of deferred adjudication or any combination thereof and is required to verify every 
ninety (90) days in accordance with the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure art. 62.058.  

Minor means a person who is under the age of seventeen (17) years of age.  

Permanent residence means a place where a person abides, lodges, or resides 
for fourteen (14) or more consecutive days.  

Property owner means any owner of record, person who has contractual 
responsibility for the property, or person who has the legal right of possession of the 
property.  

Temporary residence means a place where a person abides, lodges, or resides 
for a period of fourteen (14) or more days in the aggregate during any calendar year 
and which is not the person's permanent address, or a place where a person routinely 
abides, resides, or lodges for a period of four (4) or more consecutive or 
nonconsecutive days in any month and which is not the person's permanent residence.  

Sec. 15-42. - Offender residency prohibition.  
 

(1) For each person required to register on the Texas Department of Public 
Safety’s Sex Offender Database because they are a “Habitual Offender” 
or a “Child Sex Offender”: 
 

(2) If a person is required by Chapter 62 of the Texas Code of Criminal 
Procedure, as amended, to register with a local law enforcement agency 
because of a violation involving a victim who was less than seventeen (17) 
years of age, it is unlawful for that person to establish a permanent 
residence or temporary residence within 2,0002,500 feet of any premises 
where children commonly gather including but not limited to, any city park, 
city recreational center, a public or private school, child care facility, day 
care center, playground, public or private youth center, public swimming 
pool or video arcade facility, as those terms are defined in Sections 
341.064 and 481.134 of the Texas Health and Safety Code, as amended 
and Section 42.002 of the Texas Human Resources Code, as amended. 

Sec. 15-43. - Evidentiary matters; measurements.  

(1) It shall be prima facie evidence that this chapter applies to such a person 
if that person's record appears on the database and the database 
indicates that the person is required to verify every ninety (90) days in 
accordance with Texas Code of Criminal Procedure Section 62.058, as 
amended. For purposes of this chapter, that person is classified as a 
"habitual offender."  



 
Page 4 of 6 

 

(2) It shall be prima facie evidence that this section applies to such a person if 
that person's record appears on the database and the database indicates 
that the person is subject to registration for an offense involving a minor. 
For purposes of this chapter, that person is classified as a "child sex 
offender."  

(3) For the purposes of determining the minimum distance separation, the 
requirement shall be measured by following a straight line from the outer 
property line of the permanent or temporary residence to the nearest 
property line of the premises where children commonly gather, as 
described hereinabove. In the case of multiple residences on one (1) 
property, measurement is from the nearest wall of the building or occupied 
structure or the parking/driveway, whichever is closer to the nearest 
property line of the premises to the nearest property line of the premises 
where children commonly gather, as described herein.  

(4) The city will maintain a map depicting the prohibited areas. The city shall 
annually review the map annually, for changes. Said map will be available 
to the public, at the city police department.  

(5) In cases of a dispute over measured distances, it shall be incumbent upon 
the person(s) challenging the measurement to prove otherwise.  

(6) Nothing in this section shall be interpreted to modify or reduce the state's 
child safety ban.  

Sec. 15-44. - Property owners prohibited from renting real property to sexual 
offenders.  

It is unlawful to let or rent any place, structure or part thereof, manufactured 
home or trailer, with the knowledge that it will be used as a permanent residence or 
temporary residence by any person prohibited from establishing such permanent 
residence or temporary residence pursuant to the terms of this chapter, if such place, 
structure or part thereof, manufactured home, trailer, or other conveyance, is located 
within two thousand five hundred (2,000500) feet of any premises where children 
commonly gather, including but not limited to, any city park, city recreational center, a 
public or private school, child care facility, day care center, playground, public or private 
youth center, public swimming pool or video arcade facility, as those terms are defined 
in Sections 341.064 and 481.134 of the Texas Health and Safety Code, as amended 
and Section 42.002 of the Texas Human Resources Code, as amended. 

 
Sec. 15-45. - Affirmative defenses. 
 



 
Page 5 of 6 

 

It is an affirmative defense to prosecution that any of the following conditions 
apply:  

(1) The person required to register on the database established the 
permanent or temporary residence and has complied with all of the sex 
offender registration laws of the state, prior to the date of the adoption of 
the ordinance codified in this section;  

(2) The person was a minor when he/she committed the offense and was not 
convicted as an adult;  

(3) The person is a minor; 

(4) The premises where children commonly gather, as specified herein, within 
two thousand five hundred feet (2,000500) of the permanent or temporary 
residence of the person required to register on the database was opened, 
established or created after the date the person had established the 
permanent or temporary residence and complied with all sex offender 
registration laws of the state; or  

(5) The information on the database is incorrect, and if corrected, this chapter 
section would not apply to the person.  

Sec. 15-46. - Posting of signs. 

(1) Every child sex offender and/or habitual sex offender, regardless of 
whether the adjudication was deferred, shall place and permanently 
maintain a sign at all times, within twenty (20) feet of the front entrance to 
their permanent or temporary residence that indicates that a registered 
sex offender resides in the residence.  The sign's legibility must be 
maintained at all times. The sign shall have at least two-inch lettering 
stating "SEXUAL OFFENDER RESIDENCE".  The City of Rosenberg shall 
provide the required sign to the child sex offender and/or the habitual sex 
offender. 

(2) Exceptions.  A person is exempt from this provision, and does not commit 
a violation of this subchapter if any of the following apply: 

(a) The person committed the offense described above prior to the 
date of adoption of this subchapter and has complied with all sex 
offenders registration laws of the State of Texas; 
 

(b) The person established the permanent or temporary residence prior 
to the date of the adoption of this subchapter and has complied with 
all the sex offender registration laws of the State of Texas;  
 



 
Page 6 of 6 

 

(c) The person was a minor when he/she committed the offense and 
was not convicted as an adult; or 
 

(d) The person is a minor. 

Sec. 15-47. - Violation – Penalty. 
 

Any firm, corporation, or person who violates any of the provisions of this 
ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon a conviction shall be 
subject to a penalty in an amount as provided in Section 1-13 of this Code. 

 
Secs. 15-48 – 15-55. – Reserved.” 
 

Section 2. All ordinances or parts inconsistent or in conflict herewith are, to the 

extent of such inconsistency or conflict, hereby repealed. 

Section 3. In the event any clause phrase, provision, sentence, or part of this 

Ordinance or the application of the same to any person or circumstances shall for any 

reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, 

it shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any part or provision 

hereof other than the part declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and the City Council 

of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, declares that it would have passed each and every 

part of the same notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus declared to be 

invalid or unconstitutional, whether there be one or more parts. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of _______ “ayes” in favor and _______ “noes” 

against on this first and final reading in full compliance with the provisions of Section 

3.10 of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the _____ day of ____________ 2014. 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
_________________________________ ________________________________ 
Linda Cernosek, CITY SECRETARY  Vincent M. Morales, Jr., MAYOR 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lora Jean D. Lenzsch, CITY ATTORNEY 



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-25 (V2) 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, BY ADDING A NEW ARTICLE III TO 
CHAPTER 15 THEREOF, DEFINING CERTAIN TERMS; MAKING IT 
UNLAWFUL FOR CERTAIN REGISTERED SEX OFFENDERS TO 
RESIDE WITHIN 2,0002,500 FEET OF PREMISES WHERE CHILDREN 
GATHER; PROHIBITING PROPERTY OWNERS FROM RENTING REAL 
PROPERTY TO CERTAIN REGISTERED SEX OFFENDERS; 
PROVIDING EXCEPTIONS TO THE ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR 
POSTING OF SIGNS; PROVIDING PENALTIES FOR VIOLATIONS OF 
THE ORDINANCE;  REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF 
ORDINANCES INCONSISTENT OR IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City Council for the City of Rosenberg has a compelling interest 
in protecting the health, safety and welfare of the most vulnerable of its population from 
dangers which they are often ill-equipped to avoid, by reducing the opportunities for 
certain sex offenders to come in contact with children; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds from evidence and statistical reports reveal 
that the recidivism rate for released sex offenders is alarmingly high, especially for 
those who commit their crimes against children; and, 

WHEREAS, the City is becoming an increasingly attractive place for families with 
small children; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to establish a policy which provides 
maximum protection of the lives of persons who reside in or visit the City of Rosenberg; 
and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that establishing policy to restrict the property 
available for residence of sex offenders will provide better protection for children 
gathering in the City; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that requiring sex offenders to post signs on 
their property serves as a means of communication to the public to provide additional 
protection to children; and, 

WHEREAS, Article 42.12 of the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure, provides that 
certain offenders of crimes, including sexual offenses, to register with the State of 
Texas; and, 



 
Page 2 of 6 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council reasonably believes that establishing a buffer zone 
not to exceed 2,0002,500 feet between premises where children commonly gather, 
which includes but is not limited to schools, licensed day-care facilities, playgrounds, 
public or private youth centers and video arcade facilities, and temporary or permanent 
residences of individuals required to register on the Texas Department of Public 
Safety’s Sex Offender Database will reduce opportunities for sexual predators to come 
into contact with children; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council reasonably believes that prohibiting individuals 
required to register on the Texas Department of Public Safety’s Sex Offender Database 
from entering areas where children regularly congregate will reduce opportunities for 
sexual predators to come into contact with children; now, therefore, 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS: 
 

Section 1. That the Code of Ordinances of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, is 
hereby amended and adding a new Article III to Chapter 15 thereof providing for the 
Regulation of Sex Offenders as follows: 

“CHAPTER 15 – HUMAN RELATIONS. 
ARTICLE III – REGULATION OF SEX OFFENDERS 

 
Secs. 15-38 – 15-40. – Reserved. 

Sec. 15-41. - Definitions. 

For the purposes of this section, the following words, terms and phrases when 
used in this section, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except 
where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

Child sex offender means any offender subject to registration under state or 
federal law, or the Uniform Code of Military Justice or law of a foreign country, who has 
been convicted or received an order of deferred adjudication for a "sexual offense" 
involving a minor.  

City park for purposes of this chapter means land owned or controlled by a unit of 
local government which is designated by the unit of local government for use solely or 
primarily for children's recreation.   

City recreation center for purposes of this chapter means city recreational areas, 
including but not limited to soccer fields, baseballs fields and lakes under the jurisdiction 
of a unit of local government as amended from time to time.  

Habitual offender means any offender subject to registration under state law, who 
has for a "sexually violent offense" been convicted two (2) or more times, received an 



 
Page 3 of 6 

 

order of deferred adjudication two (2) or more times, or been convicted and received an 
order of deferred adjudication or any combination thereof and is required to verify every 
ninety (90) days in accordance with the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure art. 62.058.  

Minor means a person who is under the age of seventeen (17) years of age.  

Permanent residence means a place where a person abides, lodges, or resides 
for fourteen (14) or more consecutive days.  

Property owner means any owner of record, person who has contractual 
responsibility for the property, or person who has the legal right of possession of the 
property.  

Temporary residence means a place where a person abides, lodges, or resides 
for a period of fourteen (14) or more days in the aggregate during any calendar year 
and which is not the person's permanent address, or a place where a person routinely 
abides, resides, or lodges for a period of four (4) or more consecutive or 
nonconsecutive days in any month and which is not the person's permanent residence.  

Sec. 15-42. - Offender residency prohibition.  
 

(1) For each person required to register on the Texas Department of Public 
Safety’s Sex Offender Database because they are a “Habitual Offender” 
or a “Child Sex Offender”: 
 

(2) If a person is required by Chapter 62 of the Texas Code of Criminal 
Procedure, as amended, to register with a local law enforcement agency 
because of a violation involving a victim who was less than seventeen (17) 
years of age, it is unlawful for that person to establish a permanent 
residence or temporary residence within 2,0002,500 feet of any premises 
where children commonly gather including but not limited to, any city park, 
city recreational center, a public or private school, child care facility, day 
care center, playground, public or private youth center, public swimming 
pool or video arcade facility, as those terms are defined in Sections 
341.064 and 481.134 of the Texas Health and Safety Code, as amended 
and Section 42.002 of the Texas Human Resources Code, as amended. 

Sec. 15-43. - Evidentiary matters; measurements.  

(1) It shall be prima facie evidence that this chapter applies to such a person 
if that person's record appears on the database and the database 
indicates that the person is required to verify every ninety (90) days in 
accordance with Texas Code of Criminal Procedure Section 62.058, as 
amended. For purposes of this chapter, that person is classified as a 
"habitual offender."  



 
Page 4 of 6 

 

(2) It shall be prima facie evidence that this section applies to such a person if 
that person's record appears on the database and the database indicates 
that the person is subject to registration for an offense involving a minor. 
For purposes of this chapter, that person is classified as a "child sex 
offender."  

(3) For the purposes of determining the minimum distance separation, the 
requirement shall be measured by following a straight line from the outer 
property line of the permanent or temporary residence to the nearest 
property line of the premises where children commonly gather, as 
described hereinabove. In the case of multiple residences on one (1) 
property, measurement is from the nearest wall of the building or occupied 
structure or the parking/driveway, whichever is closer to the nearest 
property line of the premises to the nearest property line of the premises 
where children commonly gather, as described herein.  

(4) The city will maintain a map depicting the prohibited areas. The city shall 
annually review the map annually, for changes. Said map will be available 
to the public, at the city police department.  

(5) In cases of a dispute over measured distances, it shall be incumbent upon 
the person(s) challenging the measurement to prove otherwise.  

(6) Nothing in this section shall be interpreted to modify or reduce the state's 
child safety ban.  

Sec. 15-44. - Property owners prohibited from renting real property to sexual 
offenders.  

It is unlawful to let or rent any place, structure or part thereof, manufactured 
home or trailer, with the knowledge that it will be used as a permanent residence or 
temporary residence by any person prohibited from establishing such permanent 
residence or temporary residence pursuant to the terms of this chapter, if such place, 
structure or part thereof, manufactured home, trailer, or other conveyance, is located 
within two thousand five hundred (2,000500) feet of any premises where children 
commonly gather, including but not limited to, any city park, city recreational center, a 
public or private school, child care facility, day care center, playground, public or private 
youth center, public swimming pool or video arcade facility, as those terms are defined 
in Sections 341.064 and 481.134 of the Texas Health and Safety Code, as amended 
and Section 42.002 of the Texas Human Resources Code, as amended. 

 
Sec. 15-45. - Affirmative defenses. 
 



 
Page 5 of 6 

 

It is an affirmative defense to prosecution that any of the following conditions 
apply:  

(1) The person required to register on the database established the 
permanent or temporary residence and has complied with all of the sex 
offender registration laws of the state, prior to the date of the adoption of 
the ordinance codified in this section;  

(2) The person was a minor when he/she committed the offense and was not 
convicted as an adult;  

(3) The person is a minor; 

(4) The premises where children commonly gather, as specified herein, within 
two thousand five hundred feet (2,000500) of the permanent or temporary 
residence of the person required to register on the database was opened, 
established or created after the date the person had established the 
permanent or temporary residence and complied with all sex offender 
registration laws of the state; or  

(5) The information on the database is incorrect, and if corrected, this chapter 
section would not apply to the person.  

Sec. 15-46. - Posting of signs. 

(1) Every child sex offender and/or habitual sex offender, regardless of 
whether the adjudication was deferred, shall place and permanently 
maintain a sign at all times, within twenty (20) feet of the front entrance to 
their permanent or temporary residence that indicates that a registered 
sex offender resides in the residence.  The sign's legibility must be 
maintained at all times. The sign shall have at least two-inch lettering 
stating "SEXUAL OFFENDER RESIDENCE".  The City of Rosenberg shall 
provide the required sign to the child sex offender and/or the habitual sex 
offender. 

(2) Exceptions.  A person is exempt from this provision, and does not commit 
a violation of this subchapter if any of the following apply: 

(a) The person committed the offense described above prior to the 
date of adoption of this subchapter and has complied with all sex 
offenders registration laws of the State of Texas; 
 

(b) The person established the permanent or temporary residence prior 
to the date of the adoption of this subchapter and has complied with 
all the sex offender registration laws of the State of Texas;  
 



 
Page 6 of 6 

 

(c) The person was a minor when he/she committed the offense and 
was not convicted as an adult; or 
 

(d) The person is a minor. 

Sec. 15-467. - Violation – Penalty. 
 

Any firm, corporation, or person who violates any of the provisions of this 
ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon a conviction shall be 
subject to a penalty in an amount as provided in Section 1-13 of this Code. 

 
Secs. 15-487 – 15-55. – Reserved.” 
 

Section 2. All ordinances or parts inconsistent or in conflict herewith are, to the 

extent of such inconsistency or conflict, hereby repealed. 

Section 3. In the event any clause phrase, provision, sentence, or part of this 

Ordinance or the application of the same to any person or circumstances shall for any 

reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, 

it shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any part or provision 

hereof other than the part declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and the City Council 

of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, declares that it would have passed each and every 

part of the same notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus declared to be 

invalid or unconstitutional, whether there be one or more parts. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of _______ “ayes” in favor and _______ “noes” 

against on this first and final reading in full compliance with the provisions of Section 

3.10 of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the _____ day of ____________ 2014. 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
_________________________________ ________________________________ 
Linda Cernosek, CITY SECRETARY  Vincent M. Morales, Jr., MAYOR 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lora Jean D. Lenzsch, CITY ATTORNEY 



!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!
!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!! !!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!! !!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!! !!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!! !!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!
!!!! !!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!! !!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

_̂
_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂
_̂ _̂

_̂ _̂

_̂

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG
GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GGGG

GG

GG

GG

GG
GG

GG
GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG
GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GGGG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG

GG
GG

GG

GG

GG

Zone 8 Park

Brazos Park

Riverbend ParkCommunity Park

Macario Garcia Park

Seabourne Creek Nature Park

Seabourne Creek Sports Complex

Harwood Park

Sunset Park

Travis Park

WILLIAMS WAY

MAJESTIC OAK

H

N

J

D

1ST

G
F

K

4TH

BAND

R

L

KOEBLEN

BRYAN

P
O

BAMORE

A

M

LA
NE

LO
UI

SE

E

AIRPORT

BLUME

RICEFIELD
SPA

CE
K

B F
 TE

RR
Y

CUMINGS

KLAUKE

C
B

ROHAN

WARD

J MEYER

WALSH

RA
DI

O

MUSTANG

RICE

TO
RI

BAKER

VIS
TA

JUNKER

AL
AM

O

REESE

WEHRING

POWERLINE

BROOKS

STEHLE

BE
NT

ON

READING

COTTONWOOD SCHOOL

RIVER

CR
IS

CAY

CO
LE

HUNTINGTON

STELLA

FAIRGROUNDS

3RD

PISC
ES

KIOWA

SOUTHGATE

PAR

COMANCHE

HILLCREST

SYC
AM

OR
E

EASY

ARAPAHOE

FOSTER

BERNIE

LA
RK

RUSTIC

GR
AE

BE
R LA

ZY

DOWLING

LEAMAN

PETRA

RYCHLIK

BRAZOS TOWN

RUDE

CALVIN

LORY

HERNDON

BERNARD

DAVID

VERA CRUZ

MEBANE

PECHA

MAZEN

CEDAR

RAY ALLEN

JAC
KSO

N

HETTIE

MILES

CUSTER

S

HILL

RIC
HA

RD

MAX

PRAIRIE

SEABOURNE CREEK
KE

PL
ER

S

SALADO SLOUGH

L L

ALAMO3RD

J

N

CR
IS

BERNIE

K

G

B

M

E

KLAUKE

O

M

A

E

L

G G
F

READING

K

@A2218

@A2977

@A762

@A1640

@A723

öõ529

£¤90A

§̈¦£¤96 592

I

THOMPSON

SOUTHWEST FWY

SOUTHWEST FWY

MI
NO

NIT
E

£¤90A

¬«36

¬«36

1 Inch = 2,750 Feet

1:33,000

Drug Free Locations
with 1000, 2000, & 2500 ft Buffers

City of Rosenberg, Texas

Scale:

or

0 2,000 4,000 6,000
Feet

GG Sex Offender Residential Locations
_̂ City Parks

Drug Free Locations
1000 ft Buffer
2000 ft Buffer
2500 ft Buffer

Basemap Features
Interstate
US Highway
State Highway
Farm-to-Market
Public Road
Railroad
Brazos River
Rosenberg City Limits
Rosenberg ETJ

This product is for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable 
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of geographic features.

Created by: City of Rosenberg GIS - Paul M. Jones
Date Created: May 14, 2014
Original Size: 11" x 17"
K:\GIS\MAPS\Police\2014\DFZ_2500ft_11x17.mxd

Å

Û

N

S

EW



PAGE 5 of 10 * SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * APRIL 22, 2014
***DRAFT***

limits.
� Yes, Cartwright, Heritage Haven, Little Haven and Grand Gables Streets are in Bridlewood 

Subdivision. Some cracks and patching has been done since they were annexed. Grand 
Gables has been in the City for a while.

� Councilor Benton stated recurring complaints regarding Cottonwood School Road and 
Mulcahy Street. Will you partner with the sand pit on Koeblen Road?

� Randall Malik, Economic Development Director contacted them and will setup a meeting 
with them to start discussions.

� For access to the sand pit on FM 2218 they have to go on a section. The sand pit is on FM 
2977 behind Sunrise Meadows and they cannot come up Koeblen Road to FM 2218. 

� Councilor Benton asked about Old Richmond Road.
� That was on the list with the County and will be done this summer for reconstruction.
� Councilor McConathy asked about Koeblen and Cottonwood School Roads regarding the 

addition of the signage that was added for the trucks. Was the truck company on Koeblen 
Road notified that we now have signs restricting their access to Koeblen Road? How are we 
enforcing the new signage for those streets?

� Yes the Police Department contacted them.
� Dallis Warren, Police Chief explained that our traffic officers are there periodically and we 

follow up on any complaints regarding the truck traffic on those roads.
� Mayor Morales stated that since the signs have gone up on Bryan Road there are not as 

many gravel trucks. 
� The general consensus was to move forward with the list as presented.
� No action was taken on the item.

3. REVIEW AND DISCUSS PROPOSED “SEX OFFENDER” ORDINANCE, AND TAKE ACTION AS 
NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF. 
Executive Summary: City staff has seen an increase in the number of sex offenders currently 
registered in the City of Rosenberg. Currently there are minimal regulations pertaining to the 
residency of registered sex offenders. 

Staff is recommending the City consider an Ordinance that provides for greater oversight of 
registered sex offenders and restriction on residence locations for these offenders.   Should City 
Council direct staff to move forward, an Ordinance will be presented at a future City Council meeting 
for consideration and adoption.

Key discussion points:
� Dallis Warren, Police Chief read the Executive Summary regarding the item.
� Tracie Dunn, Assistant Police Chief presented a PowerPoint outlining the item regarding the 

proposed “Sex Offender” Ordinance and provided the options available.
� A current map was shown pointing out the drug free zone which is 1,000 feet from schools. 

The dark green on the map is 2,000 feet from the school and shown as the “child safety 
zone” on the map. The parks and any child activity or recreation area were included in the 
map.

� A map was shown pinpointing where the sex offenders are living within the City, and as 
outlined in the Ordinance.

� A regional map was provided showing other cities in the area by population. Rosenberg has 
a large number of this population relative to size. The numbers are rarely below 60. 
Presently there are 59 and the lowest seen is 56.

� The ordinance is talking to only the child sex offenders and habitual offenders. Out of the 
total of 59 – 40 are child sex offenders and 10 habitual offenders. That is the majority of the 
sex offender population living in Rosenberg and would be affected by this ordinance.

� Chapter 62 of the Criminal Code of Procedure is what we have now. Chapter 62 has no 
residency location restrictions.

� The State form number CR35 is the form they fill out when they move to Rosenberg. Page 2 
lists all the conditions they must comply to. There is no residency distance in the conditions. 

reneel
Rectangle



PAGE 6 of 10 * SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * APRIL 22, 2014
***DRAFT***

This ordinance is important and is the only recourse we have.
� State definitions of offenders were outlined.
� Most surrounding cities have ordinances restricting residency and Rosenberg does not, so 

that restricts probation areas to place them. Some are natives and move back. Chapter 62 
does not restrict any residency and it is left to us to bridge that gap.

� Other agencies are doing yard signs and some are doing bumper stickers. Almost all have 
the location restriction from 1,000 to 2,000 feet. Currently, probation is the only one for us 
that makes the condition 1,000 feet and that is only while on probation.

� No agencies in Fort Bend County use signage. Bay City is the only one using signage 
requirement and our language is based on theirs.

� The offender has seven days once they move here to notify us. After the seventh day we 
have basis for compliance. 

� Homeless offenders are supposed to call us each day (24 hours) to notify us and they have 
to give a geographical location of where they are at.

� The ordinance pertains to habitual offenders and child sex offenders only. These individuals 
will not be grandfathered in. It would apply to anyone new moving to Rosenberg or are 
currently living and then moved. 

� Rules and verbiage regulating the signage was provided. The City will provide the required 
sign to the child sex offender or habitual sex offender. Cost of the sign is $11.00.

Questions/Comments:
� Councilor McConathy stated since the Police Department will provide the signs a monetary 

amount will need to be established in the budget to support that. Which option do you favor?
� Dallis Warren, Police Chief stated yes if adopted by Council. Several options have been 

provided tonight and based on the discussion the Ordinance will be adjusted and brought 
back to Council with the budgetary impact. His preference would be the 2,000 feet that 
provides the greatest protection. Signage is not very common but is seen in some 
jurisdictions. He does not have a preference. It is also highly restrictive to what type of 
offender would receive that sign and does not apply to all offenders.

� Councilor Benton asked what brought this about. Have there been complaints?
� Dallis Warren referenced the chart with the numbers. Rosenberg numbers are so much 

higher that surrounding cities and we are the only city that does not have the restrictions 
that led us in that direction and made it obvious we need to do something.

� Councilor Benton expressed concern with the constitutionality when someone is required to 
put a sign in front of their home. He has concerns with the sign aspect of the Ordinance.

� Lora Lenzsch, City Attorney explained many of these ordinances throughout the United 
States are very similar and they have been brought into the courts and the courts have ruled 
that sex offenders are not a protected class of individuals under the fair housing acts or 
under any of the constitutional standards. The ordinances are based not on punishment but 
on the ability to protect the public and minors residing in the community. As to date she 
does not know of any signage ordinances that have been contested.

� Councilor Bolf agreed with the Ordinance. They do not deserve any courtesy and they could 
sleep in a tent. Does the state notify you when they come here or do you wait for them to 
come to you to register? She agrees with the signage. If the family takes them in they need 
to deal with it. She would like the 2,500 feet to apply in the Ordinance. 

� Tracie Dunn explained if they are coming out of a commitment the papers are faxed to us. If 
they are moving from another jurisdiction they are bound by the seven day rule and we have 
to rely on them to show up. Most of the time agencies will call us and let us know. Our City 
restricts them from living in apartments. We try to do a minimum of three compliance checks 
per year and those are random. 

� Councilor Grigar echoed what Councilor Bolf said. He expressed some concern with the 
map including daycares. How do we keep track of when daycares come and go and does 
the map change? Are HOA recreational centers considered to be private?

� Tracie Dunn stated maps are checked annually and updated. HOAs are considered private.
� Lora Lenzsch explained the Ordinance is meant to regulate areas that are open to the 

reneel
Rectangle



PAGE 7 of 10 * SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * APRIL 22, 2014
***DRAFT***

public not private. The City does not regulate on HOA properties. From the map it covers 
the City. It wasn’t until recently that Sugar Land went out to 2,500 feet so maybe we could 
consider that.

� Councilor Grigar stated he would like to see 2,500 feet. There is a small portion that is not in 
the map so they can live in our subdivision as well as other areas where there are HOAs. 
He has concern leaving the recreation center outs. He would like to see a large sign but
does not agree with the bumper sticker.

� Councilor Pena agreed with Councilors Bolf and Grigar. He does not think this type of crime 
can ever be paid back through an institution. Knowledge of where these people are at is one 
thing and earmarking them. These people will not be able to find housing and they will have 
to live with relatives and he does not think good tax paying people should have to be 
punished for this. Knowing where they are located is good. Due diligence was done with this 
Ordinance and he agrees with it and supports it.

� Councilor Euton asked if this will put an extra burden on the Police Department or will it help
to aid them.

� Tracie Dunn stated it will be helpful because it will not pertain to only probation areas.
� Dallis Warren stated this is a long term affect and over a period of time with the mobility of 

population eventually when they move the Ordinance becomes effective. 
� Councilor Euton stated the ones living here are grandfathered, but there is an exception that 

says they have complied with all the sex offender registration laws. They don’t always 
comply and they could get kicked out of that exception when they don’t comply. The sign is 
a little over the top. She agrees with identifying where they are and keeping them away from 
children. She always hopes there is rehabilitation for these people. She likes the idea of 
protecting the landlord. How is the landlord expected to handle it?

� Tracie Dunn explained that once we give the landlord notice we give them a reasonable 
amount of time to effectively get them out. We average 8 to 10 that are out of compliance on 
our checks out of the sixty we have. 

� Dallis Warren stated the District Attorney’s Office is very aggressive on the prosecution of 
violators. 

� Mayor Morales stated the general consensus of Council is to have the maximum area that 
can be covered with the most restrictive to that defender. Signage is mixed, but in his 
opinion if that would lower those numbers he agrees with it. 

� Dallis Warren stated the Ordinance will be brought back to the May 20th Council Meeting. 
The distance will be increased to 2,500 feet and the signage will be brought back at that 
time.

� Lora Lenzsch stated two versions can be brought back. One that includes the sign and one 
that doesn’t. Council can decide at that time.

� No action was taken on the item.

4. REVIEW AND DISCUSS PROPOSED REVISIONS TO THE CHRISTMAS IN ROSENBERG 
EVENT, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF. 
Executive Summary: Staff has placed this item on the Agenda to review and discuss, with City 
Council, proposed changes to the Christmas in Rosenberg event.

Key discussion points:
� Robert Gracia clarified to Council that the information being given is preliminary. We are in 

the planning stage and before staff moves forward we wanted to have a consensus from 
Council whether to proceed with the changes staff is recommending.

� Darren McCarthy stated staff is looking to doing something different with Christmas in 
Rosenberg and showcasing and highlighting our downtown area.

� We would like to bring a lot of lights to downtown. Examples of lighting were provided with 
the ideas of spreading out the event to three nights:

� A Sip and Stroll through the downtown shops;
� A Tree Lighting Ceremony and showing a family friendly holiday movie; and/or
� Santa and Mrs. Claus and a holiday theater performance.

reneel
Rectangle



 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 12 
 

Announcements. 
 



 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 13 
 

Adjournment. 
 


	Regular City Council Meeting Agenda - 05-20-14
	-- Presentation of Proclamation Proclaiming May 21, 2014 as Special Olympics Day
	-- Presentation of Proclamation Proclaiming May 2014 as Older Americans Month
	-- General Comments from the Audience
	-- Comments from the Audience for Regular and Consent Agenda Items
	1 - Review of Consent Agenda
	A - Minutes
	Special City Council Meeting Minutes - 04-22-14
	City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes - 04-22-14

	B - Final Plat of Walsh Road Industrial Park
	Final Plat of Walsh Road Industrial Park 
	Planing Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt - 12-18-13
	Planning Commission Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt - 04-23-14 

	C - Resolution No. R-1784 - Fort Bend County Emergency Management Plan
	Resolution No. R-1784
	Approval and Implementation Page

	2 - Presentation Regarding Proposed Eagle Scout Project for SCRSC - Bat Habitat Project
	Presentation - Seabourne Creek Park Bat Roosting Box Conservation Project Proposal
	Parks and Recreation Board Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt - 04-21-14

	3 - Presentation on Proposed Eagle Scout Project for Sunset Park - Bleacher Restoration
	Presentation - Eagle Scout Project - Muid Ali, Troop 797
	Parks and Recreation Board Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt - 04-24-14

	4 - Resolution No. R-1795 - Termination of General Services Contract for Grounds Maintenance Services
	Resolution No. R-1795
	Resolution No. R-1746 - 04-01-14
	Caldwell Termination Email Correspondence - 05-10-14
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 04-01-14

	5 - Resolution No. R-1790 - Awarding Bid No. 2014-02 for Grounds Maintenance Services Contract
	Bid Summary Form
	Proposal
	Resolution No. R-1790
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 10-22-13

	6 - Ordinance No. 2014-22 - Authorizing and Ordering the Issuance of Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2014
	Ordinance No. 2014-22
	Resolution No. R-1773 - 04-01-14
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 04-01-14

	7 - Resolution No. R-1789 - Amendment to Interlocal Agreement Renewal for the Collection of Taxes
	Resolution No. R-1789

	8 - Ordinance No. 2014-23 - Canvassing the Returns and Declaring the Results of the May 10, 2014 Special Municipal Election
	Ordinance No. 2014-23

	9 - Ordinance No. 2014-24 - Sale of City Property for One-Way Pairs Project
	Ordinance No. 2014-24

	10 - Resolution No. R-1792 - Sale of City Property for One-Way Pairs Project
	Resolution No. R-1792

	11 - Ordinance No. 2014-25 - Sex Offender Ordinance
	Ordinance No. 2014-25 V1 - Redlined for Distance 
	Ordinance No. 2014-25 V2  - Redlined for Distance and Signage Removed
	Area Map - Drug Free Locations with 1,000, 2,000, and 2,500 Foot Buffers 
	City Council Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt - 04-22-14

	12 - Announcements
	13 - Adjournment



